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Financial Summary

S B

Revenue from external

customers

REIBERZWEA
2021 2020
—E_—%F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BERTT BT T
Mainland China B A i 224,033 174,067
Hong Kong BE 2,036 10,809
Total 4B RE 226,069 184,876
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Financial Summary

S 85 2

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, total
equity, share capital, results and other financial information of
DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries collectively, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March
for the last five years.

TIARREEEREERARATEATDRE
MHEAR(GHE KRB DNEEAFEE=ZA
ST HALFEZREE RAG BE=m-
PeAS - A M E M E RS -

Financials (HK$ Million) MERE(B¥EET) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E_—-f —T-%F —T-hEFE ZE-)\F ZZT—+F
(Restated)
(&)
Total assets BEE 3,956 2,788 2,827 3,055 2,229
Total liabilities BwafE 2,482 1,572 1,296 1,447 1,542
Total equity B 1,474 1,216 1,531 1,609 687
Shareholders’ funds BEES 1,474 1,216 1,531 1,609 687
Share capital &
— in number (Million) —-BE(BER) 7,357 7,357 7,328 6,944 5,318
— in value -8B 74 74 73 69 53
Revenue N 226 185 271 668 570
Profit/(Loss) attributable to VNGRS DN
the owners of the Company FEIE&F/(B18) 43 (348) (213) (222) (441)
Per Share Basis (HK cents) EREXGEWM
Earnings/(Loss) — Basic B/ (BB -&EX 0.58 @.75) (3.00) 3.79) (8.49)
— Diluted —#8 0.58 @.75) (3.00) 3.79) (8.49)
Dividends [gs) - — — — —
Net asset value BEZFME 20.03 16.53 20.90 2317 12.92
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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Kwong Yuk (Chairman)
Mr. SU Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WANG Xiaohua

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOW Shiu Ki
Mr. CAO Kuangyu
Mr. IP Chi Wai

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric

AUDITOR
Elite Partners CPA Limited

LEGAL ADVISERS
Jeffrey Mak Law Firm

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. SU Xiaonong
Mr. CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. CHOW Shiu Ki (Chairman)
Mr. CAO Kuangyu
Mr. IP Chi Wai

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. CHOW Shiu Ki (Chairman)
Mr. SU Xiaonong

Mr. CAO Kuangyu

Mr. IP Chi Wai

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LI Kwong Yuk (Chairman)
Mr. CHOW Shiu Ki
Mr. IP Chi Wai
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China Construction Bank Corporation Zhanjiang Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

Unit 2708, 27/F.
Convention Plaza — Office Tower
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 508

http://www.dingyi.hk
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Chairman’s Statement

BN 2

By abiding the corporate spirit of “seizing early opportunities,
pursuing excellence, progressing proactively and forging ahead
innovatively”, over the years, we have been adhering to the
industry intrinsic value as the core of our investment philosophy.
We believe all investment values are built on the growth and
success of business operation. We applied the comprehensive
investment evaluation and management system to select and
invest in those enterprises that have high growth potential and
solid business in their respective industry sector. Meanwhile, we
also worked closely with the management teams of prominent
enterprises, seeking mutual development to maximize our own
investment value through the joint growth with the investees.

Like in the past, we continue to move forward dependably in
achieving to “leap into the world with our foothold in China and
become a professional investment institute with international
competitiveness focusing on scalable industry investment”. Apart
from our existing securities trading, loan financing, properties
development and other businesses, we persevered unremittingly
to make the best use of various resources and channels to
proactively seek significant opportunities that are suitable for
enterprise development, so as to achieve growth for the Group in
repaying the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
for their long-term support.

During the past year, the Company devoted much time to
continue exploring different investment opportunities proactively.
In addition, the management team did some research in different
regions in the world to explore and study other investment
opportunities in resources and energy projects, properties
development, financial technology, pharmaceutical and ocean
industry. The Company is confident about the prospect of such
investment projects. We will notify our Shareholders important
information whenever is available.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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The profit of the Company during the year was mainly attributable
o (i) the Group would not need to record any one-off accounting
expense relating the grant of share options as it did in the
corresponding year of 2020 amounting to approximately HK$152
million; (i) a reversal of allowance for impairment of loan and
interest receivables was recorded comparing to a provision
made in the corresponding year of 2020; and (iii) the properties
development business delivered satisfactory performance with
increase in revenue from sales of car parks and remaining units
left over from old property projects. The Group’s annual revenue
was mainly contributed by sale of properties and loan financing
interest income.

In March 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of the 100%
indirect equity interest in Xintai Investment Company Limited* (&
TERLEBMRAR) (“Xintai”). Xintai is principally engaged in
the development, operation and investment of property. Xintai also
holds One Parkview* (2B —9%), a complex land use development
which is located at Chikan District, Zhanjiang, Guangdong
Province, the PRC (the “Properties”). The Properties comprises
of three phases, (i) phase | comprises of two blocks of residential
buildings with a number of retail shops, car parks and facilities;
(i) phase Il comprises of four blocks of residential buildings with
a number of retail shops, car parks and facilities; and (iii) phase I
comprises of ten blocks of residential buildings with a number of
retail shops, car parks and facilities. The Group has obtained pre-
sales permit for certain blocks of the Phase Ill of One Parkview
project starting from June 2020 and is commencing the pre-sales
under the pre-sales permits. The Company is very optimistic about
the revenue and profit to be brought by the property development
industry in which it will engage in the PRC in future.

The COVID-19 outbreak has resulted in an extremely complicated
external environment with lots of uncertainties. However, the
Group’s business and operation were not adversely impacted or
disrupted by COVID-19 pandemic for the year ended 31 March
2021. The Group will implement proactive epidemic prevention
measures to ensure the health and safety of its employees and
customers. The Group will continue to monitor the developments
of the COVID-19 outbreak closely, assess and react actively to
its impacts on the financial position and operating results of the
Group.

* For identification purpose only

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

BVt

In the future, the Group will continue to explore more investment
opportunities, especially in new energy, finance, ocean industry
and property development.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude and also my sincere thanks to all stakeholders who had
made valuable contributions to the Group this year. They include
our loyal Shareholders, fellow directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) * our business partners, our steadfast customers,
and those hardworking and dedicated staff who have longed been
supporting us.

Reward Others While Enriching Ourselves, Thus Enlightening
Dingyil

Li Kwong Yuk
Chairman

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is principally engaged in securities trading, loan
financing, properties development and other businesses.

The Group’s revenue from its continuing operations for the year
amounted to approximately HK$226 million or HK$41 million
more than that for the previous year. There was a profit for the
year attributable to the Company’s owners of approximately
HK$43 million (2020: loss of approximately HK$348 million). Such
turnaround from loss to profit was mainly due to (i) the Group
would not need to record any one-off accounting expense relating
to the grant of share options as it did in the corresponding year
of 2020 amounting to approximately HK$152 million; (i) a reversal
of allowance for impairment of loan and interest receivables was
recorded comparing to a provision made in the corresponding
year of 2020; and (iii) the properties development business
delivered satisfactory performance with increase in revenue from
sales of car parks and remaining units left over from old property
projects.

The basic and diluted earnings per share was HK0.58 cents, as
compared with loss per share of HK4.75 cents last year.

During the year, the Group has been involved in the securities
trading business. The Group had realised loss on the disposal of
these listed securities investments amounting to approximately
HK$1 million (2020: approximately HK$2 million) during the year.
The Group recorded a gain of approximately HK$33 million (2020:
loss of approximately HK$44 million) arising from changes in the
fair value of the listed securities. As a result, the Group reported
a segment profit of approximately HK$32 million (2020: loss of
approximately HK$46 million) during the year. Going forward, the
Group expects that the future performance of the listed securities
investments held by the Group will be volatile and substantially
affected by overall economic environment, equity market
conditions, investor sentiment and the business performance and
development of the investee companies. The Board will closely
monitor the performance progress of the investment portfolio from
time to time.

o B o s e g e
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$171 million (2020: approximately HK$159 million) from loan
financing segment. The Group recorded a reversal allowance
for impairment of loan and interest receivables of approximately
HK$20 million (2020: provision of approximately HK$178 million).
As a result, the Group reported a segment profit of approximately
HK$191 million (2020: loss of approximately HK$19 million). The
Group will further develop this segment in order to earn a higher
interest income.

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$55 million (2020: approximately HK$25 million) and segment
profit of approximately HK$11 million (2020: approximately HK$5
million). The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase
from sales of car parks and remaining units left over from old
property projects. The Group has obtained pre-sales permit for
certain blocks of the Phase lll of One Parkview project starting
from June 2020 and is commencing the pre-sales under the
pre-sales permits. The Group anticipates further revenue and
positive results from this segment in the future upon completion
of properties under development and the sales of completed
properties.

The Group has kept certain quantities of fine wines. The stocks
will be offered to sell when the market prices are favorable
such that the Group can obtain a good return on the trading. At
present, the stocks are kept in the wine cellar situated in Hong
Kong.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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As at 31 March 2021, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 7,357,008,015 (31 March 2020: 7,357,008,015) of
HK$0.01 each and its issued share capital was HK$73,570,080 (31
March 2020: HK$73,570,080).

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company
during the year.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company has outstanding convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,323,250,000 (the
“Outstanding Convertible Bonds”), among which the principal
amount of HK$980,000,000 has the conversion price of HK$0.80
per share and the principal amount of HK$343,250,000 has the
conversion price of HK$0.85 per share. The number of shares
that would be issued upon full conversion of the Outstanding
Convertible Bonds is 1,628,823,529 shares (representing
approximately 22.14% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 March 2021 and approximately 18.13% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by such outstanding
conversion shares).

Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR ik i B 43 e

R-ZEBE-—F=ZA=+—H ' ARAIZ2B%1T
% 17 48 81 &7,357,008,016f (T E T F = A
=+ —H :7,357,008,015%) & I& @ 1& /& #0.01
T2k EBBTRA RS T3,570,080
T(ZEZZEF=ZA=+—H: &%73,570,080
JT) °

ARAREEAZERARBLHMED -

RZEBEZ—F=ZfA=+—H ARRAEERL
A 75 11,323,250,0007T 2 Al # % & & oK
TE(RRTEITREBEES) EFEELEE
980,000,0007T # & #1 (& /& & A% /8 #50.807T LA
& T {E 7 343,250,000 K E B & T IR B
¥0.8570 c BWEEBE RITE AR EF K
T2 B 1D 51,628,823,520k ({5 AR RN = =E
T—F A=+t —BZEBITRALN2214% K&
KEBRBTRBRBRMERZ ARG EHITHR
K #918.13%) °

5 45 0 43 A B O )

11

SRR



12

Management Discussion and Analysis

B PRI i B 4 e

Assuming that the Outstanding Convertible Bonds were converted
in full as at 31 March 2021, the respective shareholdings of
the substantial shareholders of the Company would have been
changed as follows:

SREARITEARKESNR-_FT_—F=A
ST -HEXZHER ARFATIBERREELZ
FIREFHRTIEZ:

Before conversion of Outstanding Immediately after conversion of
Convertible Bonds Outstanding Convertible Bonds
MERTEARERSEBRA RERRTEITRERFERE
Name of Substantial Shareholders Number of shares % of total issued Number of shares % of total issued
held shares held shares
TEREME B8R BFREROBE HRBBTRB% FREROBE HEBBTRIZ%
Mr. LI Kwong Yuk (Note) 3,251,305,405 4419% 4,476,305,405 49.82%
EHEBEEMN )
China Shipbuilding Capital Limited
FEMMERERAT 908,685,000 12.35% 908,685,000 10.11%
Total issued shares
HETERG 7,357,008,015 8,985,831,544

Note: including shares held by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, Wincon Capital Investment
Limited (“WCIL”), Wincon Asset Management Limited (“WAML”’) and Win
Master Group Limited (“WMGL”). WCIL, WAML and WMGL are wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Li.

The dilutive impact on the profit per share of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2021 is not applicable as the exercise price
of those Outstanding Convertible Bonds (if any) was higher than
the average market price for shares.

It is expected that the financial and liquidity position of the
Company as at 31 March 2021 or afterwards would not be
materially affected by the redemption of the Outstanding
Convertible Bonds (if any), as the redemption will only take
place with the Company’s consent according to the terms of the
Outstanding Convertible Bonds.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Subsequent amendments to the terms and
conditions of the convertible bonds

On 11 June 2021, the Company entered into the third deed of
amendments (the “Third Amendment Deed”) to further extend
the maturity date of the convertible bonds in the principal amounts
of HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”)
to 31 May 2022 (the “Third Amendments”). The conversion
rights (the “Conversion Rights”) attaching to the Convertible
Bonds expired on 31 May 2021. As such, the Convertible Bonds
have become a straight debt and carry no Conversion Rights
pursuant to the Third Amendment Deed. As the Convertible
Bonds are no longer regarded as convertible debt securities, the
Company is not required to apply for the approval of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the
Third Amendments under Rule 28.05 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
Details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 11
June 2021 and 17 June 2021.

The COVID-19 outbreak has resulted in an extremely complicated
external environment with lots of uncertainties. However, the
Group’s business and operation were not adversely impacted or
disrupted by COVID-19 pandemic for the year ended 31 March
2021. The Group will implement proactive epidemic prevention
measures to ensure the health and safety of its employees and
customers. The Group will continue to monitor the developments
of the COVID-19 outbreak closely, assess and react actively to
its impacts on the financial position and operating results of the
Group.

Apart from the existing businesses of securities trading, loan
financing, properties development and other businesses,
the Group will continue to explore other potential investment
opportunities with reasonable returns that meet the Company’s
criteria. This will not only strengthen our core business but also
increase the shareholders’ values. The Group has been exploring
some investment opportunities in resources and energy projects,
properties development, financial technology, pharmaceutical and
ocean industry.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review

S 5 ol

The Group’s revenue increased from approximately HK$185 million
in 2020 to approximately HK$226 million in 2021, mainly because
an increase of revenue in properties development segment.

The gross profit increased by approximately HK$30 million,
or 16.6%, from approximately HK$179 million in 2020 to
approximately HK$208 million in 2021. The gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 96.6% in 2020 to approximately
92.2% in 2021.

Other income increased to approximately HK$3 million this year
(2020: approximately HK$223,000). The increase was mainly
due to (i) the increase of bank interest income in relation to the
increase in cash received from the pre-sale of the Phase Ill of
One Parkview project, (i) the salaries and wage subsidies granted

under Anti-Epidemic Fund, and (iii) the net exchange gain.

Selling and distribution costs increased to approximately HK$14
million (2020: approximately HK$6 million) which was mainly due to
the increase of marketing expenses for the pre-sale of the Phase
[l of One Parkview project. General and administrative expenses
decreased to approximately HK$45 million (2020: approximately
HK$56 million) which was mainly due to the cost saving resulted
by an implementation of cost control during the year.

Property, plant and equipment decreased to approximately HK$14
million in this year (2020: approximately HK$16 million).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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As at 31 March 2021, the Group had financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, representing equity securities listed in Hong
Kong, Shanghai and London, of approximately HK$34 million
(2020: approximately HK$4 million). The Group recorded a gain of
approximately HK$33 million (2020: loss of approximately HK$44
million) arising from changes in fair value of listed securities. Since
there was no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
held by the Group valued more than 5% of the total assets of the
Group as at 31 March 2021, there were no significant investments
held by the Group.

Cash and bank balances increased from approximately HK$21
million in last year to approximately HK$307 million this year. The
increase was mainly due to the cash received from the pre-sale of
the Phase lll of One Parkview project.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s net assets attributable to the
owners of the Company amounted to approximately HK$1,474
million (2020: HK$1,216 million), an increase of approximately
HK$258 million when compared with that of 2020.

As at 31 March 2021, total debt to equity ratio was 1.04 (2020:
1.08) and net debt to equity ratio was 0.83 (2020: 1.06), which
were expressed as a percentage of total borrowings and total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents respectively, over the
total equity of approximately HK$1,474 million (2020: HK$1,216
million).

Financial Review
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Financial Review

St 5 1o

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s bank borrowing, promissory
note and convertible bonds amounted to approximately HK$384
million, HK$5 million and HK$1,141 million respectively (31 March
2020: approximately HK$197 million, HK$5 million and HK$1,108
million respectively).

The bank borrowing of approximately HK$384 million will be
repayable between 1 and 5 years.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s properties under development
with a carrying amounts of approximately HK$980 million (2020:
approximately HK$499 million) was pledged to a bank for bank
borrowing.

Most of the Group’s assets are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”), Renminbi (‘RMB”), United States dollars (“USD”)
and Australian dollars (“AUD”). Considering the exchange
rates between these currencies are relatively stable, the Group
believed that the corresponding exposure to RMB, USD and AUD
exchange rates fluctuation was relatively limited. The Group does
not undertake any derivative financial instruments or hedging
instruments. The Group will constantly review the economic
situation and its foreign currency risk profile, and continues to
actively monitor foreign exchange exposure to minimise the impact
of any adverse currency movement.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately HK$132,279,000 (2020: approximately
HK$311,272,000).
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The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and
financial management. To achieve better risk control and
minimise the cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised. Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits mostly
denominated in HKD, USD, RMB or AUD. The Group’s liquidity
and financing requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating
new investments, the Group will consider new financing channels
while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

Financial Review
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

o R A B £ A

Set out below are the biographical details of the current Directors:

MR. LI KWONG YUK (“MR. LI"”)

Mr. Li, aged 59, joined the Company as executive Director
and chairman of the Company on 27 October 2011. He is also
the chairman of the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and directors of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Li is a businessman with over 13 years’ investment
experience in the highway industry in The People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). He studied at Guangzhou Institute of
Foreign Trade from 1978 to 1981. Mr. Li had worked on various
investment projects in areas such as infrastructure and finance
in Hong Kong and the PRC. He has 50% shareholding in Wincon
International Limited (“Wincon International”’), a company set
up by Mr. Li and incorporated in Hong Kong, which is principally
engaged in investment business in highways in the PRC. He
is a sole director and the beneficial owner of Wincon Capital
Investment Limited, the controlling Shareholder, and also directors
of various companies including Wincon International, Wincon
Asset Management Limited, Win Master Group Limited, Dingyi
Wantong Investment (HK) Limited, Dingyi Venture Capital (HK)
Limited, Dingyi New Energy Investment Limited, B MR E S E A
¥ B BR A7 (Guangzhou Huan Long Expressway Co., Ltd., being
its unofficial English translation) and FJI MR EEBIREEBR
A 7] (Shenzhen Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its
unofficial English translation).
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MR. SU XIAONONG (“MR. SU”)

Mr. Su, aged 57, joined the Company as executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive
Officer”) on 27 October 2011. He is also a member of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
directors of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Su graduated
from East China College of Political Science and Law in 1986.
He has been director or management of various venture capital,
private equity and investment consultancy companies in the PRC,
including worked at R JI 71 Bl 8 % & E 2 B R A7 (Shenzhen
Gofar Investment Management Co., Ltd., being its unofficial
English translation) from April 2003 to November 2007. Mr. Su
currently works at RN TH B 5 £ E R AR A G (Shenzhen
Union Venture Capital Consulting Co., Ltd., being its unofficial
English translation) and EZ I TR EE B EHFR A A (Shenzhen
Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its unofficial English
translation). He is also a partner and vice president of Shenzhen
Dingyi Venture Capital L.P..

MR. WANG XIAOHUA (“MR. WANG”)

Mr. Wang, aged 58, graduated from the Nankai University with
a bachelor’'s degree in Economics and a master’s degree in
International Economics and Trade. He has more than 30 years’
experience in investment banking and equity investment fund.
He served as a lecturer in the Faculty of Economics in the
Nankai University from July 1986 to October 1996 and worked
as a senior manager in the investment banking department of
CITIC Securities Company Limited from May 1996 to December
1998. Mr. Wang joined &Il T &l ¥71% & &£ E B R 2 7 (Shenzhen
Capital Group Co., Limited) in August 1999 and currently serves
as a senior investment manager of that company. He is also a
director of & /N s 37 & % )7 B & F i 5 B R 2 7] (Guangzhou Ruili
Kormee Automatic Electronics Co., Ltd.) (being a subsidiary of I
&£ B AR QA (Ruili Group Co., Ltd) which was previously listed
on NASDAQ) and #JITmEA S EYE KB R QA (Shenzhen
Ecomann Biotechnology Co., Ltd.).
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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MR. CHOW SHIU KI (“MR. CHOW?”)

Mr. Chow, aged 53, joined the Company as independent non-
executive Director on 27 October 2011. He is also chairman of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chow has accumulated years of
working experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance
areas. He holds a Master Degree in Professional Accounting. Mr.
Chow is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has worked for various private
and listed companies at senior management level. He is currently
serving in a senior management role in a consultancy services
company. He served as an independent non-executive director
of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8090 and was delisted
on 12 March 2021) from December 2011 to March 2021.

MR. CAO KUANGYU (“MR. CAO”)

Mr. Cao, aged 71, joined the Company as independent non-
executive Director on 12 December 2014. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Cao holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics from the University
of Hunan and a Master Degree in Financial Management from the
University of London. Mr. Cao has extensive experience in the
areas of banking and finance. He worked in Bank of China, Hunan
Province branch for the period from July 1981 to February 1996
and his last position was the deputy president of the branch. For
the period from February 1996 to September 1999, Mr. Cao was
the deputy general manager of Bank of China, Singapore branch.
For the period from September 1999 to September 2003, he
was the president of China Citic Bank, Shenzhen branch. Then
he worked as the managing director of the investment banking
division of BOCI Asia Limited from September 2003 to September
2007. Mr. Cao is currently an independent non-executive director
of New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (stock code: 472),
Dongwu Cement International Limited (stock code: 695) and
Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (stock code: 758), all of which
are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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MR. IP CHI WAI (“MR. IP”)

Mr. Ip, aged 583, joined the Company as independent non-
executive Director on 31 March 2016. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. He graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a Degree of a Bachelor of Laws. He is a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong and has more than 20 years of experience
in the legal profession. Mr. Ip is currently an independent non-
executive director of Asia Standard Hotel Group Limited (stock
code: 292) and Wealthy Way Group Limited (stock code: 3848),
both of which are companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

MR. JI JIAQI (“MR. JI”)

Mr. Ji, aged 54, joined the Company as executive president on 20
February 2017. Mr. Ji has over 20 years of experience in scientific
research and practical work on risk control and investment
operation in financial market. Mr. Ji holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Science from South China Normal University, a Postgraduate
Degree in Economics from the Communist Party School in
Guangdong and a Doctoral Degree in Finance from College of
Economics of Jinan University. He has published numerous articles
in major periodicals relating to financial and public management
sectors. He once worked in provincial governments, universities,
and engaged in the bankruptcy works of (BEERBEEEAKEA
Al) Guangdong International Trust Investment Corporation* and
reorganization of Guangdong Holdings Limited. He is currently
an adjunct professor of Tsinghua University and Jinan University
respectively, and also a distinguished visiting professor of Central
University of Finance and Economics.

MS. KUANG YATING (“MS. KUANG”)

Ms. Kuang, aged 31, joined the Company as an investment analyst
on 3 January 2017. Ms. Kuang has 5 years of experience in data
analysis, corporate finance and investment management. Ms.
Kuang holds a Dual Bachelor’'s Degree in Management and Law
from Jinan University, a Master’s Degree in Finance from University
of Bath, England. She was granted the international mathematical
modelling award. She obtained the Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) and Financial Risk Manager (FRM) Licenses and is a
member of the HK Society of Financial Analysts. She worked at
the group business unit of China Construction Bank Corporation,
specializing in constructing performance models for banks and
provision of investment and financing proposals for clients.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and has introduced corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 March
2021 except for the deviation disclosed below:

Due to travel restrictions as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic,
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30
September 2020 (the “2020 AGM”) as required by code provision
E.1.2 of the CG Code. The 2020 AGM was chaired by the
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Chow Shiu Ki. The annual
general meeting provides a channel for communication between
the Board and the shareholders. Other than the annual general
meeting, the shareholders may communicate with the Company
through the contact methods listed on the Company’s website.

The Company has adopted the Model Code (the “Model Code”)
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
for securities transactions by Directors during the year ended 31
March 2021.

The Company has made specific enquiries to all the Directors and
they have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2021.
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The overall management of the business of the Company is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All Directors should make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole. The Board has delegated the power to oversee the
daily operational matters of the Group to the management of the
Company under the supervision of the Board.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or
through the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a
position to exercise its power in an informed manner, all members
of the Board have full and timely access to all relevant information
and may take independent professional advice if necessary.

The Board has full support from the Chief Executive Officer and
the management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

Appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors and senior management
of the Group arising out of corporate activities of the Group has
been arranged.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprised the following Directors and
their respective roles are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)

Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wang Xiaohua (appointed on 8 October 2020)
Mr. Li Zhongxia (resigned on 8 October 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Ip Chi Wai

The biographical details of each current Director are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management Profile” in this annual report.
Their roles and functions are published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
A balanced composition of executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors also generates a strong independent
element on the Board, which allows independent and objective
decision making process for the best interest of the Company.
The Company will review the composition of the Board regularly
to ensure the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary
expertise, skills and experience to meet the needs of the business
development of the Group.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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The Board meets either in person or through other electronic
means of communication to monitor the execution of plans, review
the Group’s business performance and review financial reporting
as well as all other material matters. The Board held 8 meetings
during the year ended 31 March 2021. Individual attendance
records of each Director at the Board meetings are set out in the
table on page 33 of this report. Sufficient notice with agenda and
the relevant information of those regular Board meetings were
given to all Directors. Minutes of the Board meetings and meetings
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee were sent to all Directors for comments
and approval. The signed minutes of the said meetings are open
for inspection by all Directors. If a substantial Shareholder or a
Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matters will be dealt with by a Board meeting rather than
written resolutions and the Board will ensure that an adequate
number of independent non-executive Directors are involved in the
consideration of the relevant matters. Independent non-executive
Directors are encouraged to take an active role in the Board
meetings.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships, among the Board members.

Newly appointed Directors are provided with an induction after
their appointment so as to ensure that they have appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of their duties and
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. The Company provides regular
updates on the business performance of the Group to the
Directors. The Directors are continually updated on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeeping of
good corporate governance practices.
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The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous ARREMESFRELNMEXABMEND
professional developments by way of attending trainings and/  dlk S & BTAMASGNR LEE
or seminars organised by professional organisations and BIAREE&RFTER - HAREROMEM
director training webcasts organised by the Stock Exchange B2uEBEREER  UEREEFRZE M
and also reading materials for updating new practices, rules and BREEE BRBARRRTFZLE  EERE
regulations to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. E_E_—FZA=T-RLEFEEXZHFI
According to the records maintained by the Company, the training Bt

that the Directors received for the year ended 31 March 2021 is

summarized below:

Training courses/

Name seminars/webcasts Reading materials
mAIRE ERE
e ] A L 3% Al FRiE#EH

Executive Directors

RITESE

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk v —
THERE

Mr. Su Xiaonong v -
BRI E

Mr. Wang Xiaohua (appointed on 8 October 2020) v —
TEELEWRZEZEFT+ANREZF)

Mr. Li Zhongxia (resigned on 8 October 2020) — —
FHEEER_Z_SF+ANBEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFRKRTES

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki v —
AERELE

Mr. Cao Kuangyu v —
ERTREE

Mr. Ip Chi Wai v —
BEREE

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Mr. Li Kwong Yuk is currently the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. Su Xiaonong is currently the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. In accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are separate and performed by different persons.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for overseeing the
functions of the Board and providing leadership for the Board
while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the
businesses of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each independent non-executive Director has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years
from the effective date of the service agreement and automatically
renewed for one year from the expiry date of the appointed period
until terminated by either party giving at least three months’
notice.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a fixed term of two years from the effective date
of the service agreement and automatically renewed for one year
from the expiry date of the appointed period until terminated by
either party giving at least three months’ notice.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting
of the Company. Under Bye-law 112(A), at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Every
Director shall retire from office no later than the third annual
general meeting since the last re-election or appointment of such
Director.

The emolument payable to Directors is determined by the Board
with reference to the Remuneration Committee’s recommendation
as well as the Directors’ duties and responsibilities and the
prevailing market conditions.
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The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in order to maintain high level of corporate governance
standard of the Company.

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the
CG Code.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Ip Chi Wai. The chairman
of the Audit Committee, Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, possesses appropriate
professional qualifications in finance and accounting and meets
the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
and provide supervision over the financial reporting system and
risk management and internal control procedures of the Group
and to review the Company’s annual report and accounts and the
interim report and to provide advices and comments thereon to
the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee met
twice with the auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”). Details of
the duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set out
in the “Terms of Reference of Audit Committee” which are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EFxetkV="RZE8e AEXZES ¥
MEEERREZEGUAFTARARKTZ

ERERBTE -

ARBMRBEEEER T ZARRTRMGRX KL
ERZBE YHEAEZHBERE -

FR BRLZECH-BBEIIERTERAK -
BAZEETE(BEZZESER) BRTLEAE
LEEREE BERZESITRFRAEELE
BBEEEVWBREAEZERLFTE ETHA
FE321E ZHTE

EREREQG T ERERENREEARE
ZHEERMARGIA R BARE R RAREEREF
ARBEBARR ZEREERAEARPRARSE -
Tt ESSRHEE D LFH -

REE-_ZTZ-_—F=A=+—HILEER " &
REEBGHEARNG 2B (KB RTM
REH BHBEZZEGCBRERERZFHE
ERIEZZEg B EGE IRNEE  EB T
A RART 2B -



During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee
reviewed annual audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020 and the unaudited interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 September
2020 with recommendations to the Board for approval; reviewed
the Group’s enterprise risk assessment report and internal
audit report for the year 2019/2020; and reviewed the terms of
engagement of Elite Partners CPA Limited with recommendation
to the Board for nomination as the new Auditor for appointment
at the 2020 AGM in place of the retiring auditor, SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2021. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Audit Committee is set out in the table on page 33 of this report.

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the
CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Ip Chi Wai,
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Su Xiaonong.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include but not limited to, making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all Directors and the senior management of the Company
and establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy. Details of the duties and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set out in
the “Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee” which
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of the existing Directors and
senior management of the Company and of the newly appointed
executive Director.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2021. Individual attendance record of each
member of the Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on
page 33 of this report.

i ai_g:_fﬁiﬂi—'— BIEFEER - %
WEEeRFRMEFEEAAR Tﬁ&%?*
=RE EEAE%D%ME%HTTi%Z I B A

RBEE_T_—F=—A=+t—RLFER"
MWEZEE@ERT-RE#E #ﬁ@ﬂi,\a%ﬁk
ZERHERERCEBNAREFRIBAE 2 KRE
A o

2021
—E-_—%
No. of employees

BEA®

Nil — HK$1,000,000

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the
CG Code.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (chairman of the Nomination Committee)
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow
Shiu Ki and Mr. Ip Chi Wai.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
but not limited to, reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience, length of service
and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Details of the
duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are set
out in the “Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee”
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The Board has also adopted a Directors’ nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) to formally set out the criteria and
nomination procedures on the appointment of Directors and
succession planning of Directors. According to the Nomination
Policy, the ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment
of Directors rests with the entire Board or the Shareholders in
general meeting, as the case may be. The Board has delegated
the relevant screening and evaluation process to the Nomination
Committee, which identifies suitably qualified candidates and
recommends them to the Board. In assessing the suitability of
the proposed candidate, the Nomination Committee takes into
consideration the candidate’s character, integrity, competence,
skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the Group’s principal
business, devoting sufficient time and attention to the Board,
fulfilment of the independence requirements as set out in the
Listing Rules (for independent non-executive Directors) and
diversity on the Board. After reaching its decision, the Nomination
Committee nominates relevant Director candidates to the
Board for approval and for consideration and recommendation
in respect of re-appointment of any existing Director(s) of the
Board, for the proposed candidate to stand for re-election at a
general meeting. The Board will have the final decision relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for re-election as
Directors at general meetings.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
assessed the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors; reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy; recommended to the Board on the nomination of retiring
Directors for re-election at the 2020 AGM; and reviewed and
recommended to the Board on the appointment of an executive
Director.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 March 2021. Individual attendance record of each member of
the Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 33 of
this report.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the fees paid/payable to
the Auditor in respect of audit services provided by the Auditor
were as follows:

Nature of services

REBE_Z_—F=A=+—HIEFERN &
ZZECERVNEFTECRE  RENAK:
TEEBBYHFPTEFT 2 B BRES
EREZTIBRREARR EBEEFEN
TECTFERRBFASGLIEERAREES
BEEE URERVNAEETSEARETH A
HITESE -

RBE-_ZT-_—F=A=+—-HILFER &
HERBEDRIT-AREZR RHZBEENXE
ZERHFERRCEBNAREFRIBAE 2 KRE
A o

NEBEE-E-_—F=A=+—BILtEER &
eI M 2 BRHGC EA AZ EE
BRI :

Amount (HK$'000)

REHE SE(ERTT
Audit services — Elite Partners CPA Limited B8R - ArTEEeHMERRERAR 1,250
Non-audit services — Elite Partners CPA Limited ERERE - BB HMERRERAR 309
Internal audit review — Elite Partners Risk Advisory Service NEEEH - BHERZARBEERAR 150
and ESG report Limited HE5
drafting itekEn
HERTR
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the individual attendance
record of the Directors at the Board meetings,
Committee meetings, the Remuneration Committee meeting, the
Nomination Committee meeting and the 2020 AGM are set out

the Audit
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below:
Attended/Eligible to attend
BHE SREHE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting 2020 AGM
Exg EUERE FHzZRe REZRE - ot 12
3 g 1 ] ] gl R¥AFXE
Executive Directors
BiTEE
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk 4/8 N/A N/A l 0N
FRELHE NEA TEH
Mr Su Xiaonong 8/8 N/A 11 N/A 0/
HERLE TEA TR
Mr Wang Xiaohua (appointed on 8 October 2020) 3/3 N/A N/A N/A N/A
TREFE(R-Z-_ZETA\REZA) TEHA TEH TR TEA
Mr. Li Zhongxia (resigned on 8 October 2020) 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 01
FMEXRERZ_ZETANREE) TER TR T
Independent non-executive Directors
BLFRTES
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki 8/8 3/3 11 11 11
FEELE
Mr. Cao Kuangyu 8/8 3/3 11 N/A 01
BERTEL TER
Mr. Ip Chi Wai 8/8 3/3 11 11 11
EEREE

5 45 0 43 A B O )

33

SRR



34

Corporate Governance Report

B &

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements in accordance with the statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 is
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has complied
with Principle C.2 of the CG Code by establishing appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees
management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main
features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

o /dentification: |dentify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

° Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the

residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the year ended
31 March 2021, no significant risk was identified.
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Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS0”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The components
of the framework are shown as follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provides the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

° Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should
be managed.

° Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried
out.

° Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

° Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.
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In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which
include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are
in possession of inside information are fully conversant with
their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

o Refer to inside information policy and procedures for more
procedures.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the year
ended 31 March 2021, no significant control deficiency was
identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“lA”) function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs
and tests of operating effectiveness.

An |IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted annually and the results are reported
to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s reviews,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks since the last annual review,
and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business
and the external environment; and (i) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal
control systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by
IA function and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. It is also considered that
the resources, staff qualifications and experience of relevant staff
were adequate and the training programmes and budget provided
were sufficient.

The Company appointed Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric (“Mr.
Chan”) as the Company Secretary since 30 September 2013 from
an external secretarial service provider. The primary corporate
contact person at the Company with the external secretarial
service provider is Mr. Li Zhongxia, the former executive Director,
from 1 April 2020 to 7 October 2020. Mr. Su Xiaonong, an
executive Director, was appointed the new primary corporate
contact person of the Company with the external secretarial
service provider effective from 8 October 2020.

In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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Shareholders may convene special general meeting (the “SGM”)
of the Company according to the Bye-Laws of the Company and
the provisions as set out in Section 74 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (the “Bermuda Act”). The Board shall, on the
requisition of Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly, to
convene the SGM. The requisition must state the purposes of the
SGM, and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company at
Unit 2708, 27/F., Convention Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may consist of several documents in
like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene the
SGM in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Bermuda Act, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The Company endeavors to maintain two way communications
with the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders
are encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through
the Company’s email at info@dingyi.hk or by mail to the principle
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 2708,
27/F., Convention Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. All the enquiries are dealt with in a timely manner.
The Shareholders are also encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting and the SGM and to put their enquiries to the
Board directly. Notices are duly circulated to the Shareholders in
order to ensure each Shareholder is informed to attend the annual
general meeting and the SGM. The Chairman of the Board, the
chairmen of each of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee, the senior management and
the Auditor will attend the annual general meeting and respond to
the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner. The procedures
for conducting a poll will be explained by the chairmen of the
annual general meeting and the SGM orally at the beginning of the
aforesaid meetings.
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Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act, either
any number of the Shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates or not less than 100
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give
to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
annual general meeting of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and
(b) circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
that meeting.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be deposited to
the above-stated principle place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong not less than six weeks before the meeting
(in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution);
and not less than one week before the meeting (in the case
of any other requisition) together with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the relevant expenses of the Company.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under the provisions as
stated in Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act.

For procedures for the Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director, please refer to the
information available on the website of the Company at
http:/www.dingyi.hk.
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The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
in March 2019.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company considers it appropriate
to align the dividend payments with profit and ensure that it
is able to pay dividend on a sustainable and affordable basis.
The Company may declare dividend in any financial year after
taking into consideration the Company’s financial position,
liquidity and cash flow, capital requirement for future growth,
economic conditions and any other factors to be considered by
the Directors. The Company will declare dividend out of retained
profit under certain circumstances, and therefore there can be
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
given year.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.dingyi.hk, where the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are posted.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2021.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RRFR_E-NFZARA-EREBER(E
BR®ED-

RRARR - REREBRE A &M MK 2K
EBAE  WHEREENARGENRAIAEE
EXNRE - KRR AIRNEFMMBRFELERE
ARBZHHRR - RBEERRERE - K
KERZETHR BERARAREEMERZ
FAMEMERREREE - ARAKRETIB
ATRFRERNPEIRE - F it #ARER
TRAEEFEEZZXETRKE

BEREBRER AQEKEBW
http://www.dingyi.hk BATI & R A A 7 E H48&
RER - MIEER CEEATHAREMER -

RBEE_T_—F=ZA=T—HLEFEAR X
RAZBEXHHRBEERES -


http://www.dingyi.hk

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report issued
by the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
elaborates on the concept of sustainable development and the
fulfilment of corporate social responsibility of the Group. The ESG
report has been prepared based on the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The ESG report provides a detailed description of the Group’s
various works in adherence to the principle of sustainable
development and the ESG performance of the Group during
the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 (the “reporting
period”). The ESG report focuses on the environmental and social
performance of the Group in Hong Kong and PRC during the
reporting period and the disclosure of relevant key performance
indicators.

The Group values the opinions of our stakeholders have significant
value in improving the ESG performances. Therefore, we are
committed to effective communication with different stakeholders
through a variety of communication channels to listen and respond
to the expectations and requirements of the stakeholders.

Stakeholders

BE - dhg KB

ARRIREWBEAA(RHEIFRE]) BEXRNIER
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B .

RE HekERMEFIASER-_Z=F
FOA—AE-_ZE-_—F=A=+—BHRBE(H
EHDETIREZRRIMNSEIE UK
AEETIRE 2 RERTHEMNRKIR - IRIE -
HEREARESESTPHAEEEREHAR
EERPEMNRRERAGERB  UHREHABED
RSB EMIERE -

AEBEGEHENENER HHEFRE
ehERTENRRBEEANEE - Btk B
BHNERLREARBETAKNELETE
BB KREBYOESOHENHERENR -

Means of communications and response

BRE BEROEAR
Shareholders e (General meeting
B ®R e BREKXE
e Company’s announcements
VNS N
e Email and telephone communications
o BEHMREFFAM
e Company’s website
o NAABU
Suppliers/service providers e Meetings
HeEm RERGE s BE
e Email and telephone communications
« BERREZAA
Customers e Customer hotlines
ER o FRAR
e Suggestion box
e ERM

e Email and telephone communications

+ BEREFEN
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Stakeholders

Means of communications and response

BRE BEROEFR

Employees e Meetings

ER s B
e Email and telephone communications
o EBREZEAEMN

The Public e Company’s announcements

oR VNS N

e Company’s website
o REIAU

For detailed information regarding the environmental, social and
corporate governance of the Group, please refer to the official
website (http:/www.dingyi.hk) and the annual report of the Group.
Should you have any opinions or suggestions on this report,
please email to the following mailbox: info@dingyi.hk.

Quality ESG governance is inextricably linked to the sustainable
development of business. The board of directors (the “Board”)
of the Group assumes the ESG management responsibility of
the Group. It is responsible for monitoring the formulation and
report of the ESG policy and identifying and controlling the risks
related to ESG to ensure appropriate ESG governance policies
are formulated. The Board delegates ESG management and
implementation powers to the management of each department,
and the management will implement the ESG policies and
measures established.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group obliges to minimize the environmental impact on
daily operations and be accountable for resource consumption.
During the reporting period, the Group was unaware of any non-
compliance issue with relevant laws and regulations related to the
environment.

EMISSIONS

During the reporting period, air pollutants emitted from the Group
such as sulphur oxides, nitrogen oxides and particulate matter
were mainly generated from vehicles used for transportation. To
minimize the impact on the environment, all vehicles are driven by
unleaded petrol and electricity respectively.

The main source of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions
is derived from the mobile combustion sources (“Scope 17),
acquired electricity (“Scope 2”) and other indirect emissions
(“Scope 3”).

The table below shows the emissions of air pollutants and
greenhouse gas during for the reporting period:

BBE -~ dhd BB R

AEBEEBRERLETEERIHREN
TE OUHERBERERE -EREHAN - AE
EMEZRRTAUINETERRENERER
B A e

BE

EREHAN - AEBEBRHZERITRY M
Ay BAEELDERBRNNTIEREESR
RHER SBERIERRENEE MEE
WADBERESTERENRS -

AEBREREBHBNEIBZERRNKAEED
MeR(EE—]) BEEH(EBE=DEE
fREZEER(EEZ]) -

TRITFTHEMAZR SRYLBEERED
PN E -

Unit Emission
B HWME
Air pollutants emissions
Z2 R.05 ) BE
Sulphur oxides g 108
malty I
Nitrogen oxides g 98
=Rl I
Particulate matter g 7
FERL) 5,
Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBEER
Scope 1 Tonnes of COe 20
HE— WS LiRE 8
Scope 2 Tonnes of COe 1,391
HE_— WE— S LiRE 8
Scope 3 Tonnes of COe 94
#HE= WE— S LiRE 8
Total (Scope 1, 2 & 3) Tonnes of COe 1,505
Bt (@EE— - Zk=) WS LiRE S
Emission intensity Tonnes of CO_e/million dollar of revenue 7
PR M_f{tREE BES Tk
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Wastes management

The Group adheres to the “3Rs” principle of waste management:
RECYCLE used cartridges to suppliers;

REDUCE paper used by double-sided printing and
communicating through electronic means for information
dissemination; and

REUSE office supplies and stationeries.

Waste production was mainly attributed to domestic wastes of
office; no hazardous waste produced.

ERXhER
AEBFTEEYEENIBRIRA

B ERENRHE T HER:
MOEREE BTEEITHEAEFSTAE
EER R

BEBRANAAREXA -

BEEYWHELETEZREBEAQ
ELXEEEREREY -

EEENR B E

Unit Production
B EEE
Non-hazardous waste Kg 4,648
BEEZEY Tr
Intensity Kg/million dollars of revenue 21
=7E TR/ SE8THR=E

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to upholding high environmental
standards in order to promote environmental friendliness.
Throughout the Group, the following actions have been taken to
reduce carbon and energy footprints:

— maintain the indoor temperature of offices at an optimal
temperature;

— adopt low-emissivity glass to block ultraviolet, which in
turn reduces the power consumption of the air conditioning

system;

— choosing environmentally friendly materials and energy-
saving lightings and electrical appliances;

— switch off idle electrical appliances; and

— regular maintenance and repair for motor vehicles to lower
energy waste.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Energy Unit Consumption
HE iR Bfr HEE
Electricity MWh 1,666
= 5 JK BB
Petrol MWh 86
2 H JK L B
Consumption intensity kWh/million dollars of revenue 8
HRERE FTERK SEETHR=

The Group’s office mainly consumes water for daily domestic use
and encounters no problem in getting water sources. To reduce
consumption of water resources, the Group displays water-
conservation slogans in toilets and inspects water pipes regularly
to prevent water leakage. Also, the Group encourages staff to
report all leaking faucets or pipes and turn off all taps when not
in use. During the reporting period, the Group have consumed
84,743 m? of water with the intensity of 375 m? of water per million
dollars of revenue.

The operations of the Group does not produce any tangible
products that require packaging; hence no packaging materials
were used while only incurred a limited usage of natural resources.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Due to the nature of the business, the Group does not have direct
and significant impacts on the environment and natural resources.
By taking the green initiatives mentioned above, the Group is
committed to mitigating the environmental impact and acting in a
manner that is both environmentally and socially responsible.

EMPLOYMENT

All labour-related issues in terms of compensation, working hours,
rest periods, recruitment and promotion, dismissal procedures,
equal opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination are in
compliance with the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, the
Labour Law of the PRC.

The Group is committed to creating a working atmosphere free of
discrimination and harassment. Discriminatory acts or motives in
all phases of employment on the grounds of nationality, physical
ability, gender, age and any other legally protected status are
strictly prohibited in the Group. Employees are encouraged to
report any unlawful discrimination or any form of harassment. The
Group investigates expeditiously and takes appropriate corrective
actions once we have confirmed the allegations.
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The Group strives to maintain the employee turnover rate at an
acceptable level so as to facilitate the accumulation of professional
skills and experience. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not become aware of any material non-compliance relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, discriminations.

AEBHAOBETRARRFRAZEZKFE
M EEXFRERERNER - £HREHR
AEEHMERRITMEFHLRER BER
EA TERME - - KERME FTERE 2K
MERBRRBEBONERERTS -

Percentage of

No. of staff total staff
HEIH#H
BIAE BS
Total number of employees EERE 75
Gender Bl
Male 2 31 41
Female Z 44 59
Age Group F e 5l
21—30 212 305% 16 21
31—40 312 405% 35 47
41 —50 41 E508% 6 8
51 or above S1pR A £ 18 24
Geographical region 1t P |7 15
PRC H 65 87
Hong Kong BE 10 13
Employee categories 1E 5 28 5
Senior management SREREE 8 11
Middle management FRERE 12 16
General staff —REBEI 55 73
Service period MR 7% F H
Less than 3 years iNCE:H 51 68
3 to 6 years 3E64F 10 13
Over 6 years 6F M F 14 19
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EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND SAFETY

Work safety is the key to the sustainable development of
the Group. We continue to strictly comply with the laws and
regulations related to occupational health and safety, such as the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, in our endeavour to
create a safe and healthy working environment for employees.
Rescue, fire and evacuation drills are conducted regularly to
increase employees’ awareness and involvement in accident
prevention. The Group also creates a pleasant and comfortable
workplace by carrying out various measures, including the
provision of adjustable seats and regular repair and maintenance
of office equipment.

Occupational health and safety statistics

WEBRER2HEEA
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RIRmARZ
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BEE - ASETERZERGE SEFEERE
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HBEERERAERES -

2021 2020
—E-FTF

Number of lost days due to work injury
IHBBEENBER

Number of work-related fatalities

HETEFRNRET A

Number of work injuries incident

IHBERFRR

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group encourages employees to participate in on-the-
job training and continuing education to create opportunity for
career development. On-the-job training is tailored to equip our
workplace with the necessary knowledge and skills relevant
to work. Other than providing diversified on-the-job training to
employees and ensuring employees meet the changing demands
in the Group and the market. By providing continuous training,
employees gain satisfaction and enjoyment from fulfilling their
roles and boost morale.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The operations of the Group require sophisticated training in
the field of finance and the planning of property development.
Hence the Group does not rely on labour or involve in any labour-
intensive work. As such, management is certain that the Group
would not be involved in child or forced labour. Further, the
employment policies of the Group focus on the capabilities of the
particular regardless of personal traits such as gender or ethnic
groups.
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The Group has strictly complied with the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China. Overtime work is compensated in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. According to
the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Provisions on
the Prohibition of Using Child Labour and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors and as stipulated
by the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China in terms of
employment management, there is neither child nor forced labour
in the Group’s operation.

During the reporting period, the Group did not aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations regarding child labour and
forced labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group’s business nature is service-oriented. The major supply
chain business partners of the Group are construction suppliers,
contractors and other office services suppliers. Apart from taking
into account the factors such as reputation, quality and the price-
performance ratio of suppliers, the Group also priorities suppliers
with a similar value in social responsibility and environmental
protection policy. During the reporting period, there are 20
designated suppliers and qualified sub-contractors in PRC for the
business of property development.

The Group has a preference on choosing products with higher
recycling value, fewer packing materials and higher energy
efficiency. Under the principles of green procurement, we also
assess the use of materials constantly to avoid overstocking and
waste of resources.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group strives to create maximum value for our customers
to gain their trust and support. The Group has outsourced
the construction works in property development projects to
independent construction firms. Thus a comprehensive supply
chain management is of great importance for the provision of
high-quality properties, which can ensure that customers are
healthy and safe. The Group has implemented control measures
at different stages and scopes of operation to protect customers’
benefits and boost satisfaction. During the reporting period, no
properties sold are recalled for safety and health reasons.

Further, internal control and compliance procedures are in place
to ensure compliance with all relevant laws and regulations. During
the reporting period, the Group did not aware of any violation of
any laws or regulations regarding to the products and services we
provided.
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The Group has earned trusted relationships with its broad
customer base through providing dedicated customer services.
In order to provide quality service to our clients, the Group
communicates with our customers and confirms their expectation
and direction prior to project commencement and actively
coordinated with customers in the process of providing service.

When customers lodge a complaint, the Group will make every
effort to investigate and resolve the disputes fairly and promptly.
During the reporting period, there are no complaints received.

Being a service provider with a range of financial services, the
Group has access to significant financial information and personal
data of the lessee, clients and potential customers; therefore,
ensuring the privacy of customer information is one of the issues
the Group cares about the most.

The Group has formulated a set of privacy principal in collection,
retention, use, security, openness and accessibility of information
to ensure all lessees’ information received is only for its intended
purpose and to prevent information leakage, such as:

o Access control to all information of lessees;

° Requiring employees not to retain and disclose any
confidential information about the Group’s business and
other sensitive, confidential data to any third party; and

o Requiring employees not to obtain any unnecessary
information from the lessees and its associated parties.

During the reporting period, the Group did not notice any
violations of laws or regulations regarding customer data
protection and advertising relating to the services provided.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

It is the unwavering principle of the Group to combat corruption
and advocate integrity and self-discipline. The Group continues
to strictly comply with the laws and regulations relating to bribery
prevention, extortion, fraud and money laundering, such as the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.

A mechanism for declaration of interest is in place by the Group to
prohibit employees engagement in any investment activities that
collide with the interest of the Group, and requires employees to
report any situations that may involve conflict of direct or indirect
interest with the Group. There is also a whistle-blowing policy to
provide a channel for employees to report any suspicious cases
of unethical behaviours in writing. The Group would report the
cases to the authorities if the case was found to be sufficiently
supported with evidence. During the Reporting period, no legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer, the
Group and our employees

The Group strictly implements a series of policies and procedures
to prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist financing.
Following measures have been taken to prevent and detect money
laundering and terrorist financing:

o carries out know-your-client procedures by verifying
customers’ identity with reference to a reliable and
independent source of documents;

o reports any suspicious transactions to the relevant
government department; and

° repayments and deposits are only made by cheque, bank
transfer with customers’ bank accounts.

During the reporting period, The Group did not become aware
of any non-compliances of laws and regulations relating to
corruption, fraud, money laundering and bribery in Hong Kong
and China.

CONTRIBUTION TO SOCIETY

While striving for business development, the Group also
persistently participates in charity activities with a view of paying
back to the community. The Group also encourages employees
to actively participate in various volunteer activities. In September
2020, our employees in Zhanjiang participated in a poverty
alleviation activity. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to
uphold the principle of being responsible for its customers,
employees, business partners, shareholders and society, to
strengthen the connection and communication, and to seek
further opportunities to develop a harmonious relationship with
each stakeholder.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RR5
BHHESER BERABERAEE—EN
JREI - NEEEEEBSETEP R - BR -
MEFROLREFEARBEOEEIER - (P LK
iR B o

AEBEZETABENHNZARGE BT AAR
FEAREEANDFRNKREES  LHAES
ERTIMEARREMEAREAERAHEN
BHRNER - AEBTOHERRBEK B
BETRHERE  UERFABHREMARN T
BRI/ -WERREBERDEBRISE AKX
SEeNERER®RE - EREHA - HESH
HBETA AEEREINESTRREREZER

BHL ¢

AEBEBRBERE R LERERRREZRER
BN FECEEETHNBRRERF - A%
B 2 BREUCA T 2 5 By Lk R AR R & 8 e B M
MFESEEEY:

BRBEAEBLXMHRERETFSN -
RAETEBIENEFRT

s REBRBAHFAERTAAIRRIS: &

s BYURKGFHREAUXRE EEFPHNIRTT
BRPETRITERN S AIEL -

EREHRN AEEHERREFTERTEE
ERTETERES  MF ARERBHEN
ERERMIBNR

AR

EEHEREBORAR AKETRHESRE
ZEE NLNBEHE AKENXBETEGE
SMEBELERES - R_Z_TFAA - &M
ERINEIZMT - RKEESY - RERK
BAMBEBERAHES, BT E¥BBH K
REeaBENRA - WASMBRYEKLEE -
EREZHEEIFNEZIRBRARK -



The Directors present this report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2021.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2021 analysed by reportable segments are set out in Note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2021 are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the year under review using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Financial Summary
on pages 2 and 3 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 74
and 75 of this annual report. No interim dividend was paid during
the year. The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2021.

Movements in the share capital and convertible bonds during the
year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in Notes 29 and 30 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out on pages 78 to 79
of this annual report and Note 40a to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

As at 31 March 2021, there is no reserve of the Company which is
available for distribution to Shareholders (2020: nil).
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Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are
shown on pages 2 and 3 and on pages 14 to 17 respectively of
this annual report.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 10% of the Group’s total revenue and
the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 81% of the Group’s
total purchases. None of the Directors, their associates nor any
Shareholder (whom to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest
in the Group’s five largest suppliers or five largest customers.

The Group employed 75 full-time staff under its subsidiaries
globally as at 31 March 2021 (2020: 76). Total staff costs
amounted to approximately HK$15 million for the year ended 31
March 2021 (2020: HK$101 million). The remuneration policies of
the Group are reviewed periodically on the basis of job nature,
market trend, company performance and individual performance.
Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a discretionary
basis, retirement schemes and the share option scheme of the
Company (the “Share Option Scheme”).

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.
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The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets
and stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support
are values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation
and benefits policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well
as the individual performance of employees. Other fringe benefits,
mandatory provident fund and share options are provided to retain
loyal employees with the aim to form a professional staff and
management team that can bring the Group to different levels of
success.

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. Our business model is to maintain and build on our
strong relationships within our client base. Our mission is to
provide the finest service to our customers and the Group is
constantly looking ways to improve customer relations through
enhanced services. Regarding the securities trading and
loan financing businesses, the Group has no major suppliers.
Whereas regarding the other principal businesses, the Group has
maintained good relationship with the suppliers to ensure their
continued support to the Group in the foreseeable future.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2021 and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)

Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wang Xiaohua (appointed on 8 October 2020)
Mr. Li Zhongxia (resigned on 8 October 2020)

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Ip Chi Wai

In accordance with bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Wang
Xiaohua and Mr. Cao Kuangyu shall retire from office and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The directors who have served on the boards of directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2021 and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk
Mr. Su Xiaonong
Ms. Lo Kwan

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
information of the Director is set out below:

—  Mr. Chow Shiu Ki resigned as an independent non-executive
director of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (stock
code: 8090) with effect from 5 March 2021, which was
delisted from GEM on 12 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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The Company has received annual written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence during the year ended 31 March 2021 and all of
them are still being considered to be independent.

None of the Directors who proposed for re-election at the annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” as set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance relating to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 March 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had
no contract entered into in respect of the management or
administration of the overall business or any material business.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, none of the Directors had
interests in business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code were as follows:

RZEZ—F=ZA=Z+—H XRBEERE
BITBRABRARAREEBEZEZE(EFERE
FLHEGA(EBFRBEEGDEXVE) 2
R HERNDERESFTAEBSCREESFR
HEKRMEXVEETRFSD HMERRF R
BIXMZEa AR (BEREEFRBER
Bz BBIEX W BARIEEE 2= RAE)
SV BERBERARGTREBEFSFRBERME
2GR EATFECELMAZEZRAE -
SR BEEETRESITNERNRR KRB
R EAEWT:

Approximate
percentage of
total number of

Number of issued shares
Number of underlying of the Company
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares Total (Note 1)
T3
BERTRA
-}
#uask
EEfE 5 EERNA HRRGHHE My (Hiit1)
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (“Mr. Li") Interest of controlled 3,006,745,405 - 3,006,745,405
FRERE(ERE) corporation (Note 2)
REGEEER (H#2)
Beneficial owner 184,560,000 1,232,000,000 1,416,560,000
ERBBA (Note 3)
(H#3)
4,483,305,405 60.94%
Mr. Su Xiaonong Beneficial owner 14,655,000 50,000,000 64,655,000 0.88%
BEERLE ExBBEA (Note 4)
(Hit4)
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Notes:

1.

Based on 7,357,008,015 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at
31 March 2021.

These shares were held by WCIL as to 3,053,270,405 shares, WAML as
to 11,475,000 shares and WMGL as to 2,000,000 shares. WCIL, WAML
and WMGL were wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li. Pursuant to
the SFO, Mr. Li was deemed to be interested in these 3,066,745,405
shares.

These underlying shares comprised (i) 7,000,000 share options granted
on 11 April 2019 under the Share Option Scheme at the exercise price
of HK$0.456 per share and (i) 1,225,000,000 conversion shares which
will be issued and allotted upon full conversion of the convertible bonds
in the principal amount of HK$980,000,000 issued by the Company to
Mr. Li on 26 March 2018 at the initial conversion price of HK$0.80 per
share.

These underlying shares were share options granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme on 11 April 2019 at the exercise price
of HK$0.456 per share.

EE
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As at 31 March 2021, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the persons or corporations other than the Director or chief
executive of the Company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

R-B-—F=A=+-B RALFAEER
ETEFBRABHM T ALIEBEAR
EERTETHABBRINRAAT RS KA
B AR ) 70 P 7 78 0 80 IO 8 T AR B 2B 5 % A
SR DI ES06IETE 2 SR WA ES RAR
m

Approximate
percentage of
total number of
issued shares

Name of substantial Number of Number of of the Company

Shareholders Capacity ordinary shares underlying shares Total (Note 1)

T3

BERTERA

-}

BEER HHE kR #uask

TERENE 4R 51 L fE| BB Y (Hiit1)

WCIL (Note 2) Beneficial owner 3,0563,270,405 - 3,0563,270,405 41.50%
XBEARH#2) ERERA

China Shipbuilding Beneficial owner 908,685,000 - 908,685,000 12.35%
Capital Limited ERBBA

TEMBELERAA
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Notes:

1. Based on 7,357,008,015 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at
31 March 2021.

2. WCIL was wholly-owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Li Kwong Yuk was deemed to be interested in these shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, so far as is known
to the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no other
person has interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or, were
directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

On 21 September 2012, the Shareholders approved the adoption
of the Share Option Scheme. A summary of the principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the
Listing Rules, are as follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant the share options to the eligible participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
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Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant
share options to the following persons or entities (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for shares in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules:

(@) any employee (whether full-time or part-time and including
the Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) or any entity in which any member of the
Group holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);

(b) any Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), any Subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

(f)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(9) any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant, individual
or entity who in the opinion of the Directors has contributed
or will contribute to the growth and development of the
Group;

(hy any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group; and

(i) any company wholly-owned by one or more Eligible
Participants.
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The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options and the share options granted
under any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding share options) to each grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the
Company for the time being.

In respect of any particular option, such period as the Directors
may determine, which may not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the relevant share options.

There is no minimum period required under the Share Option
Scheme for holding of the share options before it can be
exercised.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance
for a period of 21 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant
of the option shall be regarded as having been accepted when the
duplicate of the letter by the grantee together with a remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by the Company.

The exercise price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 21 September 2012 to make an offer for the grant
of a share option.
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At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18
September 2019, the scheme mandate limit for the Share Option
Scheme was refreshed and approved by the then Shareholders
to allow the Company to issue a maximum of 735,306,071
share options under the Share Option Scheme, representing
approximately 9.99% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company (i.e. 7,357,008,015 shares) as at 31 March 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, (i) no share options
were granted; (ii) 482,760,000 share options lapsed; and (iii) no
share options were exercised, cancelled and re-classified. The
total number of the shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 1,919,306,071, representing approximately
26.09% of the total number of issued shares of the Company (i.e.
7,357,008,015 shares) as at the date of this report.

The movements in the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2021 are shown
below:

RZZE—AFALATNBEITZARAABRERE
FREL BREFIZASRERBLEN
WEERREME  UATARFRBER
st &3 1T & %735,306,071 B I E - HER
KRR ZE_—F=ZA=Z=+—HZEBEB1TRKR
19 48 85 (B17,357,008,0158% A& 19) 2 499.99% o

RBE_ZT_—F=A=t—HLEFERA ()

B M) EBRBEETE FTHERER
DR RIBERET S A RBITIROEEE
1,919,306,071% - HHE R AR A R A #H & B &
B3 17 I {7 48 8 (BN7,357,008,015/% I 17) 2 49
26.09% o

RBE-_Z_—$=A=+—HILEFER R
EREBREEMROZBEREZEDFBDN
TRAR:

Number of share options
RRiEnE
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At Date of grant Validity ~ Exercise price
Name or category 1 April during during during during 31 March of share period of of share
of participant 2020 the year the year the year the year 2021 options share options options
gt - 3.3 RZ8Z-% L]
SREREHEN BA-A REARL REATE RERES RER%®  ZR=+-H RiEAM BRERNN RREGHR
HKS per share
ghEL
Executive Directors
UiEs
Mr. Li Kiwong Yuk 5,000,000 - - - (5,000,000 - 28-12-2015 212-2015t0 0792
FRBEE 27-12-2020
ZE-RF+-ACTNR ZE-REtCA-tARE
CRIRESCACTHA
7,000,000 - - - - 7,000,000 1-4-2019 11-4-2019 to 0.456
10-4-2024
ZZ-hERAT-A ZE-NERAT-RE
ZZZRERATA
Mr. Su Xiaonong 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000 1-4-2019 14201910 0.456
BERLE 10-4-2024
Z3-AERAT-A “F-NERAT-RE
ZTZRERATA
Mr. Li Zhongxia (resigned 50,000,000 - - - (50,000,000 - 11-4-2019 1420190 0.456
on 8 October 2020) 10-4-2024
FRERE(NC3-5F Z3-AERAT-A “E-NERAT-RE
tRNREE) ZECRERATA
Sub-total
gt 112,000,000 - - - (65,000,000) 57,000,000

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Report of the Directors

HHFgHRLE
Number of share options
RN
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At Date of grant Validity  Exercise price
Name or category 1 April during during during during 31 March of share period of of share
of participant 2020 the year the year the year the year 2021 options share options options
RZB28% RZBZ-% BhE
SHERZHEN mA-B RERRH RERTE RERES RER%N  =R=+-R RitAH BRETYN BREGER
HKS per share
ghRE%
Others
it
Employess 53,000,000 = - - (53,000,000) - 19422016 19-12-2016 o 0.738
&3 18-12-2021
ZE-RETZATAR ZE-RETZATAEE
Z3T-EtZATIA
280,300,000 - - - (49,300,000 231,000,000 1-4-2019 142019 to 0.456
10-4-2024
Z3-hERAT-A ZZ-NEBRT-BE
ZZZRERATA
Other eligible participants 50,000,000 - - - (50,000,000 - 11112015 11-11-2015 0 0638
RS EE 10112020
“E-RET-At-R CE-RnEt-At-EE
ZECEET-FH
275,460,000 - - - (275,460,000) - 28122015 2842201510 0792
27-12-2020
ZE-REFZACTNE ZE-RETCACTNRE
ZRZEETZACTHA
467,000,000 - - - - 467,000,000 19-12-2016 19-12-2016 to 0738
18-12-2021
ZE-RETIATAR ZE-RETCATARE
ZBZ-E+ZRT/A
100,000,000 - - - - 100,000,000 19-10-2017 19-10-2017t0 0.488
18-10-2022
ZE-LETATAR ZE-tETATAAR
ZE2ZEHATIR
329,000,000 - - - - 329,000,000 11-4-2019 1420190 0.456
10-4-2024
Z5-NERAT-H Z3-NERAT-RE
Z3ZREMATA
Sub-total
Nt 1,554,760,000 - - - (427,760,000 1,127,000,000
Total
i 1,666,760,000 - - - (482,760,000)  1,184,000,000
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The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before
the dates on which the share options were granted, i.e. 18 April
2013, 25 April 2013, 2 February 2015, 10 November 2015, 24
December 2015, 16 December 2016, 18 October 2017 and 11
April 2019, were HK$0.37, HK$0.37, HK$0.46, HK$0.63, HK$0.79,
HK$0.74, HK$0.46 and HK$0.455 per share respectively.

The significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in
Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements and include
transactions that constitute connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions for which the disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules have been complied.

Details of the Company’s retirement benefits scheme are set out
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “OUTSTANDING
CONVERTIBLE BONDS” in Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 11 to 12 of this annual report and the section headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” on pages 59 to 64 of this report, at no
time during the year ended 31 March 2021 were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any Directors or their respective spouse
or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out on pages 22 to 40 in this annual report.
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The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of
business operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a
balance between the quality and efficiency of our services and
the minimization of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental
degradation. Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive
approach to effect internal and external communications by
means of telephone, emails and conferences or such other
communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Also, we are able to minimize physical travelling and
printing.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include
strategic, operational and financial risks.

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge
to the external environments. The Group will invest in projects
and investments based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and expectation. Given the rapid change of
unforeseeable external environments in the financial and equity
markets, the Group is facing significant strategic risks on its
investments when changing the strategic plans to adopt the
unexpected changes of external environments.

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise,
resulting from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and
compliance matters, are adequately managed.

The principal financial risks are set out in Note 33(b) to
the consolidated financial statements headed “FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS” — “Financial risk management objectives and
policies”.

Save for disclosed in the section headed “OUTSTANDING
CONVERTIBLE BONDS” in Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 11 to 12 of this annual report and the section headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” on pages 59 to 64 of this report,
the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements
during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director or other
officer of the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for
the time being of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities,
which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has taken out insurance against all losses and liabilities associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought against
Directors and other officers of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on it.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report.

Elite Partners CPA Limited was appointed as the Auditor, following
the retirement of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, at the 2020 AGM.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have
been audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited, which retires and,
being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual meeting for the re-appointment of Elite
Partners CPA Limited as the Auditor.

By order of the Board

LI Kwong Yuk
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2021
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £ —F —

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dingyi
Group Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to
192, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Refer to Notes 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

MEENER

AREAFTEERBERMANEXZHE AR
HAPMAEHFPBERROBTRSEENTIH -
ELFHERERMBABEBAMHYBERERK
HABRBETREEN KM TEHELS
HEEHEBNER -

F2HA M B RRMES0 -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEfmErmAEEM@BEHER

During the year ended 31 March 2021, gain on modification
of the convertible bonds of approximately HK69,321,000 are
recognised.

REBEE-_ZE-_—F=ZA=+—BLFE"
A AR B %5 2 W & 4978 #569,321,0007T ©

BEEEERER

The Group has applied appropriate valuation techniques to
determine the fair values of the liability component on the
date of modification that are not quoted in active market.
AEBCDCERBBEENHERMUAEERNETEBRNERT
BUERRENAESS P AAE -

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Our audit procedures were designed to challenge
the assumptions and critical judgments adopted by
the Group in determining the fair value of the liability
component on the date of modification of the
convertible bonds and the derivative financial assets
in respect of early redemption options of convertible
bonds.

BN EREFEEER ESEREEEEA
BIREFEHNEEROINEBREFELATRRKRE
FHEZUTEERIAZ AR BERANKRE &
] i

We have assessed the valuation methodology and
challenged the inputs and assumptions used in the
valuation and validated the observable inputs using
external market data.
BMEAEEEFEZRERNHEREABNE A
BERBRARKBINBT SHBEZEASREH
ANEIE -



Key audit matter

MEEHER

Independent Auditor’s Report
38 7 A% B e

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEfmEmAEEMEBEHER

We have identified the valuation and accounting treatment of
convertible bonds and derivative financial instruments as a
key audit matter because of its complexity and it involves a
significant degree of judgment made by the management in
determining the fair value.
BMEBARREFSRITEEMITAZTHREFTERES
EHBARBARENSEE WHREEHEUEREIRER
BREEAANEELNHAB s EREE -

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

MEEHER

FLHA PR3 -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEfMMmEdnAEEREEHER

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had loan and interest
receivables measured at amortised cost amounted to
approximately HK$2,195,162,000 and allowance for
impairment of approximately HK$19,696,000 has been
reversed during the year ended 31 March 2021.
RZEBEZ—F=A=+T—8 E5EZEEXNTTENEY
ERLF BN A BE2105,162,000t M REE-_T-_—F
ZA=+T—BI-FE B TR ERE L% #19,696,0007T °

We have identified the ECL for loan and interest receivables
as a key audit matter because the determination of ECL for
loan and interest receivables are based on management’s
estimation by taking into account the credit loss experience,
repayment history, financial background and financial
condition of each borrower, all of which involve a significant
degree of management judgment.
BPMESRUERENENFEHREEEREAR RARES
FE O DEARETERRERLRNENEHREEBRRZER
EREMRRERANGEEERELR EXEL UKS
SRMBRAELENGES  MAEEEH S REREH B
BERIEE-

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge
management’s basis and judgment in determining
allowance for impairment of loan and interest
receivables as at 31 March 2021, including the
identification of credit impaired loan and interest
receivables and estimated loss rates applied to
each customer.

BB REFEEEREBEEEN _T_—
AT BZEREREFEZRERE 2 EE
Ry PEBINEERBEBZEEKERENER
HEBUEFPERAZMETEEX -

We have evaluated management’s assessment
of the internal credit rating of the loan and
interest receivables by reference to the credit
loss experience, customers’ repayment history,
financial background and financial condition of each
borrower and subsequent settlement information.

HMETHEBREHRREREFNEORNEEE
HRZRE N2ERERANSEBRALSR &
FERESL  MBESEVBRAAREREEER -

We have also tested the accuracy of a selection of
input data used in the ECL model.
BHMAEAAEREEEERXERCERH A
R EEIE -
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The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Wai Nam, William with practising
certificate number: PO5957.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 June 2021

10th Floor,

8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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2021 2020
—BC-—% “T-TF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
BT 3% BR¥TT BETT
Revenue WA 6 226,069 184,876
Cost of sales HEK A (17,681) (6,215)
Gross profit EH 208,388 178,661
Other income Hfth g A 8 2,506 223
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MRBAR 2K 37 - 8,599
Loss on early redemption of convertible bonds R R E B AJ &k E 42 BB 30(ii) = (129)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value HERIE R IZ A A E R IE
through profit or loss LERMEEES (993) (1,925)
Gain/(loss) arising from financial assets at fair REREEREANEREZ
value through profit or loss CRMEEELZWE/(EE) 32,688 (44,096)
Loss arising from derivative financial assets NMESHEEELECER - (6,043)
Gain on modification of convertible bonds IR RES W= 69,321 42,327
Reversal/(provision) of allowance for impairment %@ /(;H2) EW E R LA B8 2
of loan and interest receivables BERE 19,696 (178,438)
Share-based payments expenses AR D B AR 2R - (152,347)
Selling and distribution costs HERDERE (14,496) (5,628)
General and administrative expenses —RERITBER (45,359) (55,850)
Finance costs BE KA 9 (156,475) (141,825)
Profit/(loss) before tax BREAIRF,(EE) 10 115,276 (356,471)
Income tax (expense)/credit M (BmM),/Ee 12 (72,341) 7,978
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the KRR BEABEEE
owners of the Company BH,/(E18) 42,935 (348,493)
Earnings/(loss) per share SRR (GR)
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARRESE GBI 14 0.58 4.75)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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2021 2020
—BC-—% “T-TF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B = BETT BETT
Profit/(loss) for the year EERHN (HR) 42,935 (348,493)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FEHEfMESKA (BR)
for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently REAHEE D EE B 2
fo profit or loss: EE:
Exchange difference arising on translating BEBINEBELACELZSE
foreign operations 215,101 (147,645)
Reclassification adjustments for the cumulative R HEFI EKE AR Z
exchange difference included in profit or loss LEFERERCEN
upon disposal of foreign operations DEEE 37 - (493)
Total other comprehensive income/(expense) FEEMGEEHRA (BB BHE
for the year 215,101 (148,138)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the ~ AR R HEAAELEEEHZA
year attributable to the owners of the Company WA /(& )45 258,036 (496,631)

S8 4 I 438 A PR 2
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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2021 2020
—B-—-§% _Z_%TF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & BETR BETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment property HEME 15 15,763 15,392
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERZE 16 14,295 16,470
Right-of-use assets CRAREE 17 10,543 16,041
Prepayments and deposits BRRBERES 22 2,881 2,302
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE 31 39,573 43,400
83,055 93,605
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 7,250 7,250
Properties under development BRPYE 18 1,001,215 518,557
Completed properties held for sale BEHENTRIYE 19 106,232 115,172
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits ~ HMEWEFR - BNAERZ S 22 222,451 74,484
Loan and interest receivables & W& R R A B 23 2,195,162 1,953,642
Financial asset at fair value through REZEEALEREEZ
profit or loss TREE 20 34,222 4,191
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEEY 24 306,515 21,367
3,873,047 2,694,663
Current liabilities mEBAR
Trade and other payables B 5 & CE At FE 15 BR K 26 47,033 109,675
Contract liabilities aRAaE 26 741,020 16,723
Amount due to a related company FE — g & A A BR 3K 25 15,239 7,211
Amount due to a director ERN—2ESHIAE 25 - 26,479
Tax payables PRI 137,742 83,624
Lease liabilities HE&E 17 7,735 8,053
Convertible bonds AR &R 30 327,971 367,591
Promissory note AELRE 28 5,389 5,000
1,282,129 624,356
Net current assets nEEERE 2,590,918 2,070,307
Total assets less current liabilities REERTDARE 2,673,973 2,163,912

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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2021 2020
—B-—-§% _Z_%ZTF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & BETR BETT
Capital and reserves BER R
Share capital & & 29 73,570 73,570
Reserves s 1,400,299 1,142,263
Total equity HES 1,473,869 1,215,833
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Convertible bonds iR ES 30 813,277 740,476
Bank borrowing RITERN 27 383,884 197,064
Lease liabilities HEARE 17 - 5,527
Deferred tax liabilities EXEHIBEE 31 2,943 5,012
1,200,104 948,079
2,673,973 2,163,912

EHMBREANR_FZ_—FXA_1+/\HAE

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2021
and are signed on its behalf by:

EFEMENRRETBRIATIEERKRES:

LI Kwong Yuk SU Xiaonong
Ekiz snR
Director Director

EFE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Attributable to the owners of the Company

SATRAARE
Convertible
Capital bonds -
redemption Other Exchange equity
Share reserve  Share option reserve fluctuation conversion  Accumulated Total
Share capital premium (Note i) reserve (Note fi reserve reserve losses equity
23
ROER G Ef THERS-
R% RAER s) RRERE (G HDER NRERER 2HER #ie
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS$'000
i LS BRI AR AR BETT TR BRI BT BETT
At Agril 2019 R-E-15B5-A 73281 3252,105 1 297341 (195,421 231 O NG 1531378
Loss for the year ZEEE - - - - - - - 348,499 348,499)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year EREMGAER
— Exchange difference arising on translating -BEBNERELL
foreign perations EXzE - - - - - (147,645) - - (147,645)
— Reclassification adjustments for the cumulative  ~REEFHEREFARE 2 23
exchange difference included inprofitorlossupon ~~ EX# B2 ENAEAE
disposal of foreign operations - - - - - (493) - - (493)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FERAERLE - - - - - (148,138) - (348,493) (496,631)
Early redemption of convertiole bonds REEOTERES 30i) = - = = - - (551) = (551)
Transfer of reserves upon early redemption of RESRETARERREE
convertible bonds 1] 30() - - - - - - 8,650) 8650 -
Issue of shares upon conversion of comvertible bonds K& BT R R EFHRIRA 300 & () 543 69,311 - - - - 32,617) - 37237
Modffcation of convertible bonds BiTARES 30 - - - - - - (112,857) 12,857 =
Shares repurchased and cancelled BRHBEREH 2i) (254) 7.6%9) - - - - - - (7.047)
Recognition of equity-setfled share-based ERESEEIRABEARNR
payment vested 58 35 S = S 152,347 S = S - 152,347
Share options lapsed BARERE % - - - (5913 = = = 5913 =
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-EF=f=1-H 73,570 3,313,728 14 443,765 (795,421) (220,509) 824,849 (2,424,158) 1,215,833

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

o B B i 5 B R

Attributable to the owners of the Company

SARNHARY
Convertible
Capital bonds -
redemption Other Exchange equity
Share reserve  Share option reserve fluctuation conversion  Accumulated Total
Share capital premium (Note i) reserve (Note fi reserve reserve losses equity
#%
RE&H AhER Ef TRER%-
k% RAER s) RRERE (K3 HDER RANARE ZHER #na
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS$'000
i LS BRI L AR BETR TR L BT Lo
At 1 April 2020 RZZ-E%RA-A 73,570 3,313,728 14 443,765 (795,421) (220,509) 824,849 (2,424,158) 1,215,833
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - 42,935 42,935
Other comprehensive expenses for the year EREMGARER
— Exchange difference arising on translating -BERNERELL
foreign operations EizR - - - - - 215,101 - - 215,101
Total comprehensive expenses for the year SERAERRLE - - - - - 215,101 - 42,93 238,036
Redemption of convertiole bonds BomH 30(iv) - - - - - - (26,361) 26,361 -
Modffcation of convertible bonds BiTARES 30() - - - - - - (69,784) 69,784 -
Share options lapsed BARERE - - - (148,851) - - - 148,851 -
A3 March 2021 RoF-EZRt-R BE0 3 n 204914 (195,421 (5.408) BT (%62 1473860
Notes: B 5 -
(i) Capital redemption reserve in accordance with law of Bermuda which (i) BABERFEEBEERE AN EARATATH#
has been paid out of the distributable reserves of the Company. DIREEBZAT -
(i) Other reserve represents: (iy EHmfEEE:
(@ The change in the Group’s ownership interests in existing @ ZAEEBRBEEWBARZHEREE=ZZE

subsidiaries that do not result in loss of control over those
subsidiaries; and

(b) The recognition of deemed contribution from Mr. Li Kwong
Yuk (“Mr. Li”") under merger accounting upon the completion of
acquisition of United Faith Investments Limited (“United Faith”)
and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“United Faith Group”) on 26 March 2018, representing the
differences amongst the investment cost for the acquisition of
United Faith Group and the amount due to related companies,
and elimination of the share capital of the United Faith.

Bif G RAKE Y E AR K EES
%R

RZE—N\EFE=ZA=+"BxRKER{E
EEERARATEENDERENBARTIT
XHEBBEFEEDEERR A H I
TEREEETFREDBIEMRREWRE
EEsEEZRENNEEMNBEQRKER
ZEMEZEEREERANLEHE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
B ERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = ZF =——F=H=+—HI F&F

2021 2020
—EBZ-§ —ZCEZF
HK$°000 HK$'000

ERTR BETT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEED
Profit/(loss) before tax BREAAF(E8) 115,276 (356,471)
Adjustments for: ERAENTEE:
Bank interest income BATF BIA (624) (87)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HNB AR W - (8,599)
Gain on modification of convertible bonds CHEEAL STl (69,321) (42,327)
Finance costs EE DN 156,475 141,825
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - BiERREITE 3,269 4,805
Depreciation of investment property BEMERE 843 823
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 9,800 12,595
Gain on lease modification HEBT 2 W= - 97)
Loss arising from derivative financial assets TESsMEEEE2ER - 6,043
(Gain)/loss arising from financial assets at fair RNEZREALBERE 22
value through profit or loss BEEH2Wx) /B (32,688) 44,096
Loss on early redemption of convertible bonds 12 % B B A # % & % 2 &5 18 - 129
(Reversal)/provision of allowance for (BE),/FHRERER KA E
impairment of loan and interest receivables 2 BERE (19,696) 178,438
Share-based payments expenses IBRHAEER AL - 152,347
Operating cash flows before movements BELZCEDA L RERERE
in working capital 163,334 133,520
Decrease in inventories FERD - 34
Increase in properties under development BERAWMELMN (427,875) (148,760)
Decrease in completed properties held for BELREERTIWERD
sale 17,681 6,078
Increase in other receivables, prepayments HiEWERY  BRRERGEL &d
and deposits 0 (138,589) (55,409)
Increase in loan and interest receivables JE UL B 3R R A B2 A0 (36,455) (93,392)
Changes on fair value of financial asset at fair REZERANEEE 2 &
value through profit or loss BEAREEY 2,657 (12,649)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other BHREMEMERRCRD), /1Em
payables (21,613) 17,030
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities aHaEEn/ CRd) 701,622 (903)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BEMS/(FTRZEE 260,762 (154,451)
Income tax paid BTG R (24,930) (7,980)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) #EZEBR#& (FAB)<R&BE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 235,832 (162,431)
80  DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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2021 2020
—EBZ-§ —ZCEZF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P & BETT BT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZD
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR ZE &R HIFHE 37 - 113)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  BEW % - BERR (29) (66)
Interest received BUF & 624 87
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) #EEZEM® (FA)ZH&$#
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 595 (92)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Repayment to a director EET—RES (28,940) =
Advance from a director PRRE—RES - 6,593
Advance from a related company BERE—HBAERR 8,612 =
Interest paid BRFE (63,660) (22,271)
Payments on repurchase of shares B B Bl 2 13 3% - (7,947)
Proceeds from issuance of promissory note TR N ZE 2 FERE - 5,000
New bank borrowing raised HEERITER 229,620 197,064
Repayment of bank borrowing EEBRITER (63,720 =
Repayment of convertible bonds EEIRRES (32,614) (10,211)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEaR (10,604) (12,478)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEEHELE RS BT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 38,694 155,750
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRBSEREMEN (D) BE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 275,121 (6,773)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REB—AZHE&ER
AT 1 APRIL BeEEY 21,367 29,844
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates ~ YMNEEXREEH v § & 10,027 (1,704)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B=A=+-AZ
AT 31 MARCH HeRESERD 24 306,515 21,367
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Dingyi Group Investment Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the
annual report.

The directors of the Company regard Wincon Capital
Investment Limited (“Wincon Capital”), a private limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
as the immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company.

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in loan
financing, securities trading and properties development.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollar (“HK$'000”), unless
otherwise stated, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. Other than those subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
whose functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”), the
functional currency of its subsidiaries is HK$.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“"HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirement
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“HKCQO”) Cap. 622.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.
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HRERERARERIANEAEZET S
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RENDIAEBRKE -

ARERRFFERRMESE2BERRNE
KFRXZTHEBEEMRDMKERAR
AXNzER MAmEERSAEE
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EERREMBLEENGERHYE
EXAEEERMEEZEEXRARAL
RE - RZEEHUBBRRPIEFER S
IBRBERECANRBNREEEEE
WA T SEGIN - BRBEMBFREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Going concern basis

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has cash and cash
equivalent of approximately HK$306,515,000 and incurred
net operating cash inflows of approximately HK$228,983,000
for the year ended 31 March 2021. Convertible bonds and
promissory note totaling approximately HK$333,360,000
will be matured within the coming twelve months. And the
Group has capital and other commitments of approximately
HK$126,245,000 as disclosed in Note 34 and incurred a
net profit of approximately HK$42,935,000, and the Group’s
ability to meet these liquidity requirements depends on its
ability to generate sufficient net cash inflows from future
operations and/or other source.

Having considered (i) the unutilised banking facilities
of approximately HK$52,394,000 as at 31 March 2021,
(i) the extension of the maturity of convertible bonds
with aggregated principal amount of HK$279,500,000
(with aggregated carrying amount of approximately
HK$327,971,000 as at 31 March 2021) as detailed in Note 44,
and (iii) cash flow projections for the year ending 31 March
2022, the directors of the Company are satisfied that the
Group is able to meet in full its financial obligations as they
fall due for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Going concern basis (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
restate the values of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets as current assets. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that would result
from the failure of the Group to continue in business as a
going concern.

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1
April 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

HHREER#

MARBRGELEBRFECEEELE
A ATREELAEABEEBEERIE
BEZENAKROESHE  RAUREEZE
MARKEBEFRBEBERBERDEES
HOBERRDEE VBBRRAKERE
AEBRERSELEEERBERER
B E MM ERFHE -

FFEEENENHTEMEREEMNE
LIRS

RAFE AEERHEGHUBHRERED
BEXEAEEVBHREELDHEHSE
RZBUEEBITRARATEE SR
EFEMZEEMBREEAEIT A
ER-ZE_TFHNA-—BXZ2RFABNF
= 5 ) o i) A2 2

FEEGERET BEANEER
HREBEEER
R FE 85 (B FT
)
FEEVHREREL XBZEE
ERLACCHIEN)
FEEVHMEED FRELNRE
FOW - AEE
T RIS 3957
SN R R
EFEANETR(E

HEN)

RAFERBELMSG ®EER P LK
SERZIEMETANIARIHET R EER
FEEVBREEALBHAEERAE
ERBEFEZHBERBARMRIE X
EHMBRERABIBEFTREMNEKX

S 48
=

5 45 0 43 A B O )

85

SRR



86

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 F B 25 e e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS

4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 16
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Insurance Contracts
and the related
Amendments?
Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions®
Reference to the
Conceptual Framwork?
Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 25

Sale of Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture?

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’

Property, Plant and
Equipment —
Proceeds before
Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 —20202

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies!

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 20214
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'Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

?Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

SsEffective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

‘Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

SEffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

SEffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

The Directors anticipate that the application of new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Group:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the Group’s returns.
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
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Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment property over the estimated useful
live and after taking into account of the estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposal. A leased property which is recognised as a right-
of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as intermediate
lessor classifies the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in
the period in which the property is derecognised.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for own use in the production or supply of services, or
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease
term or 3 years
Furniture, fixtures and office  33":%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-
in, first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development

Properties that are being constructed or developed for
future use as held-for-sales are classified as properties
under development and stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the expected sale proceeds of properties sold
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion,
or by management estimates based on prevailing marking
conditions.

Development cost of property comprises construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised and professional fees
incurred during the development period. On completion, the
properties under development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets when the construction of the relevant properties
commences.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of the
year are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expense, or
by management estimates based on prevailing marking
conditions.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise cash at banks and in hand and cash at financial
institutions. For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, as
defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments as a result of interest income calculated using
the effective interest method are recognised in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these
debt instruments are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or
loss with corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive
income without reducing the carrying amounts of these debt
instruments. When these debt instruments are derecognised,
the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “loss
arising from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” line item.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL’) model on financial assets (including
loan and interest receivables, other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for loan and
interest receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular debtor, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor, or the length of time or the extent
to which the fair value of a financial asset has been
less than its amortised cost;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a financial asset
to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not available,
the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing
means that the counterparty has a strong financial position
and there is no past due amounts.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the
assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

eMI R

TRVEERE@#)
SHEREREHEEEE

ARERBEEERBRNEENRE  EN
BAETEEMEMENBANEE)RE
MEBRE K - FHBOBERENE
RERERBELBEEL  XRIEA
EMERAE(MA LX)  BRELD
R SReRmEEMS  DEEER
WEEMOEKmAE -

BERMEEMS BUGEEEBEBIMAR
BRASERBANERMAEANRER
ERAKERAKKRENMBERESRE
ZENER YERKVERMEKER -

MAKERZABEHRESERBERF
EHMENEEERERE 2RI EESRTA
MEBRE#EE BERENRSAHEET
BRNAREAFENBREEERZIGMS
AIRAEERERN HREBHZAEFM2E
ARBGEEERNSETEBREE
HERBEI(OEZEERI -

AEERERTHIAMBESRITANRK
BEREHER YBBERBEERPY
HEEEELETHERE -

BRIFEREMEE

EEURMRSRENSOREN KM X
BEIREENREMARNBKRED R
B R OB TEMRSHE  AEEAKIE
RAZETMEE -

ERILER -RREBHKAGFENS R
BER REEMNREERCKDRERE
WREBMZENEZE  FFABREA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O W 5 e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & EZ - F ——F = A=+ —HI FZ

Financial instruments (Continued)

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and
other payables, amount due to a related company, amount
due to a director, liabilities component of convertible bonds
and lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

The component parts of the convertible bonds are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A
conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payments

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss, with a corresponding increase
in equity (i.e share option reserve).

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services received are measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options granted.
The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve), when the Group obtains the
goods or when the counterparties render services, unless
the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.
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Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Impairment losses on tangible assets
(Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services to a customer.
Specifically, the Group uses a five-step approach to
recognise revenue:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligations is
transferred to customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or services (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods that are substantially the same.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties and sales related taxes.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognised revenue from the following major
sources:

Sales of properties

Sales of food and beverages

The Group’s property development activities are mainly
carried out in the PRC. Taking into account the contract
terms, the Group’s business practice and the legal and
regulatory environment, revenue from property sales
contracts is recognised at a point in time. Under the
transfer-of-control approach in HKFRS 15, revenue
from property sales is generally recognised when the
property is accepted by the customer, or deemed
as accepted according to the contract, whichever is
earlier, which is the point in time when the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the property and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the
property.

Revenue from sales of food and beverages is
recognised at the point of sales to customers or
when a group entity has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.
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Lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed. As a
practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand- alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Lease (Continued)

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

— the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

— any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

— an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

HE =)

EREEENKAERLE:

- HEREMNYRIESHE:

— RAEKRBHIZAFEENERNEE
3 BEWERONEREEES:

- AEBELANEAONBEEERKAL:
K

- FAEEFRBERBHREBEE  WE
HEREEMES R KBEBEER
B =M E R R AR PR E AR R A
EEMBERA -

ERREAERRAREAMRNFER
REGESE LHESEBENENE
i BIEMEE -

WAKEAEREEHENE KRG
HEHAEEENHEAE AERAEEE
R F e B AR = R A F HI E m I R A
E-RZA ERAEEERAGHAER
FHIRHERMEFONREENELE
eE-

AEBRGAMBRAEDEERRE
EIAEBER -

REERKA  AEERERFHRAIN
HENFWREEALFEHERE -
EFEHRENRNRER  HREEF
REmMREURE MASEERA
ERBEBEMIEERBRAE -

5 45 0 43 A B O )

109

SRR



110

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 F B 25 e e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B EZ - F ——F = A=+ —HI FZ

Lease (Continued)

The lease payments include:

— fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted

by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

— the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option,

which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial

discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

HE @)

HENKRERE

- BEEMRKEREELZEE M)
MAEMEKEEES:

—  BURRIEBEEXHRZHEEMR (Y]
ﬂA{%}Eﬁ EﬂyL\EHHE/]?EI%IjZ%—rH-I_

2):

EAEﬂ?AEIHHé: HERBESRIENE
REENFETHE

WHERATHER ~AEESEHTEM
EaE(XHHABEREEEFLERER

®):

- HHEMEPXTEBEEEEZ
AP EAEE L ERBERT 126
HEABEBERENFGEHZ
RETHRRRFRKETHENK
MmEHE -

- ﬁ“ﬂ%ﬁi ETHISHEHEREERD
LHSEBEXEE EHBERLT A
?ﬁfﬂ‘ﬁiéfé-\}_ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
BREFTHENTMENRTE -

AEBERGEVBERANRABHERR
JIREFEAR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O W 5 e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Lease (Continued)

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

— the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

— the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Employee benefits

Group entities operate various pension schemes. The
schemes are generally funded through payments to
insurance companies or trustee-administered funds,
determined by periodic actuarial calculation. The Group has
defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Payments to a state-managed retirement benefit scheme in
the PRC and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms due to application
of the initial recognition exemption.

Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision
to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.
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Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4, the directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
reported and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group estimates and
recognises liabilities based on the submitted tax returns and
expected the final tax assessment to be received will have
no additional tax become due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$39,573,000 (2020: approximately HK$43,400,000) in
relation to allowance for loan and interest receivable are set
out in Note 31. The realisability of the deferred tax assets
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future taxable profits generated are less or
more than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a
material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes
place.

The PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible allowance and expenditures
including sales charges, borrowing costs and all properties
development expenditures.

The Group is subject to the PRC land appreciation tax
in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations. In
recognising the PRC land appreciation tax, the management
estimated the tax rates enacted to the Group with reference
to the latest tax jurisdictions of the cities of the PRC in which
the properties of the Group situated in. However, the PRC
land appreciation tax rates might vary upon the finalisation
of payment.

HETARARRERZ ERRIE (7

R-ZE-_—F=ZA=+—H HEKE
REFMEEEEBZEERBEBEEDY
739,573,000 (ZE T F B K
43,400,00070) S AT 5E31 - BEFRH B E
ERTERITERARBEREARR
ZARRBFKERAEGR Z5 - WMATE
ECEBRARERREFNORKEZRIE
B oEBEREERBEREEMABIT R
RERBAF G NECHRBEEER
BERIER BB sk — S RER - IR E s
E—ISHRAZHBEERSER -

TELHEERDIRERTH L HIEE
BAEW THEERRLEMEMBX
BERAINRBEELERAX (BREHEEER
fERRAR BN EERRAXZ) -

AEBERBHBEERIERBAINFTE
T IRER - RERPE LB ERE
EEEC2EASEMEMEZTERMR
MZRABEEABEANARE 2R E -
AR PREILHEEREALERNEER
NRBRERES -

S8 4 I 438 A PR 2

117

SRR



118

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 F B 25 e e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B EZ - F ——F = A=+ —HI FZ

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account their estimated
residual values, if any. The Group reviews the estimated
useful lives and residual values, if any, of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets regularly in
order to determine the amount of depreciation expenses
to be recorded. The determination of the useful lives and
residual values, if any, are based on the historical experience
with similar assets and taking into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation expenses for future
periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

The Group performs assessments on whether items of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
have suffered any impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicated that the carrying amounts of
the assets may not be recoverable, in accordance with
the stated accounting policy. Where there is an indicator
of impairment, an estimation of the recoverable amount is
required. Such estimations are based on certain assumptions
which are subject to uncertainly and might differ from the
actual result.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were approximately
HK$14,295,000 and HK$10,543,000 respectively. (2020:
approximately HK$16,470,000 and HK$16,041,000
respectively) No impairment loss was recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil).
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Management performs a review at each reporting period on
the carrying amounts of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development. Based on management’s
review, write-down of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development will be made when
the estimated net realisable value has declined below the
carrying amount. In determining the net realisable value of
completed properties held for sale and properties under
development, management based on recent global and
local economic developments, recent sales transactions of
the Group and other similar properties in the surrounding
areas, marketability of the Group’s existing properties,
market survey reports available from independent property
valuers, internally available information and management’s
expectation on future sales.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of the
completed properties held for sales and properties under
development were approximately HK$106,232,000 (2020:
approximately HK$115,172,000) and HK$1,001,215,000
(2020: approximately HK$518,557,000) respectively. No write
down of completed properties held for sales and properties
under development was recognised during the year ended
31 March 2021 (2020: nil).
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

ECL on loan and interest receivables are assessed
individually. Allowance for impairment of loan and interest
receivables are based on assumptions about ECL. The
Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, bases
on the number of days that an individual loan and interest
receivable is outstanding as well as the Group’s forward-
looking information at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in these assumptions and estimates could
materially affect the result of the assessment and it may be
necessary to make additional allowance for impairment to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of loan and
interest receivables was approximately HK$2,195,162,000
(2020: approximately HK$1,953,642,000), net of reversal of
allowance approximately HK$19,696,000 (2020: provision of
allowance approximately HK$178,438,000). The information
about the ECL and the Group’s loan and interest receivables
are disclosed in Note 23.

As described in Note 30, the directors use their judgment in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique to determine the
fair value of liability component on the date of modification
that are not quoted in active market.

For convertible bonds, binomial option pricing model is
used to determine the fair value which involves several
key assumptions and estimates including volatility levels,
credit spreads, spot price and risk-free rate. Details of
the assumptions used are disclosed in Note 30. The
directors believe that the chosen valuation techniques and
assumptions are appropriate in determining the fair value of
financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

As mentioned in Note 35, the Group has granted share
options to directors, employees and consultants during
the year ended 31 March 2020. The directors have used
an Binomial Model to determine the total fair value of the
options granted. The Binomial Model require the input of
subjective assumptions, such as risk free rate, dividend yield,
expected volatility and expected terms, to be made by the
directors in applying the Binomial Model (Note 35). The fair
value of options granted for the year ended 31 March 2020
determined using the Binomial Model was approximately
HK$152,347,000.

Qut of the total fair value of the share options granted
of approximately HK$152,347,000, approximately
HK$69,320,000 represents fair value of share options
granted to consultants. These share options were granted to
the consultants for rendering consultancy services in respect
of identification of potential investment opportunities and
lining-up business connections for the Group. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, since its services were such
unique that the fair value for the services rendered could not
be reliably measured, the services received were measured
by reference to the fair value of share options granted.

O W 5 e B

HETARARRERZ ERRIE (7

WM 35T REET_EF = A
—t+—HLEFERN AEKEERES &
BEREBEREERE EFEEFEHA-E
ANERETAMEEBERENAABEBRE -
THEABEANEREERNEA_BEARR
FEDETBEBR 2B ASE  WERAR
FIE - REE - Bt EERBHFHE (M
F35) c REE-—_Z-_EF=F=+—8H
TFEREA-_EARANEET 2 AELE
&% #E 2 R S B 49 A 78 #152,347,0007T °

REBETLERENBEAABENER
152,347,0007T F + # 7% #69,320,0007T A
ETERNERENAOAGE - 2ZH
e R TR - UIRHBRRE - AR
PIASKEBEMRERERETEBHE -
RAREERE  ARERBOUIER -
NBE LA ST EMRERENAA
BE AUEAKINREELEBRETH
BERENAAEBEETTHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Revenue represents the amount received and receivable
arising from sales of food and beverages, loan financing,
securities trading and properties development, excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties and sales related
taxes. An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

WARERHEE EXME BFEE
EYMERBEENERREERFREACTE
BRKRE =7 WEAFIA M H EH AR
H) o REBMBAZDHMT :

2021 2020
—EZ—% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT T T
Revenue from contracts with customer EEMBEEENE155
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HBHEANERSHKA
Sales of properties HEME 55,017 24,921
Sales of food and beverages BHRIEE - 857
55,017 25,778
Revenue from other sources Hfth3kiF Uk A
Interest income from provision of loan financing 12 #t & X &t & RS 2 K &
services A 171,044 159,081
Dividend income g B A 8 17
171,052 159,098
226,069 184,876

Information reported to the board of directors, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purpose
of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered or service
rendered.

The Group has three reportable and operating segments (i)
securities trading business; (i) loan and financing business
and (iii) properties development business. Segment
revenue is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Segment revenue and results SRBARRER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEERETEBRRLEDEE H 2K
results by reportable and operating segment: AREBESTWT
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE_SE-_—F=-A=1+—HL=EE
Securities Loan Properties
trading financing  development
business business business Total
REFEREE ERREEE DERRER g
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERTR BRTR EWTR EWTR

Revenue KA
External revenue MR A 8 171,044 55,017 226,069
Loss on disposal of financial assets at FVTPL HERBHEREAAERE

LERBELER (993) - - (993)
Gain arising from financial assets at FVTPL RERRRAABERE SR

BEEE2ME 32,688 - - 32,688
Reversal of allowance for impairment of loanand B[ U & F R 5| 8 2 B E

interest receivables BE - 19,696 - 19,696

Segment profit FERF 31,703 190,740 11,201 233,644
Bank interest income RITFEHA 624
Finance costs BEMAK (156,475)
Gain on modification of convertible bonds B RRES 2 W 69,321
Unallocated corporate income ROEARMA 1,882
Unallocated corporate expenses NGk (33,720
Profit before tax BRARN 115,276
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Segment revenue and results (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

SRBARERR®E

BE-T-THEZA=+-ALLFE

Securities Loan Properties
trading financing  development Other
business business business businesses Total
RAEEXE EXREEXR NERLER R LES ke
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETL BETT BETT
Revenue KA
External revenue MNBIA 17 159,081 24,921 857 184,876
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HERBEREANER
FVTPL BremBELEE (1,925) - - - (1,925)
Loss arising from financial assets at FVTPL REZREERAREREZ
PRHEAEELZBR (44,096) = = = (44,096
Allowance for impairment of loan and EUREFEFEZRE
interest receivables B - (178,438) - - (178,438)
Segment (loss)/profit 2B (ER) /&7 (46,004) (19,357) 4,842 (252) (60,771)
Bank interest income RITFBWA 87
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-RNBARZME 8,599
Finance costs BEK K (141,825)
Loss arising from derivative financial assets T4 ¢ HEAEEL 2 KB (6,043)
Gain on modification of convertible bonds {53 A # IR (5 2 Wi & 42,327
Loss on early redemption of convertible REERTARESR
bonds B# (129)
Share-based payments expenses WBRHBER 2 AFEX (152,347)
Unallocated corporate income FWNCIL N 136
Unallocated corporate expenses RARARARAL (46,505)
Loss before tax BERER (356,471)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
4. Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss
from each segment without allocation of other income, gain
on disposal of a subsidiary, finance costs, loss arising from
derivative financial assets, gain on modification of convertible
bonds, loss on early redemption of convertible bonds, share-
based payments expenses and certain central administration
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance

assessment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Segment assets and liabilities THBEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AEEZETEREKEEDEE D ZE
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: ERBEITHOT:
2021 2020
—E_—F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Segment assets DHEAE
Securities trading business BHEEBEER 34,222 4,191
Loan financing business ERREER 2,195,162 1,953,642
Properties development business VIEREER 1,340,269 715,974
Other businesses Efth %75 - 7,250
Total segment assets DHEEERTE 3,569,653 2,681,057
Unallocated corporate assets ADOERABREE 386,449 107,211
Total consolidated assets eHEEHRE 3,956,102 2,788,268
Segment liabilities SHEEAR
Securities trading business BEBEBEEB - =
Loan financing business ERmEER - =
Properties development business MERBEERS 1,128,836 216,522
Other businesses H b 7% = =
Total segment liabilities DEAGERE 1,128,836 216,522
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOMRRAE 1,353,397 1,355,913
Total consolidated liabilities aftARBEa 2,482,233 1,572,435
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERI>BERERASEBSEEZERM

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than certain property, plant and equipment, investment
property, right-of-use assets, deferred tax assets,
certain deposits, prepayments and other receivables,
derivative financial instruments and cash and cash

equivalents; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain other payables, tax payables, deferred tax
liabilities, amount due to a related company, amount
due to a director, promissory note, convertible bonds

and lease liabilities.

i

MEBEANEEZEREDEETY
X EBELRREB REWE EH
BEE  ZTERBEEE HTERE
BNREAREBEKER  TE£S
BTAMARSRBESZEYRRI
K

MERBEENTREEZERENEETH
fEMER  BNRE  ELHEA
BfE BN -—HMEREAFRR K
N—REEHE ALEE [k
REFLREEAGBRRIN) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Other segment information Htt 3 HEH
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE_E_—F=-A=+—HLEE
Securities Loan Properties
trading financing  development
business business business  Unallocated Total
E% BR nE
HRES MEEH RBES AR ¥
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT ERTT BETT BRTT ERTT
Amounts included in the measure of segment R ENBEFHEEL
profit or loss or segment assets: PEEAERIAZEE:
Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE
(other than financial instruments and (TeEeBIAR
deferred tax assets) ERRBEE) - - 29 4,169 4,198
Depreciation of property, plant and nE- BERZENE
equipment - - 1,714 1,555 3,269
Depreciation of investment property REMENE - - 843 - 843
Depreciation of right-of-use assets GCRELENE - - - 9,800 9,800
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HEZZT-ZTF=-A=-1T—HLFE
Securities Loan  Properties
trading financing  development Other
business business business  businesses  Unallocated Total
5 B nE
BEXE REEH HEER  AnEER R BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT ABTR  BETT  A%Trn  A%Trn
Amounts included in the measure of Rt g2 BENGER
segment profit or loss or segment AN BEERTAL
assets: 8
Additions to non-current assets ERBEERE
(other than financial instruments and (TRESRIAR
deferred tax assets) BRHEEE) - - 66 - - 66
Depreciation of property, plant and N BERRXENE
equipment - - 1,933 28 2,844 4,805
Depreciation of investment property RENENE - - 823 - = 823
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEME - - = = 12,595 12,595
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Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (country of

domicile) and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(other than financial instrument and deferred tax assets) is

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

it [ 57 ¥
AEEZLEUREE(MEER,HE)
RAE -

ERASERBIIBEFZBEAZEH
BREEMEMEY - BRAAKEZIER
HEE(ECRTIARELEHRBEERIN
ZEREBREEMEMBUERD -

presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from external customers

RENBERZHA
2021 2020
—2--§ i 33
Revenue from Revenue from
contract with From other contract with From other
customers sources Total customers sources Total
ERAWEA XRARMKE B EPENKA  RBEMRRE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT BRETT T BETT BETT BB
The PRC H 55,017 169,016 224,033 25,778 148,289 174,067
Hong Kong il - 2,036 2,036 - 10,809 10,809
55,017 171,052 226,069 25,778 159,098 184,876
Non-current assets
REBEE
As at 31 March
®W=B=+—H
2021 2020
—EZ—% —T-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
The PRC i 32,435 30,785
Hong Kong B 8,166 17,118
40,601 47,903

The Group had no inter-segment sales for the years ended

31 March 2021 and 2020.

Information about major customers

The Group has a large number of customers, none of whom

contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

AEBREBEE_S-_—FA_E-_FF=
A=+ BUHFETERNLHHEHEE -

FREEERNEH

AEEBRERERF BMELAEFE
BN E R A#10%3 A £ -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

2021 2020
—B_—F -
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Bank interest income |7 Bk = 624 87
Government grants (Note) AT % BY (M9 5) 702 =
Rental income GRS /N 238 133
Exchange gain P& 5 Uk 2= 552 —
Others HAb 390 3
2,506 223
Note: B 5 -
The amount represents salaries and wage subsidies granted under ZEeHARTABINTHERBENEESET
Anti-Epidemic Fund by the Government of the Hong Kong Special BRNFSRIEHYE  ARINZZEZTFAX
Administrative Region for the use of paying wages of employees from AZ+—AMEETLIE -
June to November 2020.
2021 2020
—E-—% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Interest on bank borrowing RITERZF A 13,326 2,866
Less: amount capitalised in properties under & : R R ¥ E R 2
development ok (13,326) (2,866)
Effective interest expenses on convertible ABMBEESFZERFBRAY
bonds (Note 30) (F$ 7£30) 155,577 140,692
Interest on promissory note EREBRZHE 250 142
Interest on lease liabilities HEABZHME 648 991
156,475 141,825
During the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, interest on HEZZT-_—FR-F-_TF=H=+—
bank borrowing had been fully capitalised to expenditure on AEFE RITERZMNEEEZEHER
qualifying assets under properties under development as the CZ2FERPMETHEEREER I -
borrowing is specifically arranged for property development. HEEBRDEERERBYELH -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Profit/(loss) before tax has been arrived at after charging/ BREAAF (BB EMR(GTA) T3
(crediting): KIE
2021 2020
—EZ—% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERFETHAEMR 5,843 31,589
Other staff costs (excluding directors’ and chief 8 T A (T BIEEEN
executive’s emoluments) FETHRAEHS) 8,396 10,321
Share-based payments expenses granted to 1% T {8 B 2 VAR {5 & B 6 f+
employees KX - 59,059
Retirement benefit schemes contribution RIKEFEFEHERCIE2E
(excluding directors’ and chief executive’s EERFETHAEHNS)
emoluments) 299 417
Total staff costs BT RRAE%E 14,538 101,386
Gain on lease modification (included in general & BTz W& GFA—HR K&
and administrative expenses) THAX) = 97)
Amount of inventories recognised as an ERAAICTFESS
expense 17,681 6,215
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R BN &
— Audit services — BZRB 1,250 1,850
— Non-audit services — EERRB 459 572
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %% - BERREZITE 3,269 4,805
Depreciation of investment property HEWMERE 843 832
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEEFRE 9,800 12,595
Net exchange losses 5% &8 - 791
Share-based payments expenses granted to &R T EAR 2 A M) & E
consultants A - 69,320
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s () EFREETHARZHE
emoluments
Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors BN ERAFEEEREENT
and chief executive for the year are as follows: BMABESBZH20T:

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE_Z_—S=-HA=+-HLEE

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contribution Total
ek iR iE 7
e H it & 7 AEER g

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ERTR ERTR ERTR E#RTR

Executive Directors: BITES:
Li Kwong Yuk FRE - 3,900 35 3,935
Su Xiaonong HER - 606 31 637
Li Zhongxia EMHE
(resigned on 8 October 2020) (R=ZE=ZF+ANR
BH(T) - 749 11 760
Wang Xiahua Tz
(appointed on 8 October 2020) (R=ZE=ZF+ANR
BZE) - 87 4 91
Independent Non-Executive BUERTESE:
Directors:
Cao Kuangyu ERT 120 - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki BAEE 150 - - 150
Ip Chi Wai EEH 150 - - 150
420 5,342 81 5,843
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 B £ —F -—F =HA=+—HI FF

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S M. EENFETRAEZHF M E)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (a) EFREETHRARZHE (@)

emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-RFAZt-ALER
Equity-settled Retirement

Salaries  share-based benefits
and other payments scheme
Fees benefits expenses  contribution Total
IEREE
ek NMROHAER RIRBH
e EfRdl  ZHZRAX HE L &8

HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BT

Executive Directors: BiTES:
Li Kwong Yuk TRE - 4196 1,568 45 5,809
Su Xiaonong BER - 452 11,200 35 11,687
Zheng Xiantao BERM-Z-NE

(resigned on 26 July 2019) tAZTRBEE) - = = = =
Li Zhongxia TRE(R=2=-FF

(resigned on 8 October 2020) TRNRET) - 1,405 11,200 18 12,623
Wang Zhi FTEMRZE-NE

(resigned on 31 October 2019) TA=+—-HEH) - 1,050 = = 1,050
Independent Non-Executive BUEHTES:

Directors:
Cao Kuangyu ERT 120 - - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki BER 150 - - - 150
Ip Chi Wai EER 150 - - - 150

420 7,103 23,968 98 31,589
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 B £ —FE ——F =HA=+—HI FF

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Mr. Su Xiaonong is also the chief executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the chief
executive.

Mr. Zheng Xiantao waived or agreed to waive the
emoluments of approximately HK$960,000 paid by
the Group during the years ended 31 March 2020. No
emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the
directors and chief executive of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included three
directors (2020: three directors) of the Company, details
of whose emoluments are set out in Note 11(a) above.
The emoluments paid to the remaining two (2020: two)

(a) EFRERITHRARZHME &)

HEREENAARAZEIETR
ABMEEEXABEEZHMEEE
HEERTBTBABMEHRZRG
mESZME -

B EEEREE T _TF=A
—t+—HALEFEREXREHNER
B SR £ 4 5% 960,0007T ©
REBEE_ZT_—FRTE_FF=
B=+—BLRMEFE ~NEBEH
BEOARAESERFTETHRAEY
N ERNEME - (EARSIMAZR
MAREBRRRES BB HE -

(b) AEmEHAL

IEZERHFALBREARA=ZRE
B(CTETFEZZEE) BEH
©ZFBEI N LX) - X
N¥FBTRE(CT-TF ME)R

highest paid individuals are as follows: SEATZBMENT:
2021 2020
—E-—%F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 2,005 705

Equity-settled share-based payments NERFTEURGABERZ

expenses X - 29,498
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RIREF B 5K 21 2
2,026 30,205

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O W 5 e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B £ —F -—F =HA=+—HI FF

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments were within the following bands:

LigzEEHALm@®
FME SR TIEHE :
2021 2020
—B2_—F —TEF
No. of No. of
employees employees

BERA® BEA#

Nil — HK$1,000,000 = Z 7 #1,000,0007C
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 7 #1,000,0017T 2
7 %1,500,0007¢
HK$14,500,001 — HK$15,000,000 75 #614,500,0017T &
78 #15,000,0007T
HK$15,000,001 — HK$15,500,000 7 15,000,001 &

7 #15,500,0007T

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the two years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

REBEEZZTE_—FRZ_FF=
BA=+—HIMEFTEHH £ &£
EfEC N IENERSTHA LIS -
YE &SN A 3 7 I1 A A £ B B A
2R SERBEEEE -

S8 4 I 438 A PR 2

133

SRR



134

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 F B 25 e e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £ —Z —

—FZA=F—HAULFE

2021 2020
—E_—%F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Current income tax EHREH
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FEIMEMEE
(T ZEmEHD 40,922 35,042
LAT T IEE R 29,991 -
Deferred tax B I8 1,428 (43,020)
Income tax expense/(credit) FEHER,(K&) 72,341 (7,978)

(i)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of qualifying corporation will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%.

Since group entities are not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, Hong Kong Profits tax
was calculated at a flat rate of 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits (2020: 16.5%). No provision for Hong
Kong taxation has been made during the year ended
31 March 2021 and 2020 as the assessable profits is
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forwards for
both years.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Eﬁ:? NE=ZR=-+—H &%

VEERB T EFERE (BITFE
75JT)MWIJE*(HIM@JE;;D EIN
MEREMARS - GROERKR=-FT
—“NE=ZA-TN\BEEERRE
B UYRBEERHRINE - REM
BHEMAS  AEREEERE
75 #2008 T AN Z B & /58.25%
i #8 38 78 ®2008 T BN 2 B K 5
16.5% °

HREBERBTHFANEH EMK
HERE - HEFGE %ﬁﬁvﬂﬁﬁrhﬁﬁ
BFIZ16.5%ME —HEHE(ZZ
—EF16.5%) c BEE-T—_—F
FZEZFEF=ZA=+—HLEE
WERTBMNERARHBEBESD
B WY ERZWTFHNETEF
SEETIRERE -



(i

(iil)

(iv)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O W 5 e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), Singapore and Bermuda,
the Group is not subject to any income tax in the BVI,
Singapore and Bermuda.

LAT in the PRC is levied on properties developed by
the Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% (2020: ranging from 30% to 60%) on the
appreciation of land value, which under the applicable
regulations, is calculated based on the proceeds
of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including cost of land use rights and all properties
development expenditures.

(if)

(i)

(iv)

BIEmEARKAE G EFERE
(% HMEREDRCEFERZ
TG FEMBAT B EE
—EENE A B A25% -

REXBAEBRHES(EBEAR
BED - FNERAREZEINR
Bl AEEBAGNEBEBR R
HELAREZEMMABHR -

PR HIRER IR ASEEERE
SHEZWE  NEEFHEI0NE60%
TE T F 30% E60%) ¥ £ i i
BEREHER REBEERRMN - EFE
FETIANHEMEMGBFREBENRA
R R 2 (B 48 L Hb {5 FR A B AR M Bt
EMEBERBAIEL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

AFEERGHER (BER)EAaHER

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be

reconciled to the loss before taxation per the consolidated

statement of profit or loss as follows:

RINRZBERABRERMT

2021 2020
—E-—%f§ —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBATRF (EE) 115,276 (356,471)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% 2 7K M P 15 B R 25%
(2020: 25%) ZE T F:25%)
TEZHRIA 28,819 (89,118)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT H R E T2 51,821 56,734
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERHRUSE 2R G E (16,980) (8,403)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERIMIBEBBE 2B
-2 2,866 647
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences ) [ 4t Bl 2k & 32 49 A] #0550 & B
previously not recognised =7 - (19)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRABERERCHRIESE
recognised (544) (48)
Effect of tax exemption granted (Note ii) BT RIA RS 852 (M #FiD) (10) (20)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBERE R LS B
operating in other jurisdictions RAIZT AR ETE 6,369 32,249
Income tax expense/(credit) FEHER (ER) 72,341 (7,978)
Notes: B 5 -

(i) The domestic tax rate in the PRC is used as it is where the (i)
operation of the Group is substantially based.

HRASEBEARFOEBONPELSE - &
RATENARUHEX -

(if) Tax exemptions represented reduction of Hong Kong Profits (if)
Tax for the year of assessment of 2020/2021 and 2019/2020 by
100%, subject to a ceiling of HK$10,000 (2020: HK$20,000) per
company.

MEARERN_-_T_TF /T =_—FK=
T-NE/ZE_TFIABREFEEENG
B HIK100% - B AR &= RS 58S
A7 #10,0007T (= = Z 4 : % #20,000
T e
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & EZ - F ——F = A=+ —HI FZ

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2020: nil).

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

RBE-_TE-_—F=A=1+—HBLEFERN
BMERSKXEZEMBE  TEERS
B R LA R 2 R AT A AR B LE THE ) o

ARREEARGEREARBERN,
(B#E)NDERBIATEESE:

2021 2020
—EZ—% —T-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Profit/(loss) 27 (ER) BETT BT T
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the KRARBEBEAELEFE
owners of the Company aF,(E#8) 42,935 (348,493)
’000 000
Number of shares B & E T B T &
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HEREARAR#EEEE
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss per %@Hx T
share 7,357,008 7,335,797

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options and
the conversion of the Company’s convertible bonds because
both of the exercise price of the share options and the
conversion price of those convertible bonds were higher
than the average market price for shares for 2021.

The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
March 2020 are the same since the computation of diluted
loss per share does not assume the conversion or exercise
of the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds, share
options since they would result in decrease in loss per share
for 2020.

RAESREERFE  YEBRRKITE
$ RIEREE A BAAFREETR
BEHFZ2BER BEAZSEBREZITE
BEERABUBKRESFNER  SREH
EHE-_Z-_—FHFEHIME-

HE-Z-_ZTF=-A=Z=+—RHILFEZE
BEARESEEBHERB - Emm#”i
RESBEBEIERRABITERA
ZHEAITETRBRES - BRE - El
BREERYITEBER S -_TF2
EREERL -

S8 4 I 438 A PR 2

137

SRR



138

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 F B 25 e e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Completed
investment
property
ERTREME
HK$
i
COST B
At 1 April 2019 RZE—-NFHEA—H 19,087
Exchange difference & =% (1,220)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF=RA=+—8EK
—E-FEFHYA—H 17,867
Exchange difference fEH =58 1,439
At 31 March 2021 RZE—F=ZA=+—H 19,306
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Ritins
At 1 April 2019 RZE—-NFHEA—H 1,785
Charge for the year FEMAX 823
Exchange difference fEH E%8 (133)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-ZE-_TFZA=+—HK
—EEFWA—H 2,475
Charge for the year FEMRZ 843
Exchange difference M 5, = 8 225
At 31 March 2021 RZE—F=HA=+—H 3,543
CARRYING VALUES R@EE
At 31 March 2021 RZZEZ—F=HA=+—H 15,763
At 31 March 2020 RZEZZEF=A=+—H 15,392

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31
March 2021 was approximately HK$23,421,000 (2020:
approximately HK$23,319,000). As at 31 March 2021, the fair
value has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out
by an independent valuer, not connected with the Group,
International Valuation Limited (2020: International Valuation
Limited).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & EZ - F ——F = A=+ —HI FZ

The fair value was determined based on the comparison
approach with reference to the realised price or current
asking prices for the comparable properties and adjusted
to take into account the market expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment
property. There has been no change from the valuation
techniques used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the property is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment property and information

ANREDRBLE LS EAELBYE
CEREBRKBAREET LRME
BREEZTSERFLABUARBRAKE
BREMERBE AR - REEFE -
PrRfEERMTLEES -

RIALEZEVENIAER  ZFWE
ZEEREERARAKREEMAR -
ZN

SERBERRNREVEFBLEA

about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting BARBESHAMNERNT
period are as followings:
Fair value
As at
Level 3 31 March 2021
B[RE
R-E_—%F
B=# =RBR=+—H
HK$’000 HK$°000
B¥TRE BT
Kindergarten located in the PRC MRFEZ45R 23,421 23,421
Fair value
As at
Level 3 31 March 2020
NI |
MR_ZZE_ZTF
F=H —A=+—8
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Kindergarten located in the PRC RFEHRE 23,319 23,319

The above investment property is depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the term of lease of 20 years.

Eat R E Y R IA B GORE20F H BE R
eE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 B £ —FE ——F =HA=+—HI FF

Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold and office Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
B RER
BF HEVERE PRERE nE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
cosT BE
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA—A 18,980 10,627 10,796 15,761 56,164
Additions NE - - 66 - 66
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 37) HE—RAMBAR
(P 5k37) - (2,876) (542) = (3,418)
Exchange difference EXES (1,214) (348) (636) (274) (2,472)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZZ-EF=fA=+-H
R-Z-_ZFMA-H 17,766 7,403 9,684 15,487 50,340
Additions hE — - 29 - 29
Exchange difference ERES 1,431 251 611 323 2,616
At 31 March 2021 W-E-—-%#=R=1+-H 19,197 7,654 10,324 15,810 52,985
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt #
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA—H 5,290 9,637 9,073 9,812 33,812
Charge for the year FEHY 915 820 1,526 1,544 4,805
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 37) HE—RMBEAR
(M &k37) = (2,832) (539) = (3,365)
Exchange difference EXES (338) (308) (534) (202) (1,382)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZBZEF=A=1-H
RZZ-FEMA-H 5,867 7,317 9,532 11,154 33,870
Charge for the year FERY 1,499 - 51 1,719 3,269
Exchange difference EREH 518 251 680 102 1,551
At 31 March 2021 RZE=-%#=A=1—H 7,884 7,568 10,263 12,975 38,690
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 March 2021 RZZE--F=f=+—-H 11,313 86 61 2,835 14,295
At 31 March 2020 RZZZ%4=A=1+-H 11,899 86 152 4,333 16,470
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 B 2 - F-—#F = A=+ —HIF F&

(i) Right-of-use assets (i) ERESE
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HELH HEERTF s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
As at 1 April 2019 RZE-AFMOA—H 2,646 35,775 38,421
Depreciation during the year FRITE (66) (12,529) (12,595)
Exchange difference X (169) (698) (867)
Lease modification HEBHR - (5,303) (5,303)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— B AR — (3,615) (3,615)
As at 31 March 2020 R_ZE_ZF
=A=+—H 2,411 13,630 16,041
Addition NE — 4,169 4,169
Depreciation during the year FAFE (69) (9,731) (9,800)
Exchange difference fE 5 =5 192 (59) 133
As at 31 March 2021 RZE——F
=A=+—H 2,534 8,009 10,543
Leasehold land represent land use rights located in the HE T HIB NP 2 - HofE A -
PRC. The lease term was 44 years. The lease terms of HE R44F - HEMENHEHR
leased properties range from 2 to 3 years. NF2E34F -
(ii) Lease liabilities (i) HEER
31 March 1 April
2021 2020
—EZ—% —T-THF
=Z=A=+—H mA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT B F T
Current portion it &) &R oy 7,735 8,053
Non-current portion FE &) EB - 5,527
7,735 13,580
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 B E - E-—#F = A=+ —HIF FE

(ii) Lease liabilities (continued) (i) HE&R@)
2021 2020
—E_-——%F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Amounts payable under lease liabilities: HE&BETEMRIE:
Within one year —&F R 7,735 8,053
After one year but within two years —EFEBREMERN - 5,527
7,735 13,580
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 A %121 A ™ E
months (shown under current liabilities) HEE 2B
//\L@JE{ IETE‘J
) (7,735) (8,053)
- 5,627
(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (iii) RIREWIZLHE
2021 2020
—EeZ—% —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥TT BT T
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets F AL E 2T ERX
— Leased properties —-HEEF 9,731 12,529
— Leased land —MHE L 69 66
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBBEZMERX 648 991
Expenses relating to short-term lease EHEERECRX - 491
Gain on lease modification (included in general A &1& 5] 2 W (5t A
and administrative expenses) —f RATER &) - (97)
(iv) Others

During the year ended 31 March 2021, total
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately
HK$10,671,000 (2020: approximately HK$13,960,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had
lease modification in respect of the termination on a
lease arrangement of an office premises. The right-
of-use assets of approximately HK$5,303,000 and
the lease liabilities of approximately HK$5,400,000 as
at the date of lease modification were derecognised.
Gain on lease modification of approximately HK$97,000
had been recognised during the year ended 31 March
2020.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

O W 5 e B

2021 2020
—B_—F -

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

At the beginning of the financial year R BRFEE 518,557 398,666
Additions NE 427,875 148,760
Exchange difference & =R 54,783 (28,869)
At the end of the financial year R BFER 1,001,215 518,557

Properties under development are classified as current
assets as the construction period of the relevant properties
development project is expected to be completed in the
normal operating cycle.

The Group has pledged certain properties under
development of approximately HK$980,382,000 to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are situated
on a leasehold land in the PRC. All the completed properties
held for sale are stated at lower of cost and net realisable
value.

BRTVESDERRPEE - JHARMN
AMEZRRBEBZEEPEFE—RE
EBBATK -

AEBCEBETRRDAYWELNEE
980,382,000 TTIE B AL B E R — R 1T
BERER -

AEERFHENCRIVELRNTE
MEAELH ARKELENERTIY
XD ARA BB FEMEZRESE
5l B o

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
—E-—% —E-FF
=B=+—HB =A=+-—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
Financial assets mandatorily measured WEEREBEEERZALE
at FVTPL REFECZEMEE B¥TT BT T
Listed equity securities held for trading BEEE LTMRARE S 34,222 4,191

The fair value of listed equity securities is determined based
on the quoted market bid prices available on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the
London Stock Exchange.

ELTRABHFZAABLIRERER
BT EBRERGMRRBESFXS
FRAI B Z R 5 H(E -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &

EFoF——

FZAZ+—AIEE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (continued) 20. REEREREANBEREZEHME
Included in the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are the ATUAEEEBZERINEE KU 57|\Z =4
following amounts denominated in currency other than the BIABENSBETARNEENREZRE Hz
functional currency of the relevant group entity: AABEEBZEREE:

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

=B=+—H =A _-1— S|

HK$’000 HK$'000

HBETT BT T

— Great British Pence (“GBP”) —HEE L (EEED 29,709 190

— RMB —-AR% 414 469
21. INVENTORIES 21. 78

2021 2020

—E_—F —E_TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Wine B R 7,250 7,250

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMIT
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & % =% =

Aﬁ%%ﬁﬁmﬁ

—FZ A=+ —ALEE

2021 2020
—EZ—% —T-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Prepayments SEENE ] 218,722 39,303
Deposits paid B 6,454 33,917
Other receivables H b JE BR 3K 156 3,561
Consideration receivables WK E - 5
225,332 76,786
Analysed for reporting purposes: EmERE 2D
Non-current assets EREBEE 2,881 2,302
Current assets mENEE 222,451 74,484
225,332 76,786
2021 2020
—EZ—% —T-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Loan receivables FE W B % 2,203,570 2,003,774
Interest receivables FEW A 2 150,334 128,306
2,353,904 2,132,080
Less: Allowance for impairment of loan and T EMCE R T BOR B
interest receivables (158,742) (178,438)
2,195,162 1,953,642
The loans and interest receivables are due from independent FEM B SR KT B be&“%ﬁ**_ﬁz;
third parties, which are unsecured and their relevant due B TEHEF&E*E 7] 15 EAH 75_"; 5 —Z=-

dates started from May 2021 to March 2022 (2020: started
from April 2020 to June 2020). The interest rates on the loan
and interest receivables are fixed ranging from 8% to 24%
per annum (2020: 8% to 24% per annum).

BZ%C fi@ﬂﬁ_%é
FE B R R B Z M &K

124% (_g_ 3

7—7@5/\)%&)
ERN T FF8%

F G F8UE24%) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

The following is an ageing analysis of loan and interest
receivables, net of allowance for impairment of loan and
interest receivables recognised presented based on the loan
drawn down date and interests accrued at the end of the
reporting period:

RBEHR BRERENBGIKRE#
REWEREMNB 2 HERRE) ZERIE
MEHREFMNEEZRZREDTET

2021 2020

—EZ—% —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BERTT BE T T

Within 90 days 90H W 114,169 =
91 days to 180 days 912180H - —
181 days to 365 days 181£365H 2,076,718 1,953,642
Over 365 days 365H A 4,275 =
2,195,162 1,953,642

The Group’s loan financing customers included in the loan
and interest receivables are due for settlement at the date
specified in the respective loan agreements. The Group did
not hold any collateral over these balances.

The credit risk of loan and interest receivables is considered
as low since initial recognition as loan and interest
receivables at the end of both reporting periods are not past
due. There was no recent history of default of the debtors.
To measure the ECL of loan and interest receivables,
loan and interest receivables are assessed individually by
the management of the Group, based on the credit loss
experience, the customers’ repayment history, financial
background and financial condition of each borrower and
reasonable and supportable forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic data that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £ —Z —

RS A

—FZA=F—AULFE

The movement in the allowance for impairment of loan and EREZFRRFEBRERE 2 EEHNAT
interest receivables is as follows:
Total
@st
HK$’'000
B F T
Balance as at 1 April 2019 RZFE-—NFHA—BZ&4% —
Allowance for impairment on loan and interest W E R R B 2R EEE
receivables 178,438
Balance as at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-ZZE_ZEF=A=+—HBR
—E_TFEWNA-BZHE 178,438
Reversal of allowance for impairment on loan and BOoEKREREFENBERE
interest receivables (19,696)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 RZE-Z—F=A=+—Hz&&% 158,742
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or HET RIS EEMERBEBEES -

significant assumptions made.

The following significant change in the gross carrying
amounts of loan and interest receivables contributed to the
increase in the allowance for impairment during the year
ended 31 March 2020:

— the macroeconomic conditions downturn resulted in an
increase in allowance for impairment of approximately
HK$178,438,000.

The Group has conducted an assessment of ECL according
to forward-looking information and used appropriate model
and assumption in its measurement of expected credit
losses. The assumptions included the future macroeconomic
conditions and borrower’s creditworthiness. (e.g. the
probability of default and the corresponding losses).

ATRKRERENEREAENEXE
BHERARBE_T_TF=-A=1t—H
L4 2 B Rk 1B B¢ 8 45 0

7B EIR B R K B EBORE B
DN #9775 #5178,438,0007T °

AEBEERBENBEHENLAERHE
EERAMAEEEARBRRETRBE
EJ&E%EJHE HERXRERBEARAKREEL

ERARERANEEER(IEROT]
“b’\i{&*ﬁf‘%ﬂ%) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash
in hand and cash at financial institutions with an original

RehBeEEVWEERTESES  TH
RBelRIABRA=ZBAXNAAZE

maturity of three months or less: REMBEZRSOT:
2021 2020
—E_—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITReLFERE 306,515 21,367

Cash at bank and financial institutions carried interest at
market rates which range from 0.01% to 0.25% (2020: 0.01%
1o 0.25%) per annum.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB
which are placed with banks in the PRC are subject to the
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations imposed by the PRC
government.

As at 31 March 2021, deposits of approximately
HK$288,536,000 (2020: nil) were held at banks as restricted
cash for pre sales of properties under development in PRC.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated in
the following currencies:

RITHESERREREBEZREENTE
F0.01% £0.25% (ZE - F F:0.01% &
0.25%) 2 5 F| K ET 8 °

AEEZREMReFEMAAREKE
YHEERPEZRT  BEXRRFEBA
B2 SNEE B R

R-ZTE-—FE=A=+—8 GRHBL
288,536,000 c (= — T F : &) F P
BT APEERPYEFEENIRH
B o

AEERSRBASFEYATIEE S
8-

2021 2020
—E_—fF§ —ECFF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

HKD g 987 457
Australian dollar (“AUD”) BT ([’ T ) 37 30
RMB AR 305,328 20,820
UsD ETT 116 16
Others Hfh 47 44
306,515 21,367
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & EZ - F ——F = A=+ —HI FZ

The amounts are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are
repayable on demand.

BR&ER BEMERARERKE

rilE Y
°%

2021 2020

—E_—% BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Trade payables B REMER 3,526 1,594
Accruals JEET B A 33,749 67,329
Other payables Hi RN 9,758 40,752
47,033 109,675

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

RESHR BEHZENEREZEZAH
EETY TV s

2021 2020

—E-—% —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Within 30 days 30HIN — —
31 to 60 days 31260H - S
61 to 90 days 61£290H - S
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,875 —
Over 181 days 181H A £ 1,651 1,594
3,526 1,594

The average credit term on purchase of goods is 60-180
days (2020: 60-180 days). The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
settled within the credit timeframe.

Contract liabilities represent advance received for the sales
of properties. These advances are recognised as contract
liabilities until the sales transactions are made.

There was no revenue recognised in the current year that
related to performance obligations that were satisfied in year
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

REER 2 FHEEHAG0EI80H (ZE
—ZEF:602180H)  c AEBEH EMH
EREBRE  HBRMEEMNZKRERE
EHRAEE -

A%UEE?E?J&%%%%H&ZHXZZ&%%’ %
ZRFHRRANBE EEELEE
25 e

BE_T-_—FR-_ZT-_FF=-—A=t—

BHEFESEREETELNEREMER
TEEA A
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 B EZ - F ——F = A=+ —HI FZ

2021 2020

—EB_—F —T-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Bank borrowing — secured RITER—FEMA 383,884 197,064
Carrying amount repayable*: JENEREE :

2021 2020

—E-—% —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETRT BT

Within one year R—FR - —

In the second year F_F 383,884 98,532

In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-FEZFERF
(BREERME) - 98,532
383,884 197,064

The amounts due are based on the specific repayment terms set
out in the facilities letters with no demand clause included, which
allow the bank borrowing to be repaid according to the Group’s
future properties sales plan. According to the future properties
sales plan, the bank borrowing will be fully repaid on or before the
year 2023.

The bank borrowing was denominated in RMB as at 31
March 2021 and 2020.

The bank borrowing carried floating rate at Loan Prime
Rate plus 0.45% per annum as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.
The finance cost have been capitalised in properties under
development during the year ended 31 March 2021 and
2020. Details are set out in Note 9.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, banking facilities were
secured by assets pledged as set out in Note 38.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 B £ —F -—F =HA=+—HI FF

The amounts of banking facilities and the utilisation at the REBEHRRNRITHERBE LA
end of the reporting period are set out as follows: wn
2021 2020
—E_—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Facility amount: B & FRIA - 436,278 416,024
Utilisation &) H
— Secured bank borrowing —BEFIRITER 383,884 197,064
2021 2020
—E_—%F —TFTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Promissory note AR ER 5,389 5,000
On 11 September 2019, the Group issued an unsecured RZZFE—NFAA+T—H KTEBR—F
promissory note with principal amount of HK$5,000,000 BB = T A% BB 5,000,000
to an independent third party. The promissory note bears CEEBPALER AL EBBREFRNE
interest at a rate of 5% per annum and has a term of one 5%FTEREBRA—EES EXZ_Z=
calendar year. It was further extended for one year on 10 TFEFNATHE " FPLER—F - KALE
September 2020. The promissory note was denominated in BEAEBEE -
HKS.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Number of shares Share capital
RSB B
2021 2020 2021 2020
B--% ikl 32 ~8-- ikl 323
'000 000 HK$000 HK$'000
T Tk BRTT BETT
Authorised ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: BREEEBITLEE
3 AL .
E] 5\% HX 6
At the beginning and the end of the financial year REBEEFNREX 10,500,000 10,500,000 105,000 105,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of BREERBOITZEEN
HK$0.01 each: REREBR:
At the beginning of the financial year R BEEED 7,357,008 7,328,061 73,570 73,281
— Issue of shares upon conversion of convertible —E# A RESBETRN
bonds (Note i) GED) - 54,277 - 543
— Shares repurchased and cancelled (Note i) —BR {7 8 21 & 2% 8 (Wt &%) - (25,330) - (254)
At the end of the financial year RBBEEER 7,357,008 7,357,008 73,570 73,570
Notes: M5

(i)

(if)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, convertible bonds with
principal amounts of HK$24,886,000 and HK$20,000,000 were
converted into approximately 29,277,000 and 25,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion
price of HK$0.85 and HK$0.8 per share respectively. As a result,
the amounts of approximately HK$17,745,000 and HK$14,872,000
in convertible bond reserves were transferred within equity. For
the details, please refer to Note 30(i) and Note 30(v).

All the new shares issued during year ended 31 March 2020 rank
pari passu with the existing shares in all respects.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company repurchased
its own shares through the Stock Exchange as follows:

(if)

HE-Z-_ZF=-A=+—HLFE 1%
% 5 5 124,886,0007T & % 20,000,000
TZABRBEFEHNEETERES
B A #0.857C & & HOST EE R B
29,277,000/% % 25,000,000 & & & & &
¥0.01t 2 E B - Bt - 7 %17,745,000
7T N 7 #14,872,000 T B A H A 2 7] #
MfEHME - BREFE - 3528 M 3003)
N 5E30(v) ©

HE_T_TF=ZA=+—HILFEET
MAABEHBRNESTEHERERNESR
A & iz o

BE_Z-ZE=-A=1+—-HLFE X2
AUERE R BB EAE B - AR

No. of Aggregate
ordinary shares consideration
of HK$0.01 each Price per share paid

SREE
##®0.01TZ
Month of repurchase HE A 7 BiERSA BRER EftEKE
Highest Lowest
BESR RER
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
T AR s B BT T
July 2019 —T-NFtA 10,200 0.38 0.32 3,569
Aug 2019 —ZE-NFNR 15,130 0.35 0.27 4,378
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 B2 —E-—#F = A=+ —HIF FE

2021 2020
—E_—% —E-TE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Liability components ERBS
Current liabilities mEAaE
— Convertible bond 3 (“CB 3”) (Notes i & ii) — AR AR EHI ([ )
B3 (K 5Ei X&) 327,971 367,591
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
— Convertible bond 4 (“CB 4”) (Note iv) — AR & FH4 (] R
EH 4D (Ft sEiv) 813,277 740,476
1,141,248 1,108,067
CB3 CB4 Total
AEEESS  THERES4 &t
(Notes i & ii & iii) (Note iv)
(P 31 i Rei) (Bt 3Eiv)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
B3 BETT BETT BETT
Liability component at 1 April 2019 RZE-NENA—-HZ
BEHMR 398,095 687,985 1,086,080
Add: Effective interest expense m:EBRNEE 9 74,231 66,461 140,692
Reclassification of accrued coupon interest & 77 48 & 3 %Ei,%\?tﬁﬁﬂ
to other payables JE R BR 3% (27,407) - (27,407)
Derecognition upon modification of REFT AR RESFKIE
convertible bonds R 30(ii) (314,301) = (314,301)
Recognition of new liability component RETTARESFRR
upon modification of convertible bonds FEaEHs 30(ii) 271,974 = 271,974
Early redemption during the year FREFER 30(i) (9,540) = (9,540)
Converted into ordinary shares Eﬁﬁ;%ﬁ REBR 30() & (v) (25,461) (13,970) (39,431)
Liability component at 31 March 2020 —T_ZTF=R
_+ Az a®RHH 367,591 740,476 1,108,067
Add: Effective interest expense mERMEER 9 82,776 72,801 155,577
Reclassification of accrued coupon BNNBEEHEREE
interest to other payables Hfth FE 1 R 5X (20,461) - (20,461)
Derecognition upon modification of BAL AR R E S
convertible bonds BUHTER 30(iv) (344,326) - (344,326)
Recognition of new liability component REET AT IR E 7 B
upon modification of convertible bonds BRELEESD 30(iv) 275,005 - 275,005
Repayment BR (32,614) - (32,614)
Liability component at 31 March 2021 RZE-—F
=A=+—-H2
BEHMR 327,971 813,277 1,141,248
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Notes:

(i) The Group issued CB 3 with 7% coupon rate at a total principal
value of HK$279,500,000 on 17 February 2017 and 14 March
2017 to an independent third party. The convertible bonds will
mature in 3 years from date of issue at its principal amount or
can be converted into 328,823,529 shares at any time between
the three months after the date of issue of the convertible bonds
and the maturity date at the bondholder’'s option at rate of
HK$0.85 per share. The convertible bonds will be matured on 17
February 2020 and 14 March 2020 respectively. The Company
shall have the right, as from the expiry of 15 months following the
date of issue of the convertible bond, to partly or fully redeem
the convertible bond early, by giving one month’s prior notice in

writing to the bondholder.

The Group further issued CB 3 at a total principal value of
HK$630,000,000 on 28 April 2017, 5 June 2017, 28 June 2017
and 30 June 2017 to independent third parties. The convertible
bonds will mature in 3 years from date of issue at its principal
amount or can be converted into 741,176,471 shares at any
time between the three months after the date of issue of the
convertible bonds and the maturity date at the bondholder’s
option at rate of HK$0.85 per share. The Company shall have the
right, as from the expiry of 15 months following the date of issue
of the convertible bond, to partly or fully redeem the convertible
bond early, by giving one month’s prior notice in writing to the

bondholder.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, convertible bonds
with principal amounts of HK$24,886,000 were converted into
approximately 29,277,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price of HK$0.85 per
share. As a result, the amount of approximately HK$17,745,000 in
convertible bond reserves was transferred within equity.

All the new shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2020

rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respects.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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AEBR-_Z—+tF_A++tHE_Z
—tF=—A+THBETEASLERAEN
279,500,000707% E B R Z Al R E 53 F
— BB BB ESFBREARS
BEETHHEASFRIBHES T AA
(RBETABRBREFZABR=ZEAZREHA
HRIBE R AT IR BIR TR B 085 L 2 LK
834 £328,823,52008 % 15 - ATIRIREH o
MR-_B-ZEF_A+tHEZZT_ZEF
“A+tmBESE RRARABEREH
TABBRESFZBRIGEAERRERR
BEHEFEEARL —BAZEAEEBAM
BN EHRFELARRES -

AEBR-_ZFT—+tFWRA=-+NH - =&
—+HXARB - ZE—+EXA=-+tN\H
T+t EXNAZ+TRE— S BITLSE
44 {E 57 #630,000,0007T 2 7] 44 % & %3
FEBLE=F TBREFBERELASE
BETAMBAIFEAIPHEBELEEEAR
BoABRRESFZBEA=-@AZERAH
B AR B SR B B0.85TT 2 E R
W RTMAT6ATIRR IR M - ARFAEHER
BOANBRBRESFZBRISEAERESB
MEFRBAEARL —EAZELERAAN
MEHRBHREPEL AR ES -

REBE-_Z-_ZF=A=+—HLEFE XK
% 584 &8 124,886,0007T 2 7] ¥ iR 1E &
ERETHBRETREBSSTEERA
#929,277,0001R B R EE B ¥E0.01T 2 AR
RIEER AL AJBRBRESFHEOEE
17,745,000c 2 © BB AREZ A ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Notes: (Continued)

(if)

(i)

On 15 August 2019, the Company had early redeemed the
CB 3 partially with the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 at
redemption amount of approximately HK$10,211,000, which held
by a bond holder, Safe Arena Limited. The accrual interests up to
redemption date are approximately HK$529,000, which included
accrued coupon interest of approximately HK$211,000 up to
redemption date. The fair value of the liability component was
remeasured at the date of redemption with the difference between
the fair value of the liability component and the redemption cost
allocated to equity component and the equity component of
approximately HK$8,650,000 had been derecognised. As a result,
an aggregated loss of approximately HK$129,000 (i.e. loss on
early redemption of liability component of the convertible bonds
and early redemption options of approximately HK$120,000
and HK$9,000 respectively) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Upon the redemption of the convertible
bonds, the remaining value of the conversion option reserve
of approximately HK$8,650,000 was released to accumulated
losses.

On 13 March 2020, the Group entered into the deed of
amendments (the “Amendment Deed”) with the bondholder to
extend the maturity date of CB 3 with the principal amounts of
HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000 from 17 February 2020
to 17 August 2020 and from 14 March 2020 to 14 September
2020 respectively (the “Extended CBs”). On 23 March 2020 (the
“Date of Modification”), the Company had, with the approval of
the bondholder and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
executed the Amendment Deed. The bondholder has granted to
the Company a waiver in respect of the failure of the Company
to pay any principal or interest on the convertible bonds when
due under the terms and conditions to the extent necessary and
solely to effect the Amendment Deed. Details are set out in the
Company’s announcements on 13 March 2020 and 23 March
2020.

At the Date of Modification, the carrying amounts of the liability
components, the equity components, and derivative financial
assets in respect of early redemption options of the Extended
CBs immediately before the modification were approximately
HK$314,301,000, HK$112,857,000 and nil, respectively. According
to a valuation report issued by an independent professional valuer
not connected with the Group, the fair value of the new liability
component, the equity component and the derivative financial
assets in respect of early redemption options of the Extended
CBs immediately following the modification are approximately
HK$271,974,000, nil and nil, respectively. Upon modification,
the original CB 3 was extinguished and a gain of approximately
HK$42,327,000 arising from the fair value difference of the liability
portion was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
March 2020 and an aggregate amount of HK$112,857,000 from
the equity conversion reserve was transferred to the accumulated
losses. The effective interest rate of the new liability components
of Extended CBs are 18.33% to 19.55% whereas the effective
interest rate of the liability components immediately before the
modification are 14.3% to 14.7%.

fRE - (&)

(if)

(i)

RZE—NAENA+TEB KAAFRUEE
& B4 B 10,211,000t IR R EE — & &
%4 ¥ 8 ASafe Arena Limited# B 2 &K% %8
75 %10,000,0007T 2 B AT R AR E 43 - &
ZEEABZER T E LA K529,000
T EFHEELOABCEAZENBE
211,000 - BEPHZAAERERE AR
BHFEE MABFSZAAEHEERK
A ZHEEPEEREMG - MEBH
49 7% 8,650,000 E BB FER Bt - %)
75 #120,000t 2 1B R (AR R BE @ 7]
HREFAESICBEARREEOHE
2 518 5 B 497 120,000 & 7 #9,000
TREHEBERRPTER - EAIRKRES
WHED% ARBRESHEZHBENBE
8,650,000 C # i = Rt E 18 -

R-ZE-_TEFZA+=ZA AEEHEES
BAATNBITREMET ZE]D - AU
1 K & %8 A& % #220,000,0007T & B &
59,500,000 T M ] 2 iR E 5 3M B A B 5 Bl
- _ZEF_A+tHERZEZ_ZE=-Z
EFNA+T+AERBE-_ZE-TF=A+mA
EREZZF-EFAA+TMNBA(EERA
BMRES]) RZZE-EF=A=+=B((E
FTRED ARBIKEHFFTBEARETEH
BRGIERDAME - EFLBIRE -
BEFEEADRART RERBIEREIE
HREFRESIHATRBREFZFAERS K
FMERMARREHAR(UANBEELR KE
BESTRZEBEAER - FBHNRAARAH
B_ZE-_ZTFE=-ZA+=ZAR-_ZTE-_TEF=
B-+=Bz22% -

RETEH REEZETAREBERL
ERBREFABENEETS  ExID
ARTEESMEENEREMES OB E
314,301,0007T * 8 #112,857,0007T & & -
BB EEGEM(EARNEERT EREE)
BHMEERS  REEEIANRTEERD
CERABBRESFPEOTNIEEELD
BEDBOIRNTESCREENAARES D
BE#271,974,0007T « TRE - WMEETE -
BRAHBRESFITUFHEEBETSHAQ
R ZEFEE S 2 W &= 478 42,327,000
TREBEE-_TE-_ZFE=ZA=+—HItEE
MIBEZTHER MRAKEREEREEDR
R B ¥112,857,000 L E R E R EE - £
ERAIBMBRESFOFBEEELD 2 ERF
KA F18.33% £19.55% * M B & ] AT &
EEHH W EEFEN F14.3% F14.7% °

5 45 0 43 A B O )

SRR



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 F B 25 e e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 = F =——F=H=+—HI F&F

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

On 27 May 2020, the Group entered into the deed of amendments
(the “Amendment Deed 1”) with the bondholder to extend the
maturity date of CB 3 with principal amounts of HK$220,000,000
and HK$59,500,000 from 17 August 2020 to 31 May 2021 and
from 14 September 2020 to 31 May 2021, respectively (the
“Extended CBs”). On 9 June 2020 (the “Date of Modification 17),
the Company, with the approval of the bondholder and the Stock
Exchange, executed the terms of the Amendment Deed 1. The
bondholder has granted to the Company a waiver in respect of
the failure of the Company to pay any principal or interest on the
convertible bonds when due under the terms and conditions to
the extent necessary and solely to effect the Amendment Deed 1.
Details are set out in the Company’s announcements on 27 May
2020 and 9 June 2020.

At the Date of Modification 1, the carrying amounts of the liability
components, the equity components, and derivative financial
assets in respect of early redemption options of the Extended
CBs immediately before the modification were approximately
HK$279,884,000, Nil and Nil, respectively. According to a
valuation report issued by an independent professional valuer
not connected with the Group, the fair value of the new liability
component, the equity component and the derivative financial
assets in respect of early redemption options of the Extended
CBs immediately following the modification are approximately
HK$222,959,000, Nil and Nil, respectively. Upon modification,
the original CB 3 was extinguished and a gain of approximately
HK$56,924,000 arising from the fair value difference of the liability
portion was recognised in profit or loss during the six months
ended 30 September 2020. The effective interest rate of the new
liability components of Extended CBs are 34.91% whereas the
effective interest rate of the liability components immediately
before the modification are 14.37%.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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fRE - (&)

(iv)

R-B-TFEFRA-++H KEEEEF
HHABFATLETRE(ET RE
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REamiRES])  c R <AAB (1B
TR ARRKEFHFBEARBRZM
WA CRITETREBEINKER  B5#F
EACBARR RERBEERRIEGHRE
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AR RHBE UV BEERREEREE
RIRB1ER) - FBHARARABH A=
E_EFRAA-_+t+EtHR-ZE_ZFTFXA
hBZ R
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BEHFNIRFERNEEENBEDD - #
EHMETESBREENEAEIANE
75 #0279,884,0000T - TERET - RIEBUH
EGEEMEANEERY BB FHNGEE
e REBEHBETACERATRRESD
REEQZEEBENNIEEES Y B
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222,959,0007C * ERET - R{EF[1#& - R
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & EZ - F ——F = A=+ —HI FZ

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(Continued)

On 15 June 2020, the Group entered into the deed of
amendments (the “Amendment Deed 2”) with the bondholder
to extend the maturity date of CB 3 with principal amounts
of HK$63,750,000 from 5 June 2020 to 30 June 2021 (the
“Extended CB”). On 29 June 2020 (the “Date of Modification 27),
the Company, with the approval of the bondholder and the Stock
Exchange, executed the terms of the Amendment Deed 2. The
bondholder has granted to the Company a waiver in respect of
the failure of the Company to pay any principal or interest on the
convertible bonds when due under the terms and conditions to
the extent necessary and solely to effect the Amendment Deed 2.
Details are set out in the Company’s announcements on 15 June
2020 and 29 June 2020.

At the Date of Modification 2, the carrying amounts of the liability
components, the equity components, and derivative financial
assets in respect of early redemption options of the Extended
CB immediately before the modification were approximately
HK$64,442,000, HK$69,783,000 and Nil, respectively. According
to a valuation report issued by an independent professional valuer
not connected with the Group, the fair value of the new liability
component, the equity component and the derivative financial
assets in respect of early redemption options of the Extended
CB immediately following the modification are approximately
HK$52,046,000, Nil and Nil, respectively. Upon modification,
the original CB 3 was extinguished and a gain of approximately
HK$12,396,000 arising from the fair value difference of the
liability portion was recognised in profit or loss during the six
months ended 30 September 2020 and an aggregate amount
of HK$69,783,000 from the equity conversion reserve was
transferred to the accumulated losses. The effective interest rate
of the new liability components of Extended CBs are 30.99%
whereas the effective interest rate of the liability components
immediately before the modification are 17.85%.

The Group issued CB 4 with zero coupon rate at a total principal
value of HK$1,000,000,000 to the substantial shareholder of
the Company on 26 March 2018 as the consideration for the
acquisition of 100% equity interest of United Faith Group pursuant
to the acquisition agreement dated 21 June 2017. Details of
such acquisition are set out in Company’s circular dated on 28
February 2018. The convertible bonds will mature at five years
after issuing of the convertible bond. The detail maturity dates of
each batch of issue are shown in following table at its principal
amount or can be converted into 1,250,000,000 shares at any
time between the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the
maturity date at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.8 per
share.

B 25 -

(iv)

(&)

i)

RZE-ZEFANA+HRE - AEEEESH
BHBEAGMLEBITZE (BT RE2]) U
7N & 58 A 7 863,750,000 B9 7] # R E %
SE’]@JHHEIEE E_ZETFARBEREEZ

Z—FRNAZTA(KERATBRBKES]) -
H’;‘_?_?ixxﬁ] +hAB(ETE#2]) -
AARIKEHFRBEARBRFAE B8
TETRB2HNBER - BEFHEBEADHRRE
A )R BE AR B R B AR R B B B S AT
BREFZAAEASKFEMARARY
BeUANEERRREARFEBIZE2E
B FBHRARRBHAAZZT_TFA
A+HRBRZZEZZFNAZTNEHZAH °

RIETBE REBEEBITNLERTR
BEHFNIRFEREEENBEDD - #
EBRHRERTECHEENEREEES AL
7 #64,442,0007T « 7 #69,783,0007T &
ToREBEBUEEHEMERAERBTE
BE)BEENEERS  REBEBIIRKE
IR A AR B A A 4R T D0 I A A0 T 0T
BESD BEDBHORITESHREENR
RAED B4 A 52,046,000 ~ ERE -
RETR RABLRESFITUTHEE

iﬁmaﬁ@/’tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfkizuﬁz Eopiagd
12,396,000t R E & ZEFhLA=+H
BN Iﬁ!sﬂamqﬂﬁﬁw i 2R B A% i 8 i

i 1 H) 42 %8 75 569,783,000 T 8 & = R &t
BE - KERUBBREFNTEEAERHG
ZEBRFEAE3099%  MEBEEETAER
BB F XK A17.85% ©

AEBR-_ZTE-N\F=ZA=Z+"BETAK
& 42 %8 5 7% #1,000,000,000t 2 EE 87
BREFATARRAETERR - (ERBRIER

HHr_F— tiﬁﬂ_‘?’—ﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁjgﬁ
WREEEEE2HMESNRE ZRES

IEE’UE¥\EJ$%B@$AEE?‘HE_%*/\¢:
A+ N\B®HBEK - JREEHF BN BT
AMBRESFERERE - FRTHRZF
MEBARTRRERASEMTIAESF
BARBTIRBRESZBZERABHM
BEBS) Al IR B IR B IR B #0.87T 2 th R & i
71,250,000,000 % B 17 °
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 B EZ - F ——F = A=+ —HI FZ

Notes: (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, convertible bonds with
principal amounts of HK$20,000,000 were converted into
approximately 25,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price of HK$0.8 per share.
As a result, the amount of approximately HK$14,872,000 in
convertible bond reserves was transferred within equity.

All the new shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2020
rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respects.

The fair values of the above convertible bonds were valued by an
independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited (“JLL"), as at issue date, early redemption date
and modification date. The fair values of above convertible bonds
as at Date of Modification 1 and Date of Modification 2 were
valued by an independent valuer, International Valuation Limited.
CB 3 comprise a liability component and an equity conversion
component whereas CB 4 comprise a liability component and
equity conversion component.

The fair values of the unlisted bond component were calculated
by using a market interest rate of similar non-extendable and non-
convertible bonds. The fair values of the convertible bonds were
valued by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion component,
is included in the convertible bond — equity conversion reserve
under equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
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Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax relates to the same fiscal
authority.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities, after set off certain deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for financial
reporting purposes:

fid A R 4KO% 92 B B 1T 2 A S E BT IR
BERHERHAABREREMBHR
HR - REEARE  BEMBHRE
ERELEHRBSHAELRENE -

ERXEFRREER ABELEHAERERBK
ERNETEENBREEREEREEA
BE - o

The Group
*5E

2021 2020
—E_—F —EZTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Deferred tax assets BLERIAAE 39,573 43,400
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBAE 2,943 5,012
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—FZA=F—HAULFE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

LAT%K&?&%&?}‘EﬁfEﬁE*’ZIE
EEREAEB (EE)REEHE)

prior years:
Allowance for
impairment of Fair value
loanand  Accelerated change in
interest tax financial asset
receivable  Depreciation atFVTPL  Taxlosses LAT Total
RERES
BEERR NAERE
HEZHE mE CEMEE
Bl RERE MLORELD HEERE  THEER #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA-R - 578 133 (m) 4,958 4,958
Charged/(credited] to profit or loss REENE/GIA) (43,400 (153) (139) 286 380 (43,020
Exchange realignment ERAE - - - - (326) (326)
At 31 March 2020 RZEZFE-f=1-H (43,400) 425 - (425) 5,012 (38,388)
Charged/(credited] to profit or loss REENE/GIA) 3,827 (425) - 42 (2,399) 1428
Exchange realignment ERHE - - - - 330 330
At 31 March 2021 W-Z--5ZA=+-H (39,579) = = = 2,943 (36,630)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$520,110,000 (2020:
approximately HK$502,740,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in

respect of (2020: approximately HK$2,576,000) tax losses.
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No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining unused tax losses of approximately
HK$520,110,000 (2020: approximately HK$500,164,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$5,300,000 (2020: approximately HK$5,300,000) that will
expire in the next five years. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$2,446,000 (2020:
approximately HK$2,446,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$77,159,000 (2020: approximately HK$77,159,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group manages its capital structure to ensure that the
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes convertible bonds, lease liabilities, bank
borrowing, promissory note, amount due to a related
company and amount due to a director, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risk associated
with each class of capital. Based on the recommendations
of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

MR ARRABFNKRRZTA BER - &K
TERBTADAHRIEBBEOBE
520,110,0007C(= & = & F: 4 & #&
500,164,0007T ) i SR {F fa] I RE % 16 & EE o
AERBEBEREBRAREFTE M
2 R #)78 #5,300,000 (Z T - T4 .
#9 75 5,300,0007T ) o H 1t 55 18 AT & R &
e o

RBEBR AEEBHATHNRERESE
4R B 2,446,000 (ZE_FF : 498
#52,446,0007T) - AR T A BE ENIS E R
BF LSBT MBREREZ5 R E
RANBRENSEERREMNELEHRESE
E(-T:_ °

BEGCEMERZE B2 NF—H
—BRBETBENBARMRRANS IR
ZHlREABMKBBEINH  WENE MY
BHREARTBEMBLAAZ RFAF L
B EET77159,000 (ZE T F LB
77159,00070) Bih v B = 2 B LT
HEXBE RRAANEBMIEH Z
SEREZEARAOBENRZEERE5E
TR ATBER ] T8 B8 R B[ o

AEBEREEARE  UEREER
EERBARNUSEREERE RAEE
BELCEBIEZERSBERFREZAKA
O AEEEEBRBEEL—FEER

~ =4

= °

AEEZBEARBEEEHFRE(BREA
BREs MERE RITER AKX
R BN —HBEEQRKRRKEMN—
REEFE) MERERBESFEYN
RARBHEAANEILE S (BB
) e

ARBEZEHMRIERNERE - FRZ
B Z—8D ARBEFTEREHEEAR
BRAZEAKAEER AKEERE
ARPEEZHEERZ  BBRKMBE -
BT AR Ko B 1) BB (B A K B 1T B 75 =k
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(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

(a) &M T ARG

2021 2020
—E_—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
B TT T T
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL REFERANLBEREZ
TREE 34,222 4,191
Financial assets at amortised cost BEBEKATEZEREE
(including cash and cash equivalents) BERESEESEEY) 2,408,287 2,012,492
2,442,509 2,016,683
Financial liabilities eMER
Financial liabilities measured at amortised IR K At EZ 2/l
cost afE 1,600,528 1,467,076

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include other
receivables and deposits, loan and interest receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables, promissory note, amount
due to a related company, amount due to a director,
lease liabilities, bank borrowing and convertible bonds.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate
risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate promissory note and
loan and interest receivables.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to floating-rate bank borrowing
and cash and cash equivalents carried at
prevailing market rates.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of prevailing market rates arising
from the Group’s floating-rate bank borrowing.

The directors of the Company consider that the
interest rate risk in relation to variable rate bank
borrowing and bank balances is insignificant as
the outstanding balances are not significant.

(b) &FAIEEEENRBE #)

$Elllmﬂ % %&
@ﬂzﬂ%°

REEITFEABRITHIS A X
B2 ERRTEBERERSRR
@Eﬁf%ﬁﬁmﬁiﬂm%*ﬁg@

G o
N

$’§Iﬁﬁﬁj’1 RS 2PN 6
BB e RN R R

Iﬂ#ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂtﬂﬁ

FEBRNEMBETE -

[

$'§..§wﬂ1§\1 B 2R =
SRR T RBEEARE
@‘ﬁﬁ?ﬂ°¢ﬁglﬁé%mi
MERBEFEEPRAEERT
SR 1T 8 K AT A R IRI1T T 45 5
TZ&@JHE“ g
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(b) &FAIEEEENRBE #)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
PRC with most transactions mainly settled in HK$
and RMB. As at 31 March 2020 and 2021, the
Group holds financial assets at FVTPL (see Note
20) and bank deposits (see Note 24) denominated
in AUD, USD, RMB and GBP. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets are denominated in a currency
that is not the Group’s functional currency. The
Group does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging the potential foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary
assets denominated in currencies other than the
respective functional currencies of the relevant
group entities at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

AEEBFEREERPHLE
¥ HAXBHRSFEEUS
MRAREZEE R_T_-F
FRZF-_—F=ZHA=+—H"

REBMBENBRIT - £ A
RERREFELNER KRR
AhEEBEzeBBEE(RN
F220) MR TTFE R (R KT 5E24) ©

ISNERBRRERREERH K
ERREENTIEREER G

BEEEBERELE - A%
[ N SNEE SRR - SR
EREeERIERR KB
A W6 B2 B 2 R R B TE SN R
B o

)‘Ef\iﬁiﬁﬂﬂi AEBUKRER

EERZEBWEEBIAIN
Z SR FECEREE KA
Bamh:

Assets
=&

2021 2020
—E-—%F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
AUD SR 37 30
RMB AR 305,742 21,289
uUsb ETT 116 16
GBP R 29,709 190
Others Hith 47 44
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(b) &FAIEEEENRBE #)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As the Group had no material foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at 31 March 2020
and 2021, no significant impacts on the results of
the Group would arise from the changes in foreign
currency rates, accordingly no sensitivity analysis
is presented.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities
and these investments are classified on the
consolidated statement of financial position as
financial assets at FVTPL. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks. In addition,
the management has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the end of the reporting period.

If the share price of the respective listed equity
securities had been increased/decreased by
20% and all other variables were held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2021 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$6,844,000 (2020: approximately HK$700,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL.

BREDM
HBRAEER_T_TFR=
E_—F=ZA=+—BHE®E
MEBEBAIIEFEEEEE XK
SENFRETERIMNEZ S M
XEEMNEARFE  BILEF
BERE SN -

AEBEBBBHE FTRAZEHFK
B R AN E AR E R T
FREN A HMBAMR KT
EREBEEREAREREZS
MEE EEEZEERT TR
Rz EHEERZFAR -
AN BEEEERERRI/AE
ERERAR YRLERE
B HAEBRR -

RBEPRR TXZHRED
1 B AR % P [ B AR AN B 48 R B

WA LEMRAFESNRE L
Tt/ T %20% - BB E
E_—F=A=+—HLEE
ZBRBE BTGNS RAL
B #6,844,000 L (ZE_FF :
%9 7 #700,0007T) * Th R R
BRBFERANEREZS/RE
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(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from cash
and cash equivalents, loan and interest receivables,
other receivables and deposits. The carrying amounts
of these balances represent our Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

The Group recognised 12m ECL for loan and
interests receivables with gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$2,354,904,000 (2020: approximately
2,132,080,000) as at 31 March 2021, based on
individually assessment for significant debtors by
applying weighted average expected credit loss rate
of 6.74% (2020: 8.37%). Allowance for impairment
of approximately HK$19,696,000 is reversed as
at 31 March 2021 (2020: provided approximately
HK$178,438,000). The directors of the Company
consider that the decrease in expected credit loss rates
is mainly due to economic condition of the industry.

The weighted average expected credit loss rates
are estimated based on forward-looking information
and used appropriate model and assumption in its
measurement of expected credit losses. Such forward-
looking information is used by the management of
the Group to assess both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.
The details are disclosed in Note 23.

Management considered other receivables and
deposits to be low credit risk and thus the allowance
for impairment recognised during the year was limited
to 12m ECL.

(b) &FAIEEEENRBE #)

R—ZE-_—FE=A=+—H" &
£ B IR K E K EREZHN @E R T
H O RBAERANEFEHEREERS
B RE74% (ZFE — T F:8.37%)
REREZEFNE 2@ A
EHEEFERDAELNBE
2,354,904,0007c (ZE = F : L9786
#2,1832,080,0007T) - R =T = — 4
A+ HBEREREOBE
19,696,000 L (=& — T 4F : 5t 2 #
1% %78 #178,438,0007T) ° ANA &) &
ERE EHEEEBXRRIEER
RITEEEARN -

miEFEBEHEEBBEERDBRIEA
EMER R EESNEEBEEMA
BEERARBRETTE AE£H
EEEBSHEBMEEENARTG
REBHEMRREMNT - B
S M FE23 R o

BEERR HttEEER kRS
MEERRASE I&tﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁqﬁﬁw
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RBIR e

S8 4 I 438 A PR 2

167

SRR



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 F B 25 e e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B EZ - F ——F = A=+ —HI FZ

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

Internal credit rating;

° actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

° actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;

° significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers in the Group
and changes in the operating results of the
borrower.

In respect of the loan and interest receivables arising
from the Group’s loan financing business, 3% (2020:
4%) of the total gross loan and interest receivables as
at 31 March 2021 was due from the Group’s largest
customer and 16% (2020: 22%) of the total gross loan
and interest receivables as at 31 March 2021 was due
from the Group’s five largest customers for the Group’s
loan financing business.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations for loan and interest receivables
is in the PRC, which accounted for 99% (2020: 97%) of

RS A

—FZA=F—AULFE

(b) &FAIEEEENRBE #)

ARNEE @ B D 2 WS R
BZEERBRETRPE  ER=
F_—FR-_F-_FTF=HA=+—H

loan and interest receivables as at 31 March 2021 and

2020.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

RBELZEER
HFHTARGEREEFAKER
EZRFEEFRZRIT -

REBEBAMHEER
FEIAT R

ZEBERERFE299% (ZE=F
4

97%) °

AR TR

B RIERE

Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
x5 §iii i AN EEEROEE
Performing  For financial assets where there has low risk of default or 12m ECL
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit impaired (refer to as
Stage 1)
R BARRBRRESBVABILEERRARBEKRELMN B 2EREHEEBE
EFEEREZ2REE(RE—RR)
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant Lifetime ECL — not credit
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are impaired
not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2)
AJ &¢ BYIABRE  FERBRAEBEENEECERE R BEAFENEHEEERE-—&
%ﬁ%(?%%:ﬁ%ﬁx) EERE
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when Lifetime ECL — credit impaired
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred
(refer to as Stage 3)
E X E-HIFZEFHYeREENTERRRReREELT BEAGERNBHEEEE -
NEER ZEERTAREERBERE=ER) SRE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
i EMREZAEB AR A B E N % E M2 & B W E R 578 4

IEE@*EEE/E//E
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(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) &R ERRMRBE ")
and policies (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s TEREMI B AEESREEZE
financial assets, as well as the Group’s maximum EEEARAEEEREERRBRIR
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. HAENRAEERR -
Gross Allowance Net
Internal 12m ECL or carrying for carrying
credit rating lifetime ECL amount impairment amount
12ERREEEERS
MEEEER EEFEORHGEHEEE RE#&E i {8 1% f§ REPE

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
#¥TRT HEWTR ERTR

2021
—2”-%
Loan and interest receivables Performing 12m ECL (not credit impaired and 2,353,904 (158,742) 2,195,162
assessed individually)
EWEF KA E RiF REAESHEEER(LEREER
{8 R fE Rl 1T AT 1)
Deposits and other Performing 12m ECL (not credit impaired and 6,610 - 6,610
receivables assessed individually)
BEREMEYERER R#f REAEBHEEER(LECEER
{8 R fE Bl 1T AT 1)
2020
g i 33
Loan and interest receivables Performing 12m ECL (not credit impaired and 2,132,080 (178,438) 1,953,642
assessed individually)
W E KA E RiF REAESREEER(LEGER
{8 R fE Bl 1T AT 1)
Deposits and other Performing 12m ECL (not credit impaired and 37,483 - 37,483
receivables assessed individually)
BE R EMEYERR R#f REAEHEEER(LECER

fB % fE 31 7 5F )
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(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

As disclosed in Note 2, the Group’s ability to meet its
liquidity requirements depends on its ability to generate
sufficient net cash inflows from future operations and/
or other source. With the unutilised banking facilities
of approximately HK$52,394,000 as at 31 March 2021,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
liquidity risk has been reduced.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

(b)

& Rt R B B EEA R B R ()

EERBESRARIE  AEBEE
EREFREMReFTEYRNEE
BRARARZKFE URHEAEH
REXBHFES LR RER
ERBZTE -

M EE2pTl - AREBEETREZS
MBESHFT R SFEETREANXK
MEEBR /REMRBEELERR
REMAFHE HREZZT=—F
—A=Z+T—HNXRFARTHED
75 52,394,000 A AR EER
AAREENRBESRAKRE FRIE -

TRENAEEETESRABZ
RN FHFR - ZRINKRENA
SEAREEERNARREERZzE
MEBEAMBABEIRERE - TX
BRMNBEEAERERN

S8 4 I 438 A PR 2
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(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

(b) &FAIEEEENRBE #)

More than
On demand one year but Total
or within less than undiscounted Carrying
one year two years cash flows Amount
BREXE BE—% XUHRS
R—FR (EIREE MERE IR E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT ERTT BT BWTT
2021 —EZ-%
Non-derivative financial liabilities HrTELHER
Trade and other payables 5 R H AR 47,033 - 47,033 47,033
Promissory note EAEE 5,500 - 5,500 5,389
Amount due to a related company EN—MBEEATEX 15,239 - 15,239 15,239
Bank borrowing RITER - 414,595 414,595 383,884
Convertible bonds ARk ES 366,807 980,000 1,346,807 1,141,248
Lease liabilities MEER 7,923 - 7,923 7,735
442,502 1,394,595 1,837,097 1,600,528
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B £ —F -—F =HA=+—HI FF

33. TR T A @)
(b) &t EbREEBRRBEK &)

B DF 85 i e W

Liquidity risk (Continued) mBES R &)
Liquidity tables (Continued) =494 /EJC ),
More than More than
Ondemand  oneyearbut two years but Total
or within less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows Amount
REXW BR—F BBME RERERE
R—FR  AIRRE  EIREF MERE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BET T BETT
2020 ZECEE
Non-derivative financial liabilities HiTEEREE
Trade and other payables BHREMERRR 109,675 - - 109,675 109,675
Promissory note BAZE 5,250 = = 5,250 5,000
Amount due to a director ER—Z2EHA 26,479 = = 26,479 26,479
Amount due to a related company R -HEEATRR 7,211 - - 7,211 7,211
Bank borrowing BITER = 102,581 108,640 211,221 197,064
Convertible bonds akES 384,895 980,000 = 1,364,895 1,108,067
Lease liabilities MEBR 8,747 5673 = 14,420 13,580
542,257 1,088,254 108,640 1,739,151 1,467,076
S5 £ 4 3 25 A4 R )
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(c) Fair value measurements recognised in (c) EHHBRARAERZAR
the consolidated statement of financial ErftE
position
The following table provides an analysis of financial TERRESHI A2 T3R5
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end KEMGFERESREARZAAE
of each reporting period for recurring measurement, HE O URBASEESFBEEER
grouped into Levels 1 based on the degree to which AABEABRIIBESERE R -

the fair value is observable in accordance to the
Group’s accounting policy.

2021 2020
—EB_—%F —_T_THF
Level 1 Level 1
g£—& B
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Financial assets at FVTPL REEEERAREREZ
eMEE
Listed equity investments EHBRAEE 34,221 4,191
There were no transfers between level of fair value RAEERBEFET S2AAER
hierarchy in current and prior years. 7l ) A 45 9 % o
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements on DNEEEEEETE=RAALES
recurring basis: EZHE:
Early
redemption
options on
convertible
bonds
REEO
CIE: Y
BHEzHE
HK$’000
BETT
At 1 April 2019 R-ZF-NAFMA—H 6,060
Early redemption of convertible bonds REBEHTRRES 9)
Conversion of convertible bonds B A AR & (8)
Loss arising on changes of fair value PRABEHELEZHR (6,043)
At 31 March 2020 RZTE_ZTF=R=+—H -
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(c) Fair value measurements recognised in

the consolidated statement of financial
position (Continued)

Since the level 3 of financial assets are not quoted in
an active market, binomial option pricing model is used
to estimate the fair value. When estimating fair value
using valuation technique, observable inputs and data
from the practical market (e.g. share price volatility,
credit spreads and risk free rate etc) are adopted. If the
observable inputs in the market cannot be obtained,
the observable input data that are calibrated as closely
as possible to the market observable data are used for
estimating the fair value.

Meanwhile, the credit risk, volatility, correlation, etc of
the Group and the counterparty are estimated by the
management. The changing of these factors will affect
the estimated fair value of the financial instruments;
therefore there were uncertainty of accounting
estimation on the level 3 of financial assets and
liabilities.

The above loss arising from derivative financial assets
for the year ended 31 March 2020 of approximately
HK$6,043,000 are included in “Loss arising from
derivative financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

(c)

SHEGIKARAER ZAR
E&t &)

HRE=ZFeMEERARTSL
BERE SERA_BAARECEE
AT ARE - EEBBERMMG
AARERERAEETSNERER
ABEBELBEEWMKRERD 8
EERERBRMNEXSE)  HELINE
MR BEEARE  AEREA
EEOMBSABERBBEZLHARA
B A BIEUETARE -

Am - AEBEERHEFHZEERR
KERARESE T EEEEEFG
et - ZERRXWELEED B
EeMITAZABFARE: Bt
F=BHNEREENABFES
fAEt NHEE N -

REBEE-_ZT_ZTF=-A=+—H1t
FEZTESREEESEZ LOE
18 #4975 #6,043,0007T Jh st A A OF 1B
mR[TECREEEEZEBRIA -
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(c) Fair value measurements recognised in

(a)

the consolidated statement of financial
position (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other current financial assets and
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their corresponding
fair values due to short-term maturities. The directors of
the Company consider that carrying amounts of other
non-current financial assets and liabilities approximate
to their fair value as the impact of discounting of non-
current assets is not significant and the non-current
liabilities are amortised at market interest rates.

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases out investment property under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 20 years. None of the leases includes variable
lease payments. All are fixed lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

(c)

(a)

SHEGIKARAER ZAR
E&t &)

ARAREERR BREHIHM
B R A I TR A A B AR
THZEMRBEREENABZ
FEHEEEABRZAREBEREE - K
RAEERR HRIRBDEEN
EZREBUYTEREERBART
WS ANEREE WEMERDE
BMEENBEREEEZEAREMNR

s

E o

AEBERBLEHERLREDE -
MREBBER0F  -HEHER
EFRHEENFK - MEHEREBEE
BER -

RBEESHRTABBELEHRETZ
AMBRBENTAEARKEERAT
7R 2 B i U B -

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

—EZ—%F —ETF

=A=+-8 =A=+-8

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Within one year —F A 199 188
Between one and two years —FEWF 199 188
Between two and five years W F = RF 596 564
Over five years HBidhE 2,310 1,902
3,304 2,842
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O W 5 e B

(b) Capital commitments (b) BEKIE
2021 2020
—E_—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRTT BT T
For properties under development BRAERPME 132,279 311,272

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by
the shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 21
September 2012 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to its employees, the directors and
other selected participants for their contributions to the
Group and to encourage them to contribute further to the
development of the Group so as to enhance value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole.

The total number of shares in respect of which options might
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the date of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme
(the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit was
renewed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal
of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate
number of shares which might be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes,
must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

—HBEREFS(ZAEDRER-F
——FNANAZT+—HEBBIZRBRER
REM T2ZEWNIAEERE -BFEUR
HitprB 2 2R ERBERNAEEREH#
ZERFLABEER  TZBRER
AEBZHREBS D ERSAR
AREBRNZEE Kh<ARARE

EERBRREEZE -

BEZTERAWEMTEMRLE 2B
BEZBROEBETIESBBAARNKE
HAEZTEERBRITRG Z210% ([5HE]
RERBD R BREEETHAER
HRFEZEH - WMZI0%REEBFHFE R
B8 o AR IR 5% AT &) K AT o] E b BB PR A 5
FEREERATECABERETEZ
BERERTEMBETZIEZRMHELE -
THBBERRABTEIRITZIRM AR
230% °
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The number of shares in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any one year was not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue,
without prior approval from the shareholders in general
meeting.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder must be approved by independent
non-executive directors of the Company. Where any grant of
options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates would
result in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options already granted and to be granted
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital
and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month
period up to the date of such grant must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from
the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An
option might be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during the effective period of the
Scheme to be notified by the board of directors which shall
not be later than 10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price was determined by the directors of the
Company, and would not be less than the highest of the
closing price of the Company’s share on the date of grant,
the average closing price of the share on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value.
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Details of specific categories of options granted under the BEERESERE TR ERE
share option scheme are as follows: ZFEIBMT
Fair value Fair value Fair value
Vesting Exercise  atgrantdate  atgrantdate  at grant date
Date of grant period  Exercise period price for consultants for employees  for directors
BERREH EAREH EERRA
BHALH REY TEY fiEE HEMLRAE AEHLRE BUEHLRE
19 April 2013 Note 19 April 2013 to 18 April 2018 HK$0.375 HK$0.12 HK$0.12 HK$0.17
ZZ-ZFNA+AA B —Z-=fEA+NAZE_E-N\%& BH0.3751T BT BT BEOATT
mA+/\E
26 April 2013 Note 26 April 2013 to 25 April 2018 HK$0.375 HK$0.12 HK$0.12 HK$0.17
ZE-ZENAZTRA WaE —E-ZFNA-TAHE-E-/\F A 10.3757 B2 BT BT
mA=+hA
3 February 2015 Note 3 February 2015 to 2 February 2020 HK$0.477 HK$0.19 HK$0.19 HK$0.19
“Z-1%-A=A W —F-RF-AZAE-F-FF-A-A A%t 0197 0197 B0
11 November 2015 Note 11 November 2015 to 10 November 2020 HK$0.638 HK$0.27 - -
ZZ-RF+-A+-H M —T-RFE+-A+-HE-Z-%F 0,638 B0.27T - -
+—-A+H
28 December 2015 Note 28 December 2015 to 27 December 2020 HK$0.792 HK$0.35 - HK$0.35
“E-RE+tZAZTNB  WM#E ZE-RE+-A-t\RE-E_E% B%0.7927C B #0355 - B%0.357
+ZA-t++H
19 December 2016 Note 19 December 2016 to 18 November 2021 HK$0.738 HK$0.73 HK$0.73 -
ZE-AETZATAR Wi —E-AEt-A+NHE-Z-—% BH%0.7387C BE073T BE0.73T -
+—-A+N\AR
19 October 2017 Note 19 October 2017 to 18 October 2022 HK$0.488 HK$0.22 - -
ZZ2—tE+ATNA W —E—t+E+ATAAZEZE-F 10,4887 10,227 - -
+A+AR
11 April 2019 Note 11 April 2019 to 10 April 2024 HK$0.456 HK$0.2107 HK$0.2107 HK$0.224
ZE-NERAT-A MiEF —E-nENA+-REZZ-QNE w045 BE0210TT EE02107T 10,2471
mA+H
Note: B 5 -
In accordance with the terms of the Scheme, these share options were BIRZAEINOGR  ZZEREXNREAHES -

vested at the date of grant.
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TRBERES BEEREREMAFNEAR
AEREREE_T_—F=H=+—H

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by directors, employees and consultants

during the year ended 31 March 2021: IEFEEMEZE:

Outstanding Granted Lapsed Outstanding

at 1 April during the during at 31 March

2020 year the year 2021

R-ZB_ZE R-B-—-%

mA—-H ZA=+-H

Option type BREEY & {78 FREH FREH R T
Directors EE

28 December 2015 —Z-hE¥+ZAZTNR 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) -

11 April 2019 ZE-NENA+—A 107,000,000 - (50,000,000) 57,000,000
Employees E&

19 December 2016 ZE-R"E+ZAt+NAE 53,000,000 - (53,000,000) -

11 April 2019 ZE2-AEWA+—A 280,300,000 - (49,300,000)0 231,000,000
Consultants B

11 November 2015 “Z-h¥+—-A+—H 50,000,000 - (50,000,000) -

28 December 2015 —E-af+=-A=tNR 275,460,000 —  (275,460,000) =

19 December 2016 ZE-~E+ZATANR 467,000,000 - - 467,000,000

19 October 2017 ZE—tETATAE 100,000,000 - - 100,000,000

11 April 2019 “E-AFWA+—A 329,000,000 - - 329,000,000

1,666,760,000 —  (482,760,000) 1,184,000,000

Exercisable at the end of the year ~ F X AT (& 1,184,000,000

Weighted average exercise price 1 T 17 E B HK$0.608 - HK$0.701 HK$0.570

##0.6087 - #E®0.701T  EW0.5707T

BE-_E-_—F=A=+—B81LEE R
HA #E FE m BF 0 A 2£482,760,00017 AN #E SF
BT EBAB K070 TR B ED KR -

A total of 482,760,000 share options at the weighted average
exercise price of HK$0.701 lapsed during the year 31 March
2021 upon expiration of the options.
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The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by directors, employees and consultants
during the year ended 31 March 2020:

TEREEES EERBEBEAMFENHNLAR
TIERERBEE-_E-_EF=A=1+—H
HFEMEE:

Outstanding Granted Lapsed Outstanding

at 1 April during the during at 31 March

2019 year the year 2020

RZZE-N&F R-ZE-ZF

mA—H =R=1+-8

Option type g gl AR AT FREML FREHR R AT
Directors EF

3 February 2015 —“Z-R%-A=H 20,000,000 = (20,000,000) =

28 December 2015 “Z-RFE+-PA-tN\H 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000

3 February 2015 “Z-R%-A=H 1,500,000 = (1,500,000 =

11 April 2019 ZE-NENA+—A - 107,000,000 - 107,000,000
Employees E&

19 December 2016 “E-R"E+-A+tNH 53,000,000 - - 53,000,000

11 April 2019 ZE-NENA+—A - 280,300,000 - 280,300,000
Consultants BER

3 February 2015 —“Z-R%-A=H 7,000,000 = (7,000,000) =

11 November 2015 —Z-1a%+—-A+—H 50,000,000 = = 50,000,000

28 December 2015 “E2-RF+-A=+N\H 275,460,000 - = 275,460,000

19 December 2016 —E-R"E+-A+NA 467,000,000 - - 467,000,000

19 October 2017 ZE—+F+ATNA 100,000,000 = = 100,000,000

11 April 2019 “Z-NENA+-—H = 329,000,000 = 329,000,000

978,960,000 716,300,000 (28,500,000)  1,666,760,000

Exercisable at the end of the year ~ F X AT (& 1,666,760,000

Weighted average exercise price 1 T 17 E B HK$0.715 HK$0.456 HK$0.477 HK$0.608

BE0TI5T 10456 7C BEE04TTTT B 10.6087T

A total of 28,500,000 share options at the exercise price
of HK$0.477 lapsed during the year 31 March 2020 upon

expiration of the options.

HE_ZT_TF=-_A=+—HLEFE R
HARE fE W By - & $£28,500,0000 1T (B &
BE0ATT T B D KM -
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—FZA=F—HAULFE

The significant inputs into the Binomial Model are as follows:

RZBEAERGAZEEHENT:

Date of grant

FHAH

11 April

2019

—E—hE

mA+—A

Share price at the grant date REL B2 RE HK$0.455
% #£0.4557T

Exercise price per share ERTEE HK$0.456
75 #50.4567T

Expected volatility TEHEBEE 69.77%
Expected life of options T8 HA B % 42 57 B 5 years
5%

Expected dividend yield TEHRR B X 0%
Annual risk-free interest rate B B £F FI) 5 1.53%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
years. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

The aggregate fair values of the above granted options
were approximately HK$152,347,000 were to be recognised
as share-based payments expenses granted to directors,
employees and consultants for the year ended 31 March
2020 with a corresponding increase in equity.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on
the director’s best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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Hong Kong

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
companies (the “employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees
are required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Legislation. The contributions from each
of the employer and employees are subject to a cap of
HK$1,250 per month before 1 June 2014 and HK$1,500 per
month, since 1 June 2014 onwards. During the year ended
31 March 2021, the total amount contributed by the Group
to this scheme and charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss was approximately HK$198,000 (2020:
approximately HK$201,000).

The PRC

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC,
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute to a state-
managed retirement plan for all its employees at a certain
percentage of the basic salaries of its employees. The state-
managed retirement plan is a defined contribution retirement
plan and responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to all retired employees. Under the state-managed
retirement plan, the Group has no further obligations for the
actual pension payments or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. During the year ended 31 March
2021, the total amount contributed by the Group to this
scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss was approximately HK$182,000 (2020: approximately
HK$314,000).

TE

REBERBCE ERGMEATEDEEHE
BYBEEEEEEERESETE - &E
SHEEHBUSTATEZ " HTE
HHERETE - REBRESFE A&
BEREBsz2Er A(BEEDEEESZR
EREBESZNHAEREBRAZ5%M
ZErEER R R ZE—WEANA—H
Al EEREESEZHAEBRALRAS
12507 MBE T —MWENA—HIE
BAE1500T c RBE_TE_—F=H
=t+—HALFE AEERZTEELZ
HFIBEREHBEZRANNER A
#198,0007C (ZZE = 4 : 47 #201,000
JT) °

A

BEFRE@ERRRN - NP R ZH
BRAAZEEEEARF S Z—TF A
ABE2HEEMHABEREE RN E #
HoBEREBENRTEAETEH-IENK
FEERMERBEREE N2 2R
SERE - -REBERXREERKTE  KE
FZEFTN AEBTEREREARE
NRRKEBREREREE - S EE - &
EF-TE-_—FE=ZRA=1+—RILEE K&
EmZiTslfFl o HRBEREGHER
XA - H A B1182,000(ZE =%
& 4975 #314,0007T) °

5 45 0 43 A B O )

183

SRR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 F B 25 e e B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B £ —FE ——F =HA=+—HI FF

37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Disposal of its 100% equity interest in Beijing
Aliang Crab Catering Co.,Limited* (it 5 &
EEZRXARLT)

Pursuant to a conditional agreement dated 31 December
2019, the Group agreed to dispose of 100% entire equity
interests in Beijing Aliang Crab Catering Co., Limited* (1t & —HHEILIRN=BEZRBRAGZ
fi] = 2 2 £ R A [R A 7)) to an independent third party for a 100% & 7 + 1R & R E 4 & 15,000
total cash consideration of approximately HK$5,000. JC °

37. WE—RIHIBAR

Al
HELRMZSEERRXARAFZ
100% B% #&

REBEARR-_FT-NAF+_A=+—BZ
Bt HE ARBEREA-—RBILF

BRERGEZEERABDT:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

184

HK$’000
B F T
Equipment B 53
Right-of-use asset FEREAE 3,615
Inventories FE 205
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HEiEUWEER BNRELRES 2,119
Tax recoverable A Y =l Fi IR 14
Bank balances and cash RITEBREER S 113
Lease liabilities HEaE (3,616)
Other payables HEA RN (10,604)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEABEFE (8,101)
HK$’000
BT T
Cash consideration ReERE 5
Net liabilities disposed of BEHLEEEFE 8,101
Exchange fluctuation reserve ME R B R 493
Gain on disposal &= i g 8,599
* The English name is for identification purpose only. * BXEBEHRBR -
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZE S RL FE HK$’'000
BT T
Cash consideration ReNE 5
Less: Consideration receivables (Note) B YR E (M 5E) (5)

Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of

BoEHENRITERIRS

(113)

(113)

Note: The consideration was fully settled by cash in June 2020.
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged RBEHAR  AEBESRBRITEBUTE
the following assets to a bank to secure the banking facilities EERETASEEFRITHEMNER:

granted to the Group:

2021 2020
—EZ—% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Properties under development BERPYME 980,382 499,280
Such as disclosed in elsewhere of the consolidated BReEHTBHREREMMTAEEEN
financial statement, the Group had the following significant AEBCHREFBAEATETTIERKR
transactions with its related parties: R5:
Compensation of key management personnel FEEBARZEHE
The emoluments of the directors and other key management FREZFRAEBEMETEEREAEZ
personnel of the Group during the year were disclosed in B & A1 E -
Note 11.
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2021 2020
—E-—%F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT T T
Non-current assets EnBDHEE
Interests in subsidiaries FIiEM B AR 2= 807,245 807,245
Non-current prepayments and deposits JEMEBN AN FKIE RIZ® 2,313 2,302
Right-of-use assets FREEE 5,842 13,631
815,400 823,178
Current assets RnEBEE
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HEUW IR - BN ZE R
& 592 599
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU BT B A RIBR R 1,362,813 1,460,352
Financial assets at fair value through RERZEREAABERREZ
profit or loss TRLEE 3,121 20
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY 695 188
1,367,221 1,461,159
Current liabilities mB AR
Other payables and accruals HEmMENERRETER 32,035 71,619
Amount due to subsidiaries FERT B A RIER R 88,511 88,588
Amount due to a related company N —HEEEQFRR 34,138 =
Amount due to a director B —REZHNIAE — 17,200
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,527 8,053
Convertible bonds Al R B 5 327,971 367,591
Promissory note G RE 5,389 5,000
493,571 558,051
Net current assets mBHEERE 873,650 903,108
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRDAR 1,689,050 1,726,286
Capital and reserves B & B ¢ i
Share capital fi% A 73,570 73,570
Reserves (Note a) {1 (M 5Ea) 802,203 906,713
Total equity HER 875,773 980,283
Non-current liabilities ERBD AR
Convertible bonds AR ES 813,277 740,476
Lease liabilities HEaE - 5,527
813,277 746,003
Total equity and liabilities mERRBE 1,689,050 1,726,286
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. NREIB AR R ()
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note a: Reserves fista: G
Convertible
bonds —
Capital Share equity
Share  Contributed Other  redemption opfion  conversion  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve osses Total
(Note i) (Note ii)
AR
EX Bhie G5-RE
RAERE  @ARE  HEpEE  EEEE FE  BARE  24FE am
(B 3) i)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i BBfr BT BETT BEfrn BETr  BETT AETn BETx
At 1 April 2019 KZE-NEMA-A 3,252,105 55,215 (795,421) 14 297,331 979524 (2,392,269 1,396,499
Loss for the year FNER - - - - - - (670583  (670,583)
Early redemption of convertible bonds REBOTARES 30(i) = = = = = (551) = (551)
Transfer of reserves upon early redemption of  REFEEAHREAEES
convertible bonds Ef:] 30(i) - - - - - (8,650) 8,650 -
Issue of shares upon conversion of convertile  REBRTRR E#BETRH
bonds 300) & (v) 69,311 - - - - (32,617) - 36,694
Shares repurchased and cancelled RABE RS 29(i) (7,693) - - - - = = (7,693)
Madification of convertible bond EiTAARES 30i) - - - - - (12857) 112,857 =
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BB ERLENRDBER
payments vested HEB 3% - - - - 152,347 - = 152,347
Share option lapsed BANERE 3% - - - - (6,913) = 5913 =
At 31 March 2020 R-E-FF=A=1-A 3,313,723 55,215 (795,421) 14 443,765 824,849 (2,935,432 906,713
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Note a: Reserves (Continued) Mista: REH(E)
Convertible
bonds -
Capital Share equity
Share  Contributed Other  redemption option  conversion Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(Note i) (Note ii)
CEY 4
&% RRE G%-BE
kAR BARE  RHRERE 2 REEG fiE  WREE  RNER 4]
(W) (W)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i ERTr ERTn EWTR  ERTn  ERTR  EWIRT  ERTn ERTR

At 1 April 2020 RZZZFEMA-A 3,313,723 55,215 (795,421) 14 443,765 824,849  (2,935,432) 906,713

Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (104510)  (1045510)

Redemption of convertible bonds REBOTARES 30(v) - - - - (26,361) 26,361 -

Modification of convertible bond BiTakES 30(iv) - - - - (69,784) 69,784 -

Share option lapsed BAMERE - - - (148,851) - 148,851 -

At 31 March 2021 RZE=-%=f=1-H 3,313,723 55,215 (795,421) 14 294,914 728,704 (2,794,946) 802,203

Notes: B 5 -

(i) As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the contributed surplus of (i) RZEZ—FRZTZTF=A=+—8"
approximately HK$55,215,000 represents the difference BN B B 4 5 1555,215,0007T 5 B Uk BS BT
between the fair value of net assets of subsidiaries acquired BRARIFEEZANBERAARARAIFKE
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the BTN ZEEZRZZ8E M EE
acquisition and approximately HK$48,989,000 represents the 48,989,0007T 18 B B& A & P& 17 5 B & H E
amount being transferred from share capital and share premium BUYREBYSE -
as distributable reserve.

Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the BEBEE—HAN—FEQFE B
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to ARABZHANBBAEDREFIE -
shareholders.

(ii) Other reserve represents the differences amongst the investment (ii) H e i E S @ AR A

cost for acquisition of United Faith Group and elimination of the
share capital of the United Faith on 26 March 2018.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

ERZZE-NFZAZ+RBZRALEH
ZHEMERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O W 5 e B
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Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 R —FR-ZE-_FEF=ZA=+—8"
March 2021 and 2020 are as follows: KAREZEMB AR ZFBWOT:

Place or country Issued and

of incorporation/ paid up share

establishment/  Class of shares capital/registered Number Proportion of ownership interest and
Name of company operations held capital  of shares voting power held by the Company Principal activities

ERAL/ B/
LEER EXBEZER FREAEN CRORBERS/EMES BHBE FARRACAAREGRRRELA IERE

2021 2020
-BI-% 2%

Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
Ef & Ef %

% % % %

Dingyi Jin Hui (Shenzhen) ~ The PRC - Registered capital of N/A - 100 - 100 Investment advisory service
Investment Consulting RMB50,000,000 and paid-up and loan financing
Limited" capital of RMB22,082,000

SEEE(RINRE hE HMEATARE AR REFARBREDRE
BRAF 50,000,0007 R 4 & R

AR %22,082,000C

Golden Season International ~ The BVI Ordinary USSt 1 - 100 - 100 Securities trading and
Limiteg? trading of wine

SEERERAAR EREERNE LB %7 RHEERERER

Ease Main Limited? The BVI Ordinary 1US$1,000 1,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding and

securities trading

RRABRAR: AEEBARNE LB 1000%7 REBRRESER

Dingyi Financial Services Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 1 - 100 - 100 Loan financing
Investment Limited®

SECRRBREAARDA B i3 EEIT SNRE

Dingyi Bao Yin (Shenzhen)  The PRC - Registered capital of N/A - 100 - 100 Financial leasing and loan
Financial Leasing Limited* RMB800,000,000 and financing

paid-up capital of
RMB85,700,000

BER(M@ERE B HHERARK TR HEREREHRE
ﬁ@ A" 800,000,007 R 1 & B
AR 85,700,000

Zhanjiang Xintai Investment ~ The PRC = RMB50,000,000 N/A - 100 = 100 Properties development
Company Limited™

RIEZREARRAAY  9& AR%50,000,0007T TR VEEES

G The English translation of the company names is for reference * NABWr AXBLERS2E - ZE R

only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese. ZEHEBAFRI -

1 Company with limited liabilities established in the PRC. 1 RPBEKIHBREEQF

2 Company with limited liabilities incorporated in British Virgin 2 REBHEBAHSEMA INERAR

Islands.

3 Company with limited liabilities incorporated in Hong Kong. 3 REBTMEKINER QA

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities neither at the RMEFERIMEFERNTMRKR  SHBEA

end of both years nor at any time during both years. A B BT ERE
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(i)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, convertible
bonds with principal amounts of HK$24,886,000 were
converted into approximately 29,277,000 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed
conversion price of HK$0.85 per share. Details are set
out in Note 30(i).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, convertible
bonds with principal amounts of HK$20,000,000 were
converted into approximately 25,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed
conversion price of HK$0.8 per share. Details are set
out in Note 30(v).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the original CB
3 was extinguished and the extended CB 3 at a fair
value of HK$271,974,000 was recognised. Details are
set out in Note 30(iii).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had
lease modification in respect of terminate the lease
term on a lease arrangement of an office premises. The
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$5,303,000 and
the lease liabilities of approximately HK$5,400,000 as
at the date of lease modification were derecognised.
Details are set out in Note 17(iv).

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the original CB
3 was extinguished and the extended CB 3 at a fair
value of HK$275,005,000 was recognised. Details are
set out in Note 30(iv).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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(i)

(iv)

REE-_TE-_TEF=A=+—H1E
FE - Ae 5 AE24,886,0007T 2
AR E 5 LA E R B 0.8570 2 [
TE 8 (B 88 % R £929,277,000%
REEEE00ITTZARAERA -
18 B M FE30() ©

RBE-Z-_F=A=+—HILFE -
K4 58 A7 #20,000,0007T 2 7] #
BESIZETERESREKOST
L?ﬁtﬁiﬁ%ooooooaﬁi PEIRIER
BOOIM 2 ARE EBR - 1B
R B FE30(v) ©

REE-_ZTE-EF=-R=+—HIE
FE - J"?‘T%Mﬂ,ﬁsa%uﬁﬁxz
R A S 1E BB #271,974,0007T #Y
KIERAT R E RS o FFIBEHRH
F£30(iii) °

REE-_ZT-_EF=R=+—HIE
FE- Lkﬁlwtﬂﬁ#)#“*%%m
ETHMNBEBEETHEEE - ®
HEEFTHE - 4% %5,303,0007T
B A & B & #07%8 %5,400,0007T
MEEABEBUH®R - FI5ER
B 5E17(v) °

REBEE-_ZTE-_—F=ZA=+—81
FE RuBRRESFRSETFUFHER
22 /L 1E &7 #275,005,0007T B
KIERAT R E RS o FFIBEENH
F£30(iv) °
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The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

TERAARERETDHELABHE

BB

BRASIFRCEY - BRE
ARBMELRBEDNARREREXRER

ERENAHRERERDBEA/BER
BRERENEE -

Accrued
coupon
interest
Amount (included
due to Amount in “trade
arelated dueto  Convertible  Promissory Lease Bank  and other
company  adirector bonds note liabilies  borrowing  payables’) Total
EHEE
R (GIATE5
-REE EN-% BE:L REfh
LAY EENE % ARFEE HERE  BARR EAER) @i
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK§000  HK§000  HKS'000  HKS§'000
BETT  BETn BNt A%Tn  BETn  AETn  ABETn  AETn
Asat 31 March 2019, as previously ~ R-E-AE=f=1-F
reported (iAE2H) 7211 20,496 1,086,080 - - - 53815 1,167,602
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 RBEREBRSEN
F6% FE - - - - & - - BB
As at 1 April 2019, as restated RZZ-NEBA-A(EY) 7211 20,496 1,086,080 - 375 - B3I 1,203,377
Non-cash movements FREEY
Exchange difference ERZE - (610) - - (701) - - (1,311)
Converted into ordinary shares BEBRERR - - (394%1) = = = (2,189 (41,617)
Reclassification of accrued coupon ~ EF A EEFZEEEH
interest 1o other payables ERER - - (27407) - (991) = 28,398 =
Effective interest expense incured ~~ BES EEFEHR - - 140,692 142 991 = - 14185
Reclassification of accrued interest ~ ENAEEMEREHZ
{0 other payables Eitfs - - - (142 - = 142 =
Derecognition upon modification of R BT AR kALK
convertible bonds ER - - [(314301) - = = - (314301)
Recognition upon modification of REFTTRREH KRR
convertible bonds - - 271,974 - - - - 271,974
Loss on early redemption of RREEMHRRESY
convertible bonds BE - - (9,540) - - - = (9,540)
Lease modification REET - - - - (5,400) - = (5,400
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHBAH - - = = 3,616) = = (3,616)
Financing cash inflows HERERA - 6,593 - 5,000 - 197,084 - 208657
Financing cash outflows BEREMH - - - - (12,478) - (22,211)  (34,749)
As at 31 March 2020 RZEZ2FZA=+-A 7,211 26,479 1,108,067 5,000 13,580 197,064 57,898 1,415,299
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Accrued
coupon
interest
Amount (included
dueto  Amount in “trade
a related dueto Convertible Promissory Lease Bank and other
company adirector bonds note liabilities borrowing payables”) Total
EHRE
fEft (HATES
-HRAE Efi-4 HR RE#
LERR EERR f% #ARRE HERRE STEX EHER) ast
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
#RTT ERTT ERTT ERTn BRTT E%TT  ERTn  RRIR
As at 1 April 2020 \_E-ZEEA-H 7,211 26,479 1,108,067 5,000 13,580 197,064 57,808 1,415,299
Non-cash movements FREEY
Exchange difference ERZE (584) 2,461 - - (58) 20,920 - 22,739
Reclassification of accrued coupon ~~ EFHBEFESEEM
interest to other payables EREHN - - (20461) - - - 20,461 -
Effective interest expense inurred BELERAEHT - - 155517 250 648 - - 156,475
Reclassification of accrued interest ~ EH 98 ﬁﬁt EfEZ
{0 other payables EiHE - - - 139 - - (139) -
Derecognition upon modification of R BT AT R Bk ALK
convertible bonds B3 - - (344,326) - - - - (344,326)
Recognition upon modification of RETAARESEER
convertible bonds - - 275,005 - - - - 275,005
Recognition of new lease Eamag - - - - 4,169 - - 4,169
Financing cash inflows BERLHA 30,725 - - - - 229620 - 269,345
Financing cash outfiows RERSHD (1,113 (28940  (32614) - (10604  (63720)  (56811) (223,802)
As at 31 March 2021 R-E--5=fA=1-H 15,239 - 1,141,248 5,389 1,135 383,884 21,409 1,574,904

Subsequent amendments to the terms and
conditions of the convertible bonds

On 11 June 2021, the Company entered into the third deed
of amendments (the “Third Amendment Deed”) to further
extend the maturity date of the convertible bonds in the
principal amounts of HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000
(the “Convertible Bonds”) to 31 May 2022 (the “Third
Amendments”). The conversion rights (the “Conversion
Rights”) attaching to the Convertible Bonds expired on 31
May 2021. As such, the Convertible Bonds have become a
straight debt and carry no Conversion Rights pursuant to the
Third Amendment Deed. As the Convertible Bonds are no
longer regarded as convertible debt securities, the Company
is not required to apply for the approval of the Stock
Exchange for the Third Amendments under the Listing Rules.
Details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
11 June 2021 and 17 June 2021.
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RZEZ—FRA+—8B ARAFEILE
“HETRE(SEZRETRIE]) - Ui
— B EERAE T A 220,000,000
7T & 745 59,500,000 2 Al AR & % ([ /]
WERE)MNIBPAECREE T -_—FHA
A=+ —R(EB=RET) -  JHKkES
WEzERE((EREDEN = _—F
AA=+—HE® - At - J@ERESFD
BEE=NDEITRERBEEZEREL B
THEERE AR BRREFTBR
BAETEBRESES  WARRETR
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